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Corporate Information
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HISTORY AND DEVELOPMENT

1962

1983

1989

1992

1996

2007

2008

2009-

2013

2020

2022

| Lan Foods Industrial Co., Ltd. (“I Lan Foods”) was established in
May 1962, which manufactured canned agricultural products mainly
for export.

In 1983, we collaborated with lwatsuka Confectionery Co., Ltd.
(“ICCL”"), one of the leading Japanese rice cracker producers, to
jointly develop the rice cracker market in Taiwan region. Since
1983, we have been producing and marketing our products under
the “Want Want” brand.

We introduced the “Want Want” brand in the Chinese Mainland in
1989.

We ventured into the Chinese Mainland and established our first
subsidiary in Hunan province in 1992. In the following years, we
grew from a pure rice cracker company to a diversified food and
beverages company.

In May 1996, Want Want Holdings Ltd. (“WWHL"), our subsidiary,
was listed on the Main Board of Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) and subsequently diversified into the
hospital, hotel and property businesses and other investments.

WWHL delisted from SGX-ST in September 2007 and conducted
a group restructuring which involved (i) the incorporation of Want
Want China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) as the new holding
company of our core operations related to the food and beverages
businesses; (ii) the divestment and transfer of the hospital, hotel
and property businesses and other investments to San Want
Holdings Limited (“San Want”) on 31 December 2007, and the
interests in San Want were distributed to the then shareholders of
WWHL by way of dividend in specie.

Our Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “HK Stock Exchange”) on 26 March 2008 (the “Listing”).

Our Taiwan Depositary Receipts were listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation on 28 April 2009 and were voluntarily
withdrawn from listing on 15 October 2013.

In 2020, our Vietnam production base commenced construction
to strengthen our business expansion and to cope with our future
development strategy in overseas markets.

In 2022, our new factory in Tién Giang province, Vietnam
commenced production, representing the first step of Want Want
towards the “Dream of the World”.
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Corporate Profile

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Want Want”, “We” or the “Group”) are the manufacturing,
distribution and sale of rice crackers, dairy products and beverages, snack
foods and other products.

KEY MARKETS

Most of our operations are located in the Chinese Mainland, which is one
of the fastest growing economies in the world. We have an extensive
nationwide sales and distribution network throughout the Chinese Mainland.
We also export our products to other markets, including North America, East
Asia, South East Asia and Europe.

As at 31 March 2025, we had 419 sales offices, 35 production bases

and 89 factories in the Chinese Mainland and worked with over 10,000
distributors.
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Corporate Culture

Speech Competition on “Braving Challenges, Unstoppable
Forward”

Corporate culture is like a seed entrusted with the dual mission of
inheritance and innovation. Want Want employees cultivate it with their
hearts and nurture it with actions, deeply embedding its roots in every
day's work and every slogan. Inheritance is the accumulation of Want
Want employees' personal experiences, while innovation is the fruit of their
courage to break through barriers and scale new heights. Every corporate
culture activity serves as a driving force to rally employees' spirit and
strengthen their sense of belonging, allowing each Want Want colleague to
feel the warmth and power of the culture.

Want Want Group’s largest corporate culture event in 2024 - the
Speech Competition on “Braving Challenges, Unstoppable Forward”
— was successfully held. This cultural gala lasted for half a year and
attracted nearly 600 teams of contestants from across the Group to
actively participate. After a series of auditions, resurrections and regional
competitions, twenty teams of contestants from the Chinese Mainland and
Taiwan region finally stood out and stepped onto the stage of the grand
final. On the competition stage, the contestants used language as their
brush and passion as their ink to depict infinite longings for the future and
talk about the same Want Want dream together. Their speeches not only
demonstrated the art of language but also conveyed the vitality of youth and
the persistent pursuit of dreams. Want Want people from all over the world
witnessed this cultural gala through live broadcasting, felt the unique charm
of Want Want's corporate culture, and showed Want Want's elegance and
confidence to the world.

Through the speech contest, the spirit of Want Want people and their
unlimited potential are fully demonstrated, and the platform advantages
of the Group’s diversified talent development are showcased, reflecting
that Want Want people truly understand themselves and unleash their full
potential. Want Want people bravely pursue their dreams, move forward
firmly, demonstrate the corporate core values of the Group through practical
actions, and push Want Want Group towards a more brilliant future.
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Want Want Family Day

"Want Want Family Day" is a warm-hearted festival that originates from
"fate" and returns to "home". Every Want Want Family Day is a beautiful
moment for Want Want people to meet and gather. Regardless of the
season, happiness is defined here: In summer, everyone takes a bite of
Want Want popsicle, frolics in the water, checks out the food stalls all over
the venue, and makes creative handicrafts with their own hands; while in
winter, they hold a cup of Want Want beverage, taste Want Want's creative
snacks, stroll through the exclusive "Want Want Bazaar" for Want Want
people, feeling warm, happy and content but not cloying.

The event not only enhances the cohesion and sense of belonging among
the employees but also conveys the cultural spirit of Want Want people to
"do everything with heart and dedication". Through the Family Day, more
people get to know Want Want, recognize Want Want, and fall in love with
Want Want, while Want Want also becomes a strong backing for every
happy small family. In the future, let's continue to move forward hand in
hand, so that the vision of "Want Want Family" can shine in every corner!
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Spirit of Want Want

imIm ey MANAGEMENT PHILOSOPHY:
% HEEEE People Oriented

HFHEFEE & RKR[1EE] - BB Hot-Kid’s round head shape signifies congeniality. The head

HERIGTE » BXRE  HEEEZ seems to have just been washed but the hair is not dry, so it is

Bo [EE|HBEAXHEFYF » [—IK known as “hair holding”. “Hair holding” originated from <Zhou Gong

—EE —fi=HRE HBREAXTZ Quotation>: “three times hair-holding during one shower and three

+ | o FRUAIREB R RELEEBES L= times spitting the food out during one meal with the fear of losing

Ele the talented people in the world”. So, “Hair holding” also have the
meaning of eagerness to recruit talents.

EEREMN  ARERESES 0 A Message from our Chairman: our Company is very grateful for and

A —EAFRE  KFEHEE— cherishes our talents. Our Company is like a big family: we should
# o EZERMNESE - 2EEEXR cherish the fate that brought us together, play our part and cherish
BE  IREMROARER - ROoFRER this family, and put one another in our own hearts.

B REIERS

Bfs Z%Z0ACE #HO Self Confidence

FAEOEBERRTREES - RN E Confidence comes with good preparation. Hot-Kid’s smiling
EREMRBEEZNEE - ERTmEE countenance reflects our belief in preparedness and the confidence
B —Ea U mER - BEERMH that glows with it. The heart-shaped tongue of Hot-Kid represents
HEME—ER - KORFILE our sincere heart to the Group: Be faithful to the leaders, be kind
REREZFHRMFHEHO - BHEF LR to the subordinates, and be sincere to our customers. This effort
RRER - HETEROMZE @ ¥1F would definitely enhance our performance.

BEFBOHE  VEEEER ¥

Thig o

KELE EFHER Unity

HFNEFRBE/EREER  EF KRR Hot-Kid’s open arms reflect our team spirit. His welcoming left arm
KEG - NRFELHH  SHELS denotes our unity. We believe that with the right strategies and
MEEEREFMRI= » BIFEREER concerted effort, we will be able to create infinite victories. Even
KK tEEEEMFERLRER when our strategies do not lead us to success, unity will help us
K o T—EARFER » KARIEHOE minimise losses. In a big family, everyone must be of one heart and
oo FEF > BEE—RE one mind, work hand in hand, and unite together.

HEER

MANAGEMENT GOALS:
Elite Dragons of the World

SRR

v,
A RHEEEEREREZS - AX Hot-Kid’'s open arms reflect that Want Want is a big united family ‘@a
BizEBE—8  AHRENEEARIE which brings together outstanding talents from all over the world O

FEZRERAE  BEESENER  — for common goals. With the development and expansion of our J %
IRIEBERNEESEESEAARAKESD - businesses worldwide, the Giant Dragon of the World is born.
RERERNEIRE !

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A
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Spirit of Want Want

United with People of Common Aspirations

Hot-Kid’s right arm denotes a helping hand. Corporate
advancement is the product of the intricate interplay among talent,
skills, capital funds and markets. As we strive to achieve our
corporate vision of becoming the “Elite Dragons of the World”,
our doors are always open to people of common aspirations and
those who share our ideals and we unite with them whether it is the

BEAE—R--

BRE BHE BEEE

RANRBEELERTEXEERS
BE  KE6% - A HREXTEEN
fiap o KEBE  BEZENFBE
Fh o BREAFAREBIHRK - GEH
BERSTHE - BREIRAR - BRBENT
i R —EABIEHNAE BT
WERDZERR °

RAIZAIHEE BERMmE

provision of technologies or joint management.

High Margins, Great Success

Hot-Kid’s eyes looking upwards shows that Want Want emphasises
a long-term, forward-looking vision and wise management. We
aim high and achieve far. Only through prudent management and
judicious foresight, will our enterprise progress with sustainable

profits. Preparedness also prevents any unwanted events. With
great profits, our employees will share the fruits of our success.

Successful Business Ventures

Hot-Kid’s roll-up sleeves and pants imply embracing our future with

HEFRENMmFRIET  RTRTEZ
BUHTSEEE » WENEL N - R ELE
DB RBE - FEREEEHMN
EXE RTHAMER  AXEHR
B IEM EE IS EBTHD

hard work. To realize our goal of becoming the “Elite Dragons of the
World”, we will undertake new business ventures periodically. To
start new business ventures, every employee should go the extra
mile and ensure all their tasks are successfully accomplished.

AIRMRARIET ©

NEREAKERE KBSt

HFOF N RBREFENAR - RR
B - EXBEBEHFAROX
FHEAE  RENEEN  BEEHR
= - HERER - 5—EAEREN
AEME - A > HEZERKRN
EEHEXR o Wt - DR SRR
RER LA AREEE o

Prosperity for the Group, Prosperity for Everyone

Hot-Kid’s bare feet symbolise our unwavering pragmatism. To
garner public support and recognition, a company needs to
conduct its business honestly and earnestly. The same principle
applies to individuals. Every employee should be conscientious to
their work and behave down-to-earth, and they will receive respect
and support of others. Consequently, a company will prosper and
likewise its employees.

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited
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Financial Highlights

Revenue

i &=

Return on Equity

M B R

30%

25.7% 25.4%
25% _-‘ __‘
o 21.6% | %e %e
rl /=\% W7=\%
15% — — —
10% 7=\% W7=\% 7=\%
0% k 7/=\"¥
2022FY 2023FY 2024FY
2022815 202381 2024815
EBITDA Margin
RERIS © FiEHL
e R K AT B R 2=
. 28.7%
30% '1_9% -

2% g1

20% | r--m-m-o- . fe-oeeooooood

15%

[y Eem— !

5%

2

0%

RMB'000
AR#F T
25,000,000 55098010 23586827 T 23510,737
20,000,000
15,000,000
10,000,000 = ------- OC), I— CC), I (O I
4=\ 4=\ 4=\
5,000,000 (( (( ((
0 4=\ 4=\ 4=\
2022FY 2023FY 2024FY
202281%F  202381F  2024Bi%F
Gross Profit Margin
EF %
. 47.6%
48% 46.6% @l
45% 439% g4 B A4
39% ,;}J ,;}J ,i‘%‘!
36%
e & & &
LI -~ | =2 =51
2022FY 2023FY 2024FY
2022B1%F 202381 2024BifF
Profit for the Year
FERE
RMB’000
AR®F
4,500,000 4,328;415
3,983,179
4,000,000 - ,
3,500,000 37362.711 g‘% 54%3
3,000,000 7y s
2,500,000 e AEB — ]
51 21 S g |
2,000,000 B0 SO ey
-3 -
1,500,000 ) e 4 4 .
1,000,000 5553‘ 5;;% : g{g@’
S SIS S
o S & EY
2022FY 2023FY 2024FY
2022815 202381 2024814F
Notes:
(1) 2024FY/2023FY/2022FY: Year ended 31 March 2025, 2024 and 2023
respectively

(2) Return on equity is based on profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company divided by the average of the opening and closing balances
of the equity(excluding non-controlling interests).

(3) EBITDA: Earnings before interests, income tax, depreciation and
amortisation which is calculated by adding back depreciation and
amortisation expenses to the operating profit for the year.

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

B ISR

Financial Summary

fFeka®
Year ended 31 March
BZE3A3LALEE
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Revenue g 21,998,400 23,984,891 22,928,219 23,586,327 23,510,737
Profit before income tax BRETSH AIRE 5,994,842 5,734,383 4,779,950 5,405,467 5,739,662
Income tax expense FEHER (1,847,161) (1,545,269) (1,417,239) (1,422,288) (1,411,247)
Profit for the year FERNE 4,147 681 4,189,114 3,362,711 3,983,179 4,328,415
Profit attributable to; FEAG RIS -
Equity holders of the Company ANTREEHEA 4,157,809 4,202,655 3,371,584 3,990,474 4,335,565
Non-controlling interests JEE MR (10,128) (13,541) (8,873) (7,295) (7,150)
Dividends RE 1,710,001 4,691,334 2,652,397 2,787,496 1,738,330
Shares repurchased and cancelled B 8BE R SEHR 7 1,601,078 819,493 81,105 292,599 36,627
RMB Cents RMB Cents RMB Cents RMB Cents RMB Cents
ARESD ARESD ARESD ARES ARES
Eamnings per share SREF
Basic 'K 33.83 35.16 28.35 33.65 36.71
Diluted g 33.83 35.16 28.35 33.65 36.71
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
FEEEARE
As at 31 March
W3A31H
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE 10,811,484 13,269,649 13,168,233 14,571,187 14,139,965
Current assets REEE 20,431,534 16,588,332 12,805,844 12,885,381 13,071,793
Total assets BEE 31,243,018 29,857,981 25,974,077 27,457,068 27,211,758
EQUITY i
Total equity HER 14,971,640 16,708,778 14,704,070 16,405,738 17,751,141
LIABILITIES =l
Non-current liabilities =N 7,105,520 3,900,675 2,495,028 2,808,174 925,064
Current liabilities REEE 9,165,858 9,248,528 8,774,979 8,243,156 8,535,553
Total liabilities Bmafs 16,271,378 13,149,203 11,270,007 11,051,330 9,460,617
Total equity and liabilities BEZRAE 31,243,018 29,857,981 25,974,077 27,457,068 27,211,758
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Major Awards and Recognition

HEEEXEERTRIBES
HHEEET ITHEEXAERHRERRARDERTRIMHERSE] MAEEREETER
ESEHRRAFENTIHR - BABREHR]BR - AR - BEARKE TR THERATRM -

Want Want Group Awarded the First Zero-Carbon Factory Certificate

Jiaxing Mei-Want Machinery Ltd., a factory under the Want Want Group, has been awarded the
"Zero-Carbon Factory Evaluation Certificate”", becoming the first factory under the Want Want
Group to obtain zero-carbon factory certification and helping achieve the "dual carbon" goals.
Subsequently, the Shenyang General Factory was honored as a model of the construction of a
"zero-carbon" factory.

HEEEZEREBME  MEZRIHREERAZECTRAE
2024 FERTHEMEBLIMATRT (QQ024FERBRIELE) - HEKEE T HrREE - BM KT
REARHE=RTHIEFNBEEFRREETIHRARE - 2t - EFHEECHEBIORERAZECTRE -

Want Want Group Making Further Achievements in Green Manufacturing, with an
addition of Three Factories Awarded National Certification for Green Factories

In 2024, the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of China publicized the 2024 Green
Manufacturing List. Three factories of Want Want Group — Hunan Want Want, Guangzhou Yong-
Want, and Guangxi Ming-Want — successfully passed the national certification for green factories.
So far, Want Want Group has 10 national-level green factories.

FE FE £ B SR R 8 55 (K FR) | o 1 B R R SR R B A 57
THEEARIXAMERSKRERREXZEEFE F+/\E2AKFRREXESER
BECIEASEIRBET HEKETERR I XGEFRERMEXEZTET2023F
EEFRRRmAINRUERERERS -

Want Want Group Awarded the Honorary Title of Outstanding Innovative
Manufacturing Enterprise in Snack Food Industry

The Annual Meeting of the Potato Food Professional Committee of the China National Food Industry Association, the 18th
National Snack Food Industry Summit and Zhuanglang Investment Promotion Conference were held in Zhuanglang County.
Want Want was awarded the honorary title of "2023 Outstanding Innovative Manufacturing Enterprise in Snack Food
Industry" by the Potato Food Professional Committee of the China National Food Industry Association.

HHEEEXEFEAERMITEANERR
HPRRMMNERNMESELRERNE—_TNETELERAAE L - HEQKHE BSR4+
WR) AN p i AE RS (B4 ~ FoK ~ BBR) 5K2023-2024F E LB RMITHAINERE -

Want Want Group Winning Innovation Product Award in China's Convenience
Food Industry

At the 24th China Convenience Food Conference hosted by the Chinese Institute of Food
Science and Technology in Beijing, Want Want Q Rice Noodles (Sour and Spicy Beef Soup
Flavour) and Aiyou Mochi Soup (Mushroom, Corn, and Borscht Flavours) were awarded the
2023-2024 Innovation Product Award in the convenience food industry.

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A
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KM% EMonde SelectionEREmmEEL MONDE SELECTION
MREEBEMENER L R EHERESIREE2024F Monde SelectionBEIfREmMmE oy
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Toddler Mum-Mum Or¢

Want Want Group Winning the Gold Quality Award at the World 63 v
Selection of Food Products of the Monde Selection

Toddler Mum-Mum Organic Rice Biscuits Blueberry Flavour, exported to Canada by
the Want Want Group, won the Gold Quality Award at the World Selection of Food
Products 2024 of the Monde Selection..

EEEERETEARNR TRBEMIEIKRE
EEERER2024FFEFENMBRAFEE H - BEERERIENERFTARAEER ]
RERMESR_EER -

Rice Biscuits Blueberry Flavor

Want Want Group Winning Two Awards from China Dairy Industry
Association

Want Want was recognised as the "2024 China Dairy Industry Science and
Technology Innovation Enterprise”, and its "Method for Implementation and
Application of Post-aseptic Homogenisation Technology" won the Second Prize of
the Technology Advancement Award.

AR E B4 EISEER R L L IEBRE
MHEERESEERRELEKE  FEHFRERRFNPEE
[ISEERIF mIE B ®E| » B HBFPEE[ISEERIFTHEMTTOPHE]
RERE SR BRERE [ISEEZBREWRIE | = 2 » A4 IREACEMKZRT -
RN NEEN RIS EISEEZBREKEE | —“ B » BRELIER - Fix
XBody#E I [ISEEZEREMREE | — 2B EE » PEHFRMBELEE
[iSEERI¥ miEEE ] - M EEMLLEZREmAIFLE R
2 HHEERTEAKERE[FERITAY] -

Want Want Group Winning Multiple iSEE Global Awards

Want Want Group has won multiple honours at the iISEE Global

Awards. The Group’s “Hot-Kid Nut Milk for Kids” (FE{¥ 52 2 ER R 4-13)

was included in the “iSEE Top 100 Innovative Brands List”, while its

“Daily Milk” (2 BB 443) was included in the “’ISEE Top Innovative Technologies List”. “Want Want Pea Crisps” (FEFE# =
fif) won three stars in the “iSEE Global Taste Award”, “Hot-Kid Milk Chewies Ice Cream Series” (EE{#4 {3%EACEMZ 3) and
“Want Want Mini Sports Drink” (FEEE/)MNEENBUREL) received two stars in the “'SEE Global Taste Award”, and “Want Want
Xiancao Jelly” (FEEE{LELER) and “Fix XBody Oat Milk” (Fix XBody#%&Z51/3) were awarded one star in the “iSEE Global Taste
Award”. “Mr. Bond Mint Coffee” (FMESE=MILE) was listed as one of the “iSEE Top 100 Innovative Brands”, “Want Want Mr.
Bond Coffee Rush” (FEEEFBZEMIBE) won the Silver Award of the “Global Food Innovation Award”, and Mr. Tsai Wang-Ting,
the General Manager of Want Want Group, was honoured as the “Innovator of the Year”.

FEEEEERE2024F & E 25 KB R IE
MRHEEEFAE/EBAERRE]  RETHSFREFESABNEE -

Want Want Group was recognised as the Top 25 Best Taiwan Global Brands in 2024

Want Want Group has been listed as one of the “Top 25 Best Taiwan Global Brands” for years,
which is a recognition of Want Want’s prestigious and high-quality brand reputation.

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited
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Dear shareholders,

In the second half of 2024FY, the Group organised business units by
product categories to coordinate the development of various channels and
put forward the slogan of “Conquering Cities and Winning the World”. To
better serve consumers, we strategically allocated resources to potential
products and new products, deepened collaborations with snacks specialty
retail systems, and diversified the deployment of the business units in the
e-commerce retail markets, meeting the needs of different consumers.

With the joint efforts of all Want Want people, the Group’s factories have
been constantly innovating. Ten of our factories have been awarded
national certification for green factories and the Group has been recognised
as an outstanding innovative manufacturing enterprise in China’s snack
food industry, reflecting the strength of the Want Want brand. In overseas
markets, after years of dedicated cultivation, Want Want products
have gained increasing popularity and recognition among international
consumers. Our Vietnam factory has already reached a considerable scale,
and we have also established overseas subsidiaries in Vietham, Indonesia,
Australia, Germany, etc.

As part of Want Want, we must shoulder heavy responsibilities and
embark on a long journey. Hot-Kid’s eyes looking upwards shows that we
must always maintain aspirational goals and remain vigilant in pursuit of
our goals. Therefore, in 2025, | urge the management to “take a leading
role of undergoing hardship, overcoming difficulties and forging ahead.”
All Want Want people of the sales and marketing department should
wholeheartedly appreciate the Company’s policies, respond promptly, take
proactive actions, and press forward with all their might. The manufacturing
organisation must ensure product quality as quality is always the foundation
of Want Want’s operations. Back office operations should provide full
support, actively cooperate and maintain close collaboration! The managers
of each of the departments must possess a sense of responsibility and the
courage to be held accountable.

| wish everyone good health and a blissful family life, and may every day be
filled with energy and prosperity!
Tsai Eng-Meng

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

24 June 2025

ERRE

Chairman’s Statement

BURER :

2024 FTHFRERRERER 25
RABED  HESTRENER - LR
TIREHES - ESXTIMNON - MEHE
BE RMUBIERNHMERETTE
HEMNERRY  YEXERTREASR
REGHE ZAMRESXNEFEED
5 RETEEBENER -

E2BREEANBIT  SEIRTEA
FoOATRIBKERRRALCIHE
o WERFRTEESKERMAIHR
Bh¥ -BRTHERMNED - £EH
W5 KRELFNEHANE  HEER
WEITHRESBINEEENERRR
e BMEIBCEEREENSRE LE
R ElfE ~ BARE - EEEHEM
R T BINMB AT ©

HMEEALEEEMEE - HFHNRE
=EEALEN  AXREMAESHERFEH L
MBS BEREBEER  EER - AL
20255 - REREEE : [RFEH - KR
AT - (THEANSALEEAZEALR
AARMBER - MEEE  BBESR - 2
hanE LEERERFRERNGRE
AAmERHHEKESENRE - REE
REZ XS TBEE  BEBE! &
ERATEMEAREEINRRNEENE

th

E=E|°

WOARGEEE  AREE BRER
5-X!

5579
EFETERITHAZ
20256824 H

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited






ANNUAL REPORT ¢ 2024/2025F

>

SUMMARY

In 2024FY, the Group’s total revenue was RMB23,510.7 million, representing
a slight decline of 0.3% as compared with that of the same period in the
previous year. It was due mainly to the impact of extreme weather and
market conditions, which led to the year-on-year decline in the revenue of
popsicles sub-category under the snack foods segment and gift packs under
the rice crackers segment by a low-teen percentage and a high single-
digit percentage, respectively. However, the Group actively responded to
market changes and carried out internal organisational restructuring in the
second half of 2024FY by segmenting business units according to product
categories, strengthening collaboration among channels and coordinating
the development of domestic and overseas operations. Thanks to these
initiatives, the Group’s revenue for the second half of 2024FY resumed low
single-digit growth compared to the same period in the previous year, and
in particular, the dairy products and beverages segment achieved a mid
single-digit growth rate and the popsicles sub-category performed strongly
with a recovery growth of over 20%. Moreover, emerging channels, such as
OEM, and overseas markets continued to develop with double-digit year-
on-year growth in revenue for 2024FY, remaining the key growth drivers
of the Group. New products launched over the past five years continued to
perform well and contributed a double-digit percentage of the Group’s total
revenue in 2024FY, demonstrating the Group’s continuous improvement in
innovation capabilities.

Gross profit margin for 2024FY increased by 1.0 percentage point year-
on-year to 47.6%. It was mainly attributable to the decrease in the unit
cost of certain key raw materials and packaging materials, which offset
the impact of the decline in the average unit selling price of the Group
due to the product mix adjustments resulting from channel diversification.
Benefitting from the improvement in gross profit margin and the proper
control of overall operating expenses (i.e. the aggregate of distribution costs
and administrative expenses, same where referred to hereinafter), as well
as the year-on-year decrease in finance costs and income tax expense
rate in 2024FY as compared to that of 2023FY, profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company grew by 8.6% year-on-year to RMB4,335.6 million
in 2024FY, and the margin of profit attributable to equity holders increased
by 1.5 percentage points as compared with that of the same period in the
previous year to 18.4%.

The Group will continue to deepen and strengthen its organisational vitality
and initiative, in order to enhance its ability to respond quickly to market
changes and further expand its market share. Meanwhile, the Group will
actively develop new products, expand the coverage of points of sale and
strengthen the sense of novelty and stickiness of its consumers. Despite
the recent increase in the cost of certain key raw materials, the Group will
strive to minimise the risk of cost fluctuation through its strategy of using
diversified raw materials.

BERE W& D

Management Discussion and Analysis
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

During 2024FY, the Group continued to implement its strategy of
diversification, with specific strategies as follows:

() Intensive development and diversification of channels

1.

Traditional wholesale channels and modern channels: distinctive
strategies to mitigate weak market conditions

In 2024FY, with its distinctive and differentiated product strategy,
the Group partnered with major snack specialty retail systems
to precisely target and match the evolving shopping habits of
consumers, successfully driving the growth of puffed foods and
other products under the snack foods segment amid the market
downturn.

During 2024FY, to promote a healthy development of the
overall channels and customers, the Group deepened its
partnership with the leading snack specialty retailers. The
traditional wholesale channels and modern channels accounted
for approximately 80% of the revenue of the Group, among
which the revenue from snack specialty retailers accounted
for about 10%. The increase in channel diversity has led to a
shift in consumer spending to other channels, resulting in a
decline in the revenue from the traditional wholesale channels
and modern channels by a low single-digit percentage year-
on-year. The Group is closely combining its brand value with
consumption scenarios to connect its products with scenes
such as “wishing for blessings”, “prosperity (Want) together” and
“blissful moments”, etc. Meanwhile, the Group focused on the
in-depth development of markets where its presence was weak,
enhanced the precision of its resource allocation, increased the
coverage of points of sale and the number of on-shelf products.
Moreover, the Group’s extensive product portfolio allowed it to
precisely meet the needs of different consumers.

EEENWEON

Management Discussion and Analysis
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

() Intensive development and diversification of channels

(continued)

2.

Innovation and development of emerging channels: promoting
growth by diversification and innovation

During 2024FY, revenue from the Group’s emerging channels
achieved a double-digit year-on-year growth. Revenue from
the emerging channels accounted for nearly a double-digit
percentage of the total revenue of the Group. Within the
e-commerce channels, the content e-commerce channel
strengthened the overall ability of the brand to reach out to
customers by continuously increasing the number of short videos
published for its products and setting up a multi-category matrix
of social media accounts. Meanwhile, leveraging its advantages
in the supply chain, the Group launched customised gift box
products, in conjunction with the new gift-giving features on
WeChat, allowing consumers to buy products as gifts for friends
and relatives and send delightful festive greetings through
the online gifting function, while enhancing brand and product
exposure. Moreover, the OEM channel maintained rapid growth.
Leveraging the diversity of production lines and advantages
in production and R&D, there has been a further expansion
in OEM product categories and areas of cooperation. The
diversified development of emerging channels has created new
opportunities of growth for the Group.

Rapid growth in overseas markets

For 2024FY, the Group’s overseas business, which accounted
for a high single-digit percentage of the total revenue of the
Group, achieved double-digit revenue growth, of which the
Japanese markets, North American markets and certain
Southeast Asian markets maintained rapid growth. Thanks to
the Group’s diversified product offerings as well as its mature
and stable production and R&D capabilities, sales of rice
crackers, candies and other snack foods have shown strong
growth. Leveraging the continued promotion of its strategy of
overseas deployment, in 2024FY, the Group launched diversified
marketing and brand promotion activities overseas according to
local conditions, actively developed new channels and product
categories in different economies, and explored ways to localise
the operation and management of its overseas subsidiaries. Its
layout for overseas supply chain also began to bear fruits, with
our factory in Vietnam gradually taking on overseas demands,
especially in the Southeast Asian market. With continuous
efforts on overseas production base deployment, expanding into
mainstream markets, developing OEM business, and deepening
of our operational localisation strategies, the Group’s overseas
supply chain resilience and its risk resistance capacity will be
effectively enhanced.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)
(I Differentiated brand positioning and new product

The Group has implemented a diversified brand positioning strategy
and launched personalised brands to target consumers of different
age groups, creating brands such as “Baby Mum-Mum” for infants and
toddlers; “Prime of Love” focusing on the development of the seniors
market with the philosophy of “Aging with Vitality by the Wise Intake of
Nutrients” (& I8RER - B2HE), “Want Power” focusing on offering
snacks with health benefits for the young white-collar population, and
“Fix XBody” providing low Gl foods for gym-goers, in order to satisfy
the diverse needs of consumers in various age groups.

The Group fully utilised its unique and innovative R&D capabilities and
production capacities to develop personalised products, such as “QQ
juicy gummy” (QQ RITEHE) using new “black technology” for peeling,
with 100% fruit juice for endless enjoyment of natural juicy flavour,
thereby bringing trendy, healthy and stress-relieving experiences to
consumers; and each box of “Want Power” “Billion Probiotic Roll” (f&
B&%) contains 2.1 billion US-imported active probiotics BC30, which
remains viable at room temperature and reaches the stomach and
intestines alive, thus empowering snacks to have the function of quick
restoration of the intestinal balance.

With rising health awareness and changing lifestyles, more and more
people tend to embrace a low-sugar and high-fiber diet of food with
health benefits. The Group will develop more low-sugar and reduced-
sugar beverages, while developing food toy products, enabling
consumers to enjoy eating and playing simultaneously, which will meet
more consumer habits.

REVENUE

For 2024FY, the total revenue of the Group was RMB23,510.7 million,
representing a slight decline of 0.3% as compared with that of the same
period in the previous year. The three major segments maintained a
balanced development trend, with the dairy products and beverages
segment accounting for approximately 52% of the total revenue, and the rice
crackers and snack foods segments together accounting for approximately
48%.

Rice crackers

For 2024FY, the revenue from the rice crackers segment declined by 1.2%
year-on-year to RMB5,903.8 million, which was mainly attributable to the
decline in revenue of gift packs by a high-single digit as a result of the weak
consumption during the Chinese New Year period. Excluding the gift packs,
the revenue of rice crackers increased by a low single-digit percentage
year-on-year in value term and a mid single-digit percentage year-on-year in
volume term. Facing market changes, the Group actively promoted channel
optimisation, launched gift packs of good value-for-money which are now
available throughout the year, and utilised scenario marketing to enhance
consumer stickiness. Benefitting from the diversified development of product
specifications and channels, both overseas markets and content e-commerce
channel achieved double-digit growth in rice cracker revenue.

BERE W& D

Management Discussion and Analysis
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REVENUE (continued)
Rice crackers (continued)

The Group will continue to deepen the innovation and upgrade of products
in the rice crackers segment, develop the healthy grain series, create new
thin rice crackers, launch new products continually featuring glutinous rice
and optimise the taste and form of our products to meet the diverse needs
of consumers for healthy snacks.

Dairy products and beverages

In 2024FY, the revenue from the dairy products and beverages segment
grew by 1.3% year-on-year to RMB12,108.6 million. Of which, revenue from
“Hot-Kid Milk” achieved low single-digit growth, and the revenue from the
beverages and others sub-category recorded a double-digit growth year-on-
year.

Benefitting from the diversified channel development, the dairy products
sub-category achieved rapid growth in snack specialty retail operations,
content e-commerce and OEM channels. Among them, “Want Want
Banana Milk” (BEREEFE493) gained further popularity thanks to its funny
image with “Banana and Cow” and the selling points of being healthy
and nutritious. Major products such as high-calcium pure milk and yogurt
continued to make a good revenue contribution, while the newly launched
strawberry milk also won market recognition. The Group will further expand
its product portfolio and plans to launch products that are healthy, youthful
and vibrant in the future to satisfy market needs and strengthen its brand
competitiveness.

Thanks to the intensive development of points of sale coupled with creative
themed marketing activities, the beverages sub-category achieved a rapid
growth in terms of its revenue in all channels, of which, “O-bubble Fruit Milk”
(O YA HI) maintained its double-digit growth in revenue. “Want Want Fruit
Forest” (BLEEH 5 R M) was well received by consumers for its dynamic
and innovative design as well as rich flavour, while the unsweetened tea
products and the functional drinks such as “Jing Bao” (¥)}&) and “Aloe
Action” (Z8}) captured the trend of wellness consumption.

Snack foods

For 2024FY, the snack foods segment achieved a revenue of RMB5,359.1
million, representing a decline of 2.6% as compared with that of the same
period in the previous year. The revenue of the popsicles sub-category
declined year-on-year in the first half of the financial year due to factors
such as weather and sales operational rhythm. However, the other snack
foods sub-categories grew steadily, with particular products such as Lonely
God (REkAl), Crunchy Chocolate Wafer Roll (2HE:) and Lovely Puff (23%),
each contributing an annual revenue of RMB100 million or above, achieving
record-high revenues in 2024FY.
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REVENUE (continued)
Snack foods (continued)

Popsicles sub-category achieved rapid year-on-year revenue growth in the
second half of 2024FY through the adjustment of its business organisation,
intensive channel development and improvement of shelf placement rate
at points of sales. The Group launched the “Gifts for Popsicles” (ZKik&
#8) surprise-oriented QR code scanning campaign for the creation of three
major new products, namely “Popsicle Burst” (& 77), “Cuo Cuo Popsicles”
(#4847K) and “Fruit Tea Popsicles” (3£%%/Kk) under the “Pop Ice” (k)
series, in preparation for the peak season of sales in the coming financial
year with an innovative product matrix.

COST OF SALES

The cost of sales of the Group for 2024FY amounted to RMB12,321.5
million, representing a decrease of 2.2% as compared with that of the same
period in the previous year. This was mainly attributable to the year-on-
year decrease in the unit cost of certain key raw materials and packaging
materials. The unit cost of imported whole milk powder, raw paper and
tinplate decreased by a high-single digit each year-on-year, while the unit
cost of white sugar and gelatin decreased by a mid-single digit and double
digits year-on-year, respectively.

The Group will continue to optimise the supply chain and production line
layout, improve the degree of equipment automation, and continue to
enhance its production management in order to quickly respond to the
increasingly diversified sales needs.

GROSS PROFIT

The gross profit margin of the Group for 2024FY increased by 1.0
percentage point to 47.6% as compared with that of the same period in the
previous year. This was mainly attributable to the decline in the unit cost
of certain key raw materials and packaging materials, causing the gross
profit margin to increase by approximately 1.4 percentage points, while the
adjustments to product mix due to channel diversification led to a slight year-
on-year decrease in the unit selling price of the Group, causing the gross
profit margin to decrease by approximately 0.4 percentage points year-on-
year. For the second half of 2024FY, although the milk powder cost for the
Group was under pressure due to the rising international milk powder prices,
the gross profit margin still increased by 0.6 percentage points to 47.9% as
compared to the first half of the financial year. The increase in gross profit
margin drove the gross profit to increase by 1.8% to RMB11,189.2 million as
compared with that of the same period in the previous year.
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GROSS PROFIT (continued)
Rice crackers

The gross profit margin of the rice crackers segment for 2024FY was 44.1%,
representing a decrease of 1.9 percentage points as compared with that
of the same period in the previous year. This was mainly attributable to a
slight decrease in the average selling price as a result of the adjustments to
product mix. However, there was a low single-digit growth in terms of sales
volume driven by overseas markets and content e-commerce channel. The
Group will continue to introduce products with unique new flavours and
enrich product specifications to consolidate product profitability.

Dairy products and beverages

The gross profit margin of the dairy products and beverages segment was
49.7% for 2024FY, representing an increase of 1.2 percentage points over
the same period of the previous year. This was mainly due to the year-
on-year decrease in the unit cost of imported milk powder and packaging
materials (raw paper and tinplate) by a high single-digit percentage
each. In the second half of 2024FY, the milk powder cost of the Group
was under pressure due to the increase in the international milk powder
prices, leading to a year-on-year decrease in the gross profit margin of
the dairy products and beverages segment in the second half of the year.
In 2025FY, it is expected that the global dairy market will be affected by
international trading policies, exchange rate fluctuations and other factors,
which will increase the uncertainties of the milk powder cost. The Group
will also continuously improve its diversified procurement strategy, refine
its inventory management, incessantly deepen its sales and distribution
network and promote product specification upgrade to maintain a good level
of profitability for this segment.

Snack foods

The gross profit margin of the snack foods segment was 44.5% for 2024FY,
representing an increase of 0.5 percentage points over the same period last
year. It was mainly attributable to the enhancement of the diversification
benefits brought about by the optimisation of product mix and the launch of
new products with high gross profit margin. In addition, the decrease in the
unit cost of sugar and gelatin as compared with that of the same period in
the previous year also contributed to the improvement in gross profit margin
for this segment.

The Group will continue to pursue lean production, improve the automation
level, optimise production and the supply chain layout, launch new products
which are competitive and differentiated and expand the product price range
to enhance the profitability of the segment.

BERE W& D

Management Discussion and Analysis

EHE)

2024 FE R RBEERE44.1% » BREF
R THEIIEEIH - EREREEN
FARYTHHEEEKKEE TR BRHES
EEImERAREFTRETD  BRKE
NEHRE - SEBFEELSEH O
ER ZEERAK UZEERERGE
B

AR ECEHE

2024 FE AR ERBHEEFERL9.7% » B
EZFERBEA12EEDE - R EODP
0 R SREEMBEMERARKE
TR ESEMETE o 2024 FTHF -
SEE IR ERERREBER K RDRER L
RMAR > SETEFARRKBEER
KRE LT - 520258 F  2HRARR
TESEREZHBR EXFHEREZS
& MRERERTREEMEEN  £8tE
ERH S ENRERE  BALE
FEE  TEHFRCHEERERRMGE  #
BERAEKAR  RIEZARERFHNER

IKEE o

KERmE

2024 FRB R RBERNEL445% 0 B X
FRIMEAOSBEEDE - EREREEN
BN EANFTROERRATZREN
ZulbdaE URARE  HBRSENER
RAREXERH TR  HEZBEENER
b o

EEXTEERBELEE RSABLKX
¥ BEEENEEREGE  MEHASR
BEINERLH R TEERERT
LR SR EmBERNEED -

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited






ANNUAL REPORT ¢ 2024/2025F

3

DISTRIBUTION COSTS

The distribution costs for 2024FY slightly increased by 0.2% or RMB5.63
million as compared to that of 2023FY to RMB3,026.9 million. Distribution
costs as a percentage of revenue increased by 0.1 percentage points to
12.9% as compared with that of 2023FY, which was mainly attributable to
the increase of 0.2 percentage points in each of advertising and promotion
expenses to revenue ratio and transportation expense to revenue ratio to
2.7% and 3.9%, respectively. Other expenses (including staffing expenses)
to revenue ratio was 6.3%, representing a decrease of 0.3 percentage
points as compared with that of 2023FY.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The administrative expenses for 2024FY decreased by 1.2% to RMB3,008.1
million as compared to that of 2023FY. The administrative expenses to
revenue ratio was 12.8%, representing a decrease of 0.1 percentage points
as compared to that of 2023FY.

OPERATING PROFIT

Thanks to the improvement in gross profit margin, the Group’s operating
profit for 2024FY increased by RMB227.6 million or 4.1% year-on-year to
RMB5,837.4 million. The operating profit margin was 24.8%, representing
an increase of 1.0 percentage point as compared with that of 2023FY.

FINANCE COSTS

The finance costs of the Group for 2024FY amounted to RMB176.2 million,
representing a decrease of RMB105.6 million as compared with that of
2023FY. The decrease in finance costs was mainly attributable to the
replacement of the USD denominated borrowings (with higher interest rates)
with RMB denominated borrowings (with lower interest rates) and a slight
decrease in the average borrowings balance.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group’s income tax expense for 2024FY amounted to RMB1,411.2
million, and the income tax rate was 24.6%, representing a decrease of
1.7 percentage points as compared with that of 2023FY. The decrease in
income tax rate was mainly attributable to an improvement in the Group’s
profit before tax due to the RMB denominated borrowings (in low interest
rates) of our overseas subsidiaries leading to a decrease in finance costs;
meanwhile, the improvement in the profit of overseas businesses also
positively contributed to the lowering in the Group’s income tax rate.
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS

OF THE COMPANY

In summary, profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for 2024FY
increased by 8.6% as compared to that of 2023FY to RMB4,335.6 million,
and the margin of profit attributable to equity holders increased by 1.5
percentage points as compared with that of the same period in the previous
year to 18.4%.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash and borrowings

As at 31 March 2025, the net cash of the Group (cash and bank deposits
(including long-term bank deposits) net of borrowings) amounted to
RMB11,282.8 million, representing an increase of RMB627.6 million as
compared with that as at 31 March 2024 (RMB10,655.2 million).

The Group finances its operations and capital expenditure primarily by
cash flows generated from internal operations as well as credit facilities
provided by its principal banks. As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s cash
and bank deposits (including long-term bank deposits of RMB7,091.0
million) amounted to RMB15,437.5 million (in which RMB accounted for
approximately 96%, being approximately RMB14,747.4 million), representing
a decrease of RMB568.8 million as compared with RMB16,006.3 million as
at 31 March 2024.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s total borrowings amounted to RMB4,154.7
million, representing a decrease of RMB1,196.4 million as compared with
the balance as at 31 March 2024 (RMB5,351.1 million), mainly representing
RMB denominated borrowings, which accounted for over 96% of total
borrowings. Among which, short-term borrowings amounted to RMB3,654.6
million, representing an increase of RMB765.3 million as compared with
those as at 31 March 2024 (RMB2,889.3 million); and long-term borrowings
amounted to RMB500.1 million, representing a decrease of RMB1,961.7
million as compared with those as at 31 March 2024 (RMB2,461.8 million).
As at 31 March 2025, 100% of the Group’s borrowings bore interest at fixed
interest rates.

The Group’s net gearing ratio (total borrowings net of cash and bank
deposits (including long-term bank deposits) as a ratio of total equity
(excluding non-controlling interests) at the end of the period) as at 31 March
2025 was -0.64 time (31 March 2024: -0.65 time). At present, the Group
maintains sufficient cash and available banking credit facilities for its working
capital requirements and for capitalising on any investment opportunities in
the future. The management will also make prudent financial arrangements
and decisions to address changes in the domestic and international financial
environments at any time.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

(continued)
Cash flows

For 2024FY, a net cash inflow of RMB4,161.6 million was generated from
the Group’s operating activities; the net cash outflow from financing activities
was RMB4,161.0 million, mainly due to the cash outflow from dividend
payment of RMB2,766.9 million and the net outflow from repayment of
borrowings of RMB1,202.5 million; the net cash outflow from investing
activities was RMB48.0 million. Finally, the cash and bank deposits as of
31 March 2025 were RMB8,346.5 million, plus long-term bank deposits of
RMB7,091.0 million, adding up to a total of RMB15,437.5 million.

Capital expenditure

For 2024FY, the Group’s capital expenditure amounted to RMB634.6 million,
representing an increase of 56.4% or RMB228.9 million from RMB405.7
million in 2023FY. The Group invested approximately RMB111.3 million,
RMB111.7 million and RMB174.2 million, respectively, on the expansion
of production plants and equipment for the three key product segments
(rice crackers, dairy products and beverages, and snack foods segments),
which was mainly due to the upgrade of some of the domestic old plants
and production facilities to meet the needs for the Group’s future growth. In
addition, the Group also made some investments in information facilities,
packaging facilities and other fixed assets.

The above capital expenditure was financed mainly by the internally
generated cash flows of the Company and its banking credit facilities.

Inventory analysis

The inventory consists primarily of finished goods, goods in transit, and work
in progress for rice crackers, dairy products and beverages, snack foods,
and other products segments, as well as raw materials and packaging
materials.

The following table sets forth the number of the Group’s inventory turnover
days for the year ended 31 March 2025 and for the year ended 31 March
2024:

For the year ended
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For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

BZE 2025 F HZE 2024 F
3HA31HLEE 3A31 HLEEE
Inventory turnover days FERABXH 74 81

The inventory turnover days decreased by 7 days to 74 days as compared
with the beginning of the period, benefitting from the improvement in supply
chain and working capital efficiency.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

(continued)
Inventory analysis (continued)

As at 31 March 2025, inventory amounted to RMB2,576.1 million,
representing an increase of RMB161.0 million as compared with
RMB2,415.1 million as at 31 March 2024.

Trade receivables

The Group’s trade receivables represent the receivables from its credit sales
to customers. The terms of credit of the Group granted to our customers
usually range from 60 to 90 days. The Group’s sales to most of the
customers in China are conducted on a cash-on-delivery basis. The Group
only grants credit sales to customers in modern distribution channels and
certain emerging channels, who then on-sell the products to end-consumers
of the Group.

The following table sets forth the number of the Group’s trade receivables
turnover days for the year ended 31 March 2025 and for the year ended 31
March 2024:

For the year ended
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For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

BZE 2025 F BZE 2024 F

3A3LBLEE 3R 31 HLEEFE

Trade receivables turnover days e AENEEEPS 13 13
Trade payables BSREMAR

The Group’s trade payables are mainly related to the purchase of raw
materials on credit from its suppliers with credit terms generally between 30
days and 60 days after the date of receipt of goods and invoices.

The following table sets forth the number of the Group’s trade payables
turnover days for the year ended 31 March 2025 and for the year ended 31
March 2024:

For the year ended
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For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

HZE 2025 F BZE 2024 F

3HA3LBLEE 3A31BLEFE

Trade payables turnover days B 5 EARAEXE 28 29
Pledge of assets EEER

As at 31 March 2025, none of the assets of the Group was pledged.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
OF EMPLOYEES

For 2024FY, the average number of employees of the Group was
approximately 39,574, representing a decrease of 313 employees as
compared with the average number of employees for the year ended 31
March 2024. The total remuneration expenses for 2024FY amounted to
RMB4,557.9 million, representing an increase of RMB35.54 million or
0.8% as compared with the total remuneration expenses for 2023FY. The
remuneration package for the employees includes fixed salary, commissions
and allowances (where applicable), and performance-based year-end
bonuses having regard to the performance of the Group and that of the
individual employee.

The Group always cares about and has invested a significant amount
of resources in continuing education and training programmes for its
employees. Training courses, both external and internal, are also provided
by the Group to relevant staff as and when required to constantly improve
their professional knowledge and skills.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The presentation currency of the Group is RMB, but the Company’s
functional currency is still USD. More than 90% of the Group’s operating
activities are conducted in the Chinese Mainland and the Chinese Mainland
subsidiaries’ functional currency is RMB. The Group’s foreign exchange
risks arise mainly from the procurement of raw materials and equipment
from overseas, overseas dividend payments, certain recognised assets or
liabilities, and borrowings denominated in RMB of the subsidiaries of which
functional currency is USD.

DIVIDEND

The Company has always been implementing its policy of returning most
of its surplus capital to its shareholders by distributing cash dividends and
conducting share repurchases in a prudent manner.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of US2.04 cents
per share for the 2024FY, amounting to approximately US$241 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,740 million) (2023FY: US3.30 cents
per share, amounting to approximately US$390 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB2,790 million)). The decrease in dividends compared
to those of last year was mainly due to the fact that in response to the
uncertainties of the financial markets, it was proposed to further reduce
bank borrowings using our own funds and to reserve funds for increasing
capital expenditures and seizing possible investment opportunities. In the
future, the Company will dynamically adjust its capital allocation strategy
based on any changes in the operating environment to ensure the Group’s
competitiveness in the medium and long term.
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Corporate Governance Report

Our Company, together with its subsidiaries, are committed to maintaining
and upholding high standards of corporate governance practices and
procedures. We recognise the value and importance of achieving high
corporate governance standards to promote corporate transparency and
accountability, better manage risks and protect stakeholders’ interests.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

We had, throughout the year ended 31 March 2025, based our corporate
governance practices on the principles of good corporate governance and
complied with the code provisions set out in Part 2 of Appendix C1, the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”), except for the deviation from the code provision C.2.1 for
the reasons explained in this Corporate Governance Report.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance practices
with reference to the latest developments in corporate governance. The
key corporate governance principles and practices of our Company are
summarised below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

We have adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules regarding directors’ securities transactions. Formal written notices,
together with a copy of the Model Code, are sent to our directors (“Directors”)
prior to the commencement of the periods of 30 days immediately preceding
the publication date of our interim results and 60 days immediately
preceding the publication date of our annual results, as a reminder that
Directors must not deal in any securities of the Company during those
periods up to and including the date of publication of the results. Having
made specific enquiries with our Directors, all of them confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
regarding directors’ securities transactions throughout the year ended 31
March 2025.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Roles of the Board

The Board assumes responsibility for the leadership and control of our
Group and is also collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Group by directing and supervising its affairs. Key matters and decisions
which are reserved for the Board include those relating to:

. establishing the Group’s purpose, values and strategic directions and
ascertaining that they are aligned with the Group’s culture, and setting
the objectives and plans in accordance therewith;

. overseeing and evaluating the Group’s operating and financial
performance;

. the approval of our Group’s interim and annual financial results and
the publication thereof, major financial arrangements and investment
projects, material contracts and transactions, notifiable transactions,
non-exempt connected transactions/continuing connected
transactions, declarations of dividend, Directors’ appointment or re-
election following the recommendations by the Nomination Committee
and other matters which need to be dealt with by the Board;

. ensuring that appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems are in place and overseeing management in the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems;

. governance and oversight of environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) matters, as well as assessment and management of material
ESG risks; and

. ensuring our Group has in place adequate accounting systems and
ensuring appropriate human resources and adequate resources,
training programmes and budget to fulfill the accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions as well as those relating to the ESG
performance and reporting.

Our management team, which possesses extensive experience and industry
knowledge, is led by the executive Directors and has been delegated by the
Board with the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management
and implementation of strategies approved by the Board in relation to the
business and operations of our Group. In addition, the Board has also
delegated certain specific responsibilities to various Board committees,
namely, the audit and risk management committee (the “Audit and Risk
Management Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and the strategy committee (the “Strategy Committee”). Each of the Board
committees operates in accordance with its respective terms of reference
which clearly defines its respective duties and authorities. Details of these
committees are set out further on pages 50 to 61 in this Annual Report.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Roles of the Board (continued)

In order to facilitate and assist the Board in promoting and managing ESG
matters of the Group, such as relevant strategies and policies, initiatives,
performance and reporting, the ESG Committee was established in August
2020 with the authorities and responsibilities as stated in its terms of
reference.

Corporate governance functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as specified in the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, including:

* to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

e to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management;

* to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

* to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the employees and the Directors of the
Company; and

* to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions set out
in the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Composition of the Board

As at 31 March 2025, the Board consisted of 14 Directors, comprising 7
executive Directors, 2 non-executive Directors and 5 independent non-
executive Directors, as below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung

Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia (Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung (Chief Marketing Officer)
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui

Ms. Lai Hong Yee

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Maki Haruo

Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Pei Kerwei

Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen

Mr. Lee Kwok Ming

Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang

Mrs. Kong Ho Pui King, Stella
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationship amongst them (if
any) are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management”
in this Annual Report. In addition, the latest list of Directors of the Company
with their roles and functions is available on our website and that of the HK
Stock Exchange.

We have arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance for
our Directors and officers.

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made by shareholders at a general
meeting or by the Board upon recommendation by the Nomination
Committee. We have a Director Nomination Policy in place which sets
out the process and criteria for evaluating, selecting and recommending
candidates to the Board for nomination and appointment. In identifying and
selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the Nomination Committee
would consider the candidate’s character, integrity, qualifications,
experience, independence and other relevant criteria necessary to
complement our corporate strategy with due regard to the benefits of
diversity of the Board before putting forward a recommendation to the Board,
including his/her role and function, and Board committee membership. The
Board would consider the recommendation and decide on the appointment.

The Company has entered into formal letters of appointment with all
Directors setting out their duties and major terms and conditions of their
appointments.

Pursuant to the articles of association of our Company (the “Articles of
Association”), all our Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and at each annual general meeting, one-third of
our Directors for the time being or, if the number is not a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation and be eligible for re-election. Our non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors do not have specific terms of
appointment.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors (continued)

The Atrticles of Association also provide that any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office
only until the first annual general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting, but
shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors who will retire by
rotation.

The Directors who shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 26 August 2025 (the “2025 AGM”)
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election are set out on page 87 in
this Annual Report.

Independence of independent non-executive Directors

We have complied with Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules in relation
to the appointment of a sufficient number of independent non-executive
Directors and the appointment of at least one independent non-executive
Director with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Each independent non-executive Director has also demonstrated his/
her ability to provide an independent view to the Company’s matters and
valuable contributions to the Company during his/her term of office and each
of them is neither interested in the securities or business of the Company
nor connected with any Director, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company. We have also received a written
confirmation from each independent non-executive Director confirming his/
her independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
consideration was also given to all independent non-executive Directors who
have served on the Board for more than nine years. We therefore consider
each of them to be independent and believe that each of them will continue
to contribute to the Company and the Board committees he/she serves and
fulfill the roles of independent non-executive Director.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an
independent non-executive Director at the general meeting, the circular to
shareholders of the Company would include information on the process for
identifying the individual and why the Board believes the individual should
be elected and the reasons why it considers the individual is independent;
and perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can bring to the
Board and how the individual contributes to the diversity of the Board.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independence of independent non-executive Directors (continued)

In cases where an independent non-executive Director has served more
than nine years, such Director’s further appointment would be subject
to assessment of independence and suitability for re-election by the
Nomination Committee followed by the Board’s determination and separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders of the Company. The circular
to shareholders, accompanying that resolution, would set out the Board’s
determination of his/her continued independence and the factors considered
in such determination, and the reasons for recommending his/her re-
election, including the expertise, experience and diversity he/she contributes
to the Board.

Dr. Pei Kerwei, our independent non-executive Director, has served on the
Board for more than 9 years since November 2007. The Board is satisfied
that Dr. Pei has the required integrity, attributes, profound knowledge and
experience, professional accounting qualification and professionalism to
continue to fulfill the roles of an independent non-executive Director and
considers that Dr. Pei is a highly valued and respectable member of the
Board. Dr. Pei has demonstrated his ability to provide an independent
view to the Company’s matters and valuable contributions to the Company
during his term of office. In addition, he is neither interested in the securities
or business of the Company nor connected with any Director, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company.
Taking into consideration of the above, the Board is of the view that Dr. Pei
remains independent notwithstanding the length of period of his service.
The Board considers that Dr. Pei can continue to bring to the Board and the
Board committees he serves, and contribute to the diversity of the Board
with, his own perspective, skills and experience, in particular, his extensive
experience in accountancy and the insights gained from his professor career
as well as the positions held with various listed companies and multinational
enterprises.

The independent non-executive Directors are expressly identified as such
in all corporate communications of the Company that disclose the names of
the Directors.

Mechanism on obtaining independent views and advice to the Board

The Company recognises that Board independence is important in good
corporate governance and to ensure an effective operation of the Board.
The Board has established a mechanism to ensure independent views and
input are available to the Board.

There are five independent non-executive Directors on the Board of
Directors of the Company, who have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and expertise to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning and have provided independent and appropriate
advice to the Board that enabled effective independent judgement on
corporate actions and operations.

The Nomination Committee assesses the independence, qualification
and time commitment of a candidate who is nominated to be a new
independent non-executive Director before appointment, and the continued
independence of independent non-executive Directors on an annual basis.

The Chairman of the Board holds meeting with the independent non-
executive Directors without the presence of other Directors at least annually.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Mechanism on obtaining independent views and advice to the
Board (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2025, each independent non-executive
Director actively attended the Board meetings and engaged in the
discussion and Board’s decision making process. Each of them has
also demonstrated his/her ability to provide an independent view to the
Company’s matters and valuable contributions to the Company. In addition,
all Directors may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at our Company’s expense for discharging their
duties to the Company. All Directors are also encouraged to speak freely
and express their views without influence from other Directors during the
Board meetings and/or Board committee meetings.

In addition, there was a meeting between Mr.Tsai Eng-Meng and all
the independent non-executive Directors, without the presence of other
Directors, held in March 2025.

The Board has reviewed and will continue to review this mechanism of
obtaining independent views and advice on an annual basis to ensure the
implementation and effectiveness of this mechanism.

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly on a quarterly basis with additional meetings
being arranged as and when necessary.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, other than written resolutions passed
by all the Directors, seven Board meetings were held mainly to:

. review and discuss the Group’s strategies and business development
plans to navigate the challenges and opportunities presented by the
changing market and industry landscape;

. review and monitor the Group’s operating and financial performance;

. consider and approve various investment projects and regularly follow
up on the fund establishment and operation;

. receive the reports from the Board Committees and the ESG
Committee;

. oversee the risk management and internal control systems and
ensuring their effectiveness;

. review ESG-related matters, including core ESG strategies, related
ESG targets and their progress;

. consider and approve connected transactions and non-exempt
continuing connected transactions;

. review and approve the financial results for the year ended 31 March
2024 and for the six months ended 30 September 2024 and the
publication thereof;
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board meetings (continued)

make recommendation of the final dividend, re-election of Directors,
re-appointment of external auditor and amendments to the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association and adoption of the new
memorandum and articles of association for shareholders’ approval at
the 2024 AGM;

review and approve the disclosures in the interim and annual reports,
corporate governance report and ESG report with regards to the
Company’s compliance with the Listing Rules, CG Code and ESG
Reporting Guide; and

to grant the clearance for Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng to deal in the Company’s
securities and to appoint designated Directors for the specific purpose
of receiving the notifications and issuing the written acknowledgements
to Mr. Tsai for dealing in the Company’s securities in accordance with
the requirement of the Model Code.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company convened an annual
general meeting.

Directors’/Committee members’ attendance

Directors’/Committee members’ attendance at the Board meetings, Board
committee meetings and annual general meeting during the year ended 31
March 2025 is set out in the following table.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Directors’/Committee members’ attendance (continued)

Notes:

M

)

(©)

4)

®)

(6)

)

The denominator number represents the maximum number of meetings
held during the period in which the individual was a Board member or Board
committee member (as the case may be). “N/A” denotes not applicable.

The 2024 AGM held on 27 August 2024.

Chairman of the Board and Strategy Committee.

Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung, Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia, Mr. Huang
Yung-Sung, Mr. Chu Chi-Wen, Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui, Mr. Maki Haruo and Mr.
Cheng Wen-Hsien did not attend the two Board meetings that were specifically
called to consider certain connected and continuing connected transactions
as each of them was considered to have or may have an interest in the
transactions pursuant to the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules and
the Articles of Association as well as the Company’s corporate governance
practices. Accordingly, they did not vote on the Board resolutions approving the
transactions.

The Board, having considered the directorships and major commitments of
each Director and the attendance rate of each Director at Board meetings
and applicable Board committee meetings, is satisfied with the level of time
commitment given by each Director in fulfilling his/her responsibilities as a
Director during the year ended 31 March 2025.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Proceedings

Regular Board meetings for each year are generally scheduled in advance
to give Directors adequate time to plan their schedules to attend the
meetings. Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board meetings, reasonable
notice would be given.

One of the important roles of the Chairman is to lead the Board to ensure
that the Board operates effectively and fully performs its responsibilities. All
Directors are encouraged to actively participate in the discussion at Board
meetings, and the Chairman has allowed sufficient time for discussion of
issues to ensure that Board decisions fairly reflect the consensus of the
Board.

The Chairman has ensured that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman has delegated
the responsibility for drawing up the agenda for each Board meeting to the
company secretary. The agenda and the accompanying Board papers are
generally circulated to all Directors at least three days before the intended
date of a regular Board meeting (and as soon as practicable for ad hoc
Board meetings). Directors are invited to include any matters which they
believe to be appropriate in the agenda of regular Board meetings and
they have full and direct access to the advice and services of the company
secretary whenever necessary. The Chairman has also ensured that all the
Directors are properly briefed on issues to be discussed at Board meetings,
and that all the Directors would receive adequate information, which is
complete and reliable, in a timely manner.

The Chairman is also responsible for promoting a culture of openness
and debate, facilitating the effective contribution of the Directors (and the
non-executive Directors in particular) and ensuring constructive relations
between the executive and the non-executive Directors. The Chairman
also has to ensure at least one meeting is held with the independent non-
executive Directors each year without the presence of other Directors.

Minutes of the Board and Board Committee meetings are recorded in
sufficient detail regarding matters considered by the Board and Board
Committees and decisions reached at the meetings, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed at the meetings (if any).
Draft minutes of each Board meeting and Board committee meetings are
sent to Directors for their comments before being tabled at the following
Board meeting or Board committee meetings for approval. Minutes of
all Board meetings and meetings of Board committees are kept by the
company secretary and open for inspection at any reasonable time following
reasonable notice made by any Director.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Proceedings (continued)

If a substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) or a Director
has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which
the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be discussed in a
Board meeting instead of being dealt with by way of circulation of written
resolution and the interested Director will abstain from voting on the relevant
Board resolutions in which he/she or any of his/her close associates have a
material interest and that he/she will not be counted in the quorum present
at the Board meeting. Independent non-executive Directors who, and whose
close associates, have no material interests in the transaction should be
present at such Board meeting.

Training for Directors

Every newly appointed Director, on appointment, will attend an induction
training programme and receive a memorandum on the principal continuing
obligations and responsibilities to which the Company and its Directors are
subject under the Listing Rules and other laws and regulations.

Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Group’s performance,
reading materials on the updates on the latest developments and changes
in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and enforcement bulletins published by the HK Stock Exchange from time to
time in order to enable the Directors to discharge their duties. Directors may,
where necessary, seek independent professional advice at our Company’s
expense.

Directors are also encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Directors
are also invited to view the e-training and read related guidance materials
published by the HK Stock Exchange from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, external legal adviser was invited to
our Board meetings to provide an update on the recent amendments to the
Listing Rules and CG Code, and regulatory enforcement focus and case
studies. Directors were also provided with materials on anti-corruption and
corruption prevention.

EY consulting team was also invited to share with Directors at an audit
and risk management committee meeting (a) the development history of Al
application, (b) the transformation and evolution of Al usage and application
strategies and associated key success factors, and (c) certain success
stories of Al applications in retail industry, and the benefits achieved in each
case.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) BEE (5
Training for Directors (continued) BB (&)
A summary of the training received by our Directors during the year ended EENEE2025F3 831 B I FEMIESH
31 March 2025 is as follows: EHBMEMNT :

Types of training (Note)
Name of Directors EEME IR (MEE)
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng EOTIA%E A, B
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung B A, B
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia BEHEREE A B
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung BRMEE A B
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen RESEE A B
Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui EEAE S L A B
Ms. Lai Hong Yee REREzLT A B
Non-executive Directors HHITEE
Mr. Maki Haruo EERTE A B
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien BB E A, B
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHITEE
Dr. Pei Kerwei AnEEt A B
Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen HRIZEE A B
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming ZEEALE A B
Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang BEEEE A B
Mrs. Kong Ho Pui King, Stella STAAMAER 2 + A, B
Notes: {5

A. Reading materials relevant to directors’ duties and responsibilities and A. HEHEERENEENEHEREEERE

regulatory updates. EARIHT R} o

B. Attending or giving talks at briefings/in-house trainings/seminars/conferences/ B. HEHEEK BESRE 4X£TH -
forums or viewing e-training relevant to the business, directors’ duties, ESG: BIRERREAKREEERENER
corporate governance, ESG, financial reporting and risk management matters. = RIS e RESR N

S ARKEH B E RN LIE -
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same person.
Our Company deviates from this provision because Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng
performs both the roles of chairman and chief executive. Mr. Tsai is the
founder of our Group and has over 48 years of experience in the food and
beverages industry. Given the current stage of development of our Group,
the Board believes that vesting the two roles in the same person provides
our Company with strong and consistent leadership and facilitates the
implementation and execution of our Group’s business strategies. We shall
nevertheless review the structure from time to time in light of the prevailing
circumstances.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely the Remuneration
Committee, the Audit and Risk Management Committee (formerly known as
Audit Committee), the Nomination Committee and the Strategy Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the affairs of our Company. These
committees are established with written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the Nomination Committee are available on our website
and the website of the HK Stock Exchange. The composition of these
committees are set out on pages 2 to 3 of this Annual Report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 18 February 2008.
Details of the duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are
set out in its terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee is established
primarily for the purpose of ensuring that we can recruit, retain and motivate
high quality personnel who are essential to the success of our Group and
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Director and senior management.

As at 31 March 2025, the Remuneration Committee comprised five
independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director and was
chaired by an independent non-executive Director.

According to its terms of reference, the Remuneration Committee shall meet
at least once a year. The Remuneration Committee met five times during
the year ended 31 March 2025. The attendance record of the members at
the Remuneration Committee meeting during such period is shown on page
45 of this Annual Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2025:

. reviewed the bonus management system;

. reviewed the remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management and proposed relevant recommendations to the Board;

. considered and provided recommendations on the payment
of discretionary performance bonus for Directors and senior
management; and

. reviewed with the Group’s head of human resources centre the
functions of the e-HR system (a human resource management
platform), its implementation progress and results.

The remuneration package for the executive Directors and the senior
management consists of two parts, namely a fixed component and a
variable incentive.

The fixed component comprises mainly salary, retirement benefit scheme
contributions and other allowances. Besides, an individual who serves
on the Board as an executive Director is also entitled to receive a fixed
director fee. The fixed component is determined with reference to
individual’s experience and qualifications, responsibilities, service seniority,
remuneration benchmark in the same industry or industry with similar market
capitalisation and the prevailing market conditions.

The variable incentive comprises discretionary bonus, which amount
is determined by the Board based on the Group’s and individual work
performance in the following ways:

According to the terms of the service contract entered into between Mr. Tsai
Eng-Meng (our Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, executive Director and
the chairman of our Strategy Committee) and the Company, the payment of
discretionary bonus is at the absolute discretion of the Board and depends
on a range of factors including but not limited to the performance of the
Group, individual’s performance, and the remuneration policy which may
be proposed by the Board from time to time. If the consolidated profit of the
Group before deductions for taxes but after deductions of the non-controlling
interests achieves a certain minimum level and if the Board exercises its
discretion to award such bonus, the Board may determine, at its discretion,
an amount which is no less than the amount which is calculated having
regard to a predetermined formula or as may be determined otherwise by
the Board and agreed by Mr. Tsai provided that the amount shall not be
greater than the amount calculated according to the aforesaid formula.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The discretionary bonus for other executive Directors and the senior
management depends upon the portion of the Group’s consolidated
profits after taxation for the year being allocated at a progressive rate to a
bonus pool according to the level of changes in the Group’s consolidated
profits after taxation for the year over the previous year. The distribution
of the bonus pool for each department and individual depends upon the
performance of their respective department and the individual concerned.
We took a 360-degree performance evaluation on both qualitative and
quantitative key performance indicators to determine the distribution to each
department and individual which mainly include financial and operational
indicators as well as indicators which measure the satisfaction level of the
daily coordination departments on itself and the relevant individual.

Pursuant to the code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management (whose names appear in the
“Director and Senior Management” section) by band for the year ended 31
March 2025 is set out below:

EEZRAT @)

FMEESE (A
HtbMTESRSREBABZHBEREA
ARBAREEFHREAFNBE L -—FEH
MEBBIREE  RERLARIES S
B MBSHUNBRESFARFEFTES
FIRBEARBEME » HFERELT 360EEK
Zh o REEMREENBERARIER
IREEME  BEEE  URBERHE
BMABEBARBEAFENRZEER
% EABIFFIRETEA ZBEBRE -

REBLEERTARIEEASG  REZE
2025F3A31H L FERFMARE s 25
REBAE (B EEREREBAE]—
&) S E I T

Number of
individuals
In the band of #A BN F AE
RMB0.9263 (HK$1) AR#0.92637T (178 7T)
to RMB926,300 (HK$1,000,000) Z AR"926,3007t (1,000,000 ) 5
RMB926,301 (HK$1,000,001) AR%926,3017T (1,000,001 7T)
to RMB1,852,600 (HK$2,000,000) Z AK%1,852,6007T (2,000,000 7T) 4
RMB1,852,601 (HK$2,000,001) AK%1,852,6017T (2,000,001 7T)
to RMB2,778,900 (HK$3,000,000) Z AR¥2,778,9007T (3,000,0005%8 7T) 1
RMB2,778,901 (HK$3,000,001) AR#2,778,901 7T (3,000,001 7T)
to RMB3,705,200 (HK$4,000,000) £ ARK%3,705,2007T (4,000,000 7T) 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix D2 to the
Listing Rules are set out in note 35 and note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 18 February 2008 and was
renamed Audit and Risk Management Committee on 1 December 2018.
Details of the duties and responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee are set out in its terms of reference. The Audit and Risk
Management Committee is established primarily for the purposes of
overseeing and reviewing the Group’s financial reporting, risk management
and internal control systems and evaluating internal controls and auditing
processes.

As at 31 March 2025, the Audit and Risk Management Committee
comprised five independent non-executive Directors and was chaired by an
independent non-executive Director.

According to its terms of reference, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee shall meet at least twice a year. The Audit and Risk Management
Committee held five meetings during the year ended 31 March 2025 with
the external auditor present at two meetings. The attendance record of the
members at the Audit and Risk Management Committee meetings during
such period is shown on page 45 of this Annual Report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit and Risk
Management Committee during the year ended 31 March 2025:

. reviewed and considered various risk management assessment
optimisation projects and internal controls optimisation projects;

. reviewed the recent updates and development of accounting and
financial reporting standards and assessed their impacts on our
Group;

. considered the major accounting and auditing matters raised by
external auditor and management’s responses;

. discussed with the existing auditor on the nature and scope of the
audit prior to the commencement of the audit for the year ended 31
March 2025;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit and Risk Management Committee (continued)

reviewed the financial results, results announcements and financial
reports for the year ended 31 March 2024 and for the six months
ended 30 September 2024 with the management and external auditor,
and recommended them to the Board for approval;

reviewed the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions;

reviewed external auditor’'s independence and approved the scope
and nature of audit services and the audit fee;

reviewed the nature of the non-audit services provided or to be
provided by external auditor and ensured the non-audit services will
not impair the independence of external auditor;

reviewed quarterly internal audit reports in respect of the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management systems and procedures
of the Group, whistle-blowing reports and the internal audit plans
for the year ended 31 March 2025, prepared by our internal audit
department and reviewed the effectiveness of internal audit function;

reviewed the risk register and discussed with internal audit department
and respective risk owners the major identified risks, associated
risk factors, risk levels, related key risk indicators and early warning
system, risk assessment results and corresponding corrective
measures;

discussed with the external auditor on our Group’s financial reporting
functions, in particular on the adequacy of resources of our Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function, qualifications and
experience of our staff and their training programmes;

reviewed the Group’s whistle-blowing policy, anti-corruption and
bribery prevention system and work done on continuous optimization
of the integrity system, promoting the culture and providing related
training to raise staff awareness of integrity and self-discipline; and

made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of Ernst &
Young as the external auditor of the Company, which was subject to
the approval by shareholders at the 2024 AGM.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit and Risk Management Committee (continued)

Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees charged by Ernst & Young, the external auditor of the Company, in
respect of the audit and non-audit services rendered to the Group during the
year ended 31 March 2025 amounted to RMB4,150,000 and RMB1,320,000,
respectively. Non-audit services include tax advisory service, financial
accounting advisory service, advisory service on risk management and
controls and other services.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has been notified the nature
and fees of the non-audit services performed by the external auditor and
considered that such services will not affect the independence of the
external auditor.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 18 February 2008. Details
of the duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are set out in
its terms of reference. The Nomination Committee is established primarily
for the purpose of regularly reviewing the structure, size and composition of
the Board and making recommendations to the Board on nominations and
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

As at 31 March 2025, the Nomination Committee comprised five
independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director and was
chaired by an independent non-executive Director.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) with effect from August 2013.

The Board reviewed and adopted the revised Board Diversity Policy
effective from 1 December 2018 in order to align with the amendments to
the Listing Rules and CG Code which came into effect on 1 January 2019.

The Board Diversity Policy sets out the approach towards achieving diversity
on the Board. In considering the composition of the Board, the Board is of
the view that diversity can be considered from a number of perspectives,
including but not limited to professional qualifications, regional and industry
experience, educational and cultural background, skills, industry knowledge
and reputation, gender, ethnicity, language skills and length of service. The
above perspectives will be taken into account in determining the optimal
composition of the Board and where possible, should be balanced among
one another as appropriate. Appointments to the Board will be made based
on merits and the contributions that the individual is expected to bring to
the Board, with due regard to the benefits of diversity in the Board. The
Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy on an ongoing basis.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

Board Diversity Policy (continued)

In terms of gender diversity, the Board aims to maintain at least one
Director of different gender at all times. The Board currently has two female
Directors, one as an executive Director and the other as an independent
non-executive Director. Therefore, the Board is provided with female director
perspectives and contributions and is satisfied with the current gender mix
of the Board and that gender diversity has been achieved at the Board level.
This said, we will continue to strive to achieve and maintain an appropriate
balance of gender diversity by conducting regular review with reference
to the business model and operational needs of the Group and the overall
balance of different diversity perspectives set out in the Board Diversity
Policy and will ensure that the Board composition complies with the Listing
Rules and reflects an appropriate mix of skills, experience and diversity that
are relevant to our strategies, governance, and business and contribute
to the Board’s effectiveness and efficiency. All aspects of diversity will be
considered as a whole in the selection of candidates for directorship.

We apply the same approach in achieving gender diversity in the Group’s
workforce (including its senior management). As at 31 March 2025, about
54% of the full-time employees of the Group were female employees. We
take into account various factors in workforce hiring. More details on the
Group’s diversity are set out in the ESG Report.

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a director nomination policy (the “Director
Nomination Policy”) effective from 1 December 2018.

The Director Nomination Policy aims to:

. set out the criteria and process in the nomination and appointment of
Directors of the Company;

. ensure that the Board of the Company has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company;
and

. ensure the Board’s continuity and appropriate leadership at Board
level.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

Director Nomination Policy (continued)

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the following
criteria should be considered by the Nomination Committee or the Board;

. Character and integrity;

. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy
that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy;

. Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the
Board;

. Requirement for the Board to have independent Directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate would
be considered independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

. Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and gender
diversity;

. Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties as
a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the Company;
and

. Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company’s
business and succession plan and where applicable, may be adopted
and/or amended by the Board and/or the Nomination Committee from
time to time for nomination of Directors and succession planning.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

Director Nomination Policy (continued)

The process in the nomination and appointment of Directors of the Company
is briefly described as below;

(a) Selection and Appointment of New Director

(i)  The Nomination Committee should, upon receipt of the proposal
on appointment of new Director and the biographical information
(or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.

(i) If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee should rank them by order of preference
based on the needs of the Company and reference check of
each candidate (where applicable).

(i) The Nomination Committee should then recommend to the
Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for directorship, as
applicable.

(iv) For any person nominated by a shareholder for election as a
Director at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee and/or the Board should evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
make recommendation to shareholders in respect of the proposed election
of Directors at the general meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

Director Nomination Policy (continued)
(b) Re-election of Director at General Meeting

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should review the
overall contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
Director and his/her level of participation and performance on
the Board;

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should also review
and determine whether the retiring Director continues to meet
the criteria as set out above;

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should then make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the proposed re-
election of Director at the general meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect a candidate as a
Director at the general meeting, the relevant information of the candidate will
be disclosed in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting in accordance with
the Listing Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the Director
Nomination Policy and where appropriate, makes recommendations on
changes to this Policy to the Board for consideration and approval.

According to its terms of reference, the Nomination Committee shall meet at
least twice a year. The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 31 March 2025. The attendance record of the members at the
Nomination Committee meetings during such period is shown on page 45 of
this Annual Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2025:

. reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and made
recommendation to the Board on the re-election of Directors at the
respective 2024 and 2025 AGM, having regard to the Directors’
contribution and performance;

. assessed the independence of all independent non-executive
Directors, consideration was given to Directors who have served on
the Board for more than nine years;

. reviewed non-executive Directors’ time commitment in performing their
duties; and
. reviewed the Board Diversity Policy of the Company.

Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee was established on 30 June 2010. Details of the
duties and responsibilities of the Strategy Committee are set out in its terms
of reference.

The Strategy Committee is established primarily for the purpose of working
closely with the Board in formulating the medium and long-term strategic
plans of our Group for the continuous growth and sustainable competitive
advantages of our Group. It also proactively addresses issues relating to
management succession planning and overall human resources planning
and makes recommendations to improve operational efficiencies and
enhance competitiveness in order to capture market opportunities and
tackle future challenges. It will also make recommendations to the Board on
material investment and financial decisions as well as the establishment,
development and expansion of the Group’s business in all aspects.

As at 31 March 2025, the Strategy Committee comprised seven executive

Directors and five independent non-executive Directors and was chaired by
our Chairman.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Strategy Committee (continued)

According to its terms of reference, the Strategy Committee shall
meet at least once a year. During the year ended 31 March 2025, the
Strategy Committee held a 2-day meeting in November 2024 and had
a comprehensive and in-depth discussion with heads of product line
business units, channel business units and overseas market development
units for the America and Asia Pacific centres on strategies in relation
to product development, marketing, channel management and business
operations, and measures to address the changing economic and
business environment, the evolving consumers’ consumption behavior
and competition landscape. The attendance record of the members at the
Strategy Committee meetings during the year is shown on page 45 of this
Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems of the Group:

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for establishing and
maintaining the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and
ensuring their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group’s risk management and internal control structure comprises the
Board, the Audit and Risk Management Committee, the internal audit team
and the management. To ensure the integrity and continuous effectiveness
of risk management and internal controls, such systems closely align with
the COSO framework with constant optimisation and enhancement. Such
systems are designed to achieve the following objectives:

i providing reasonable assurance of the compliance with relevant rules
and regulations of our business operations, and safeguard of assets;

ii ensuring key risks that may impact the Group’s performance are
appropriately defined and managed; and

iii ensuring reliable financial accounting records are maintained in
accordance with the relevant accounting standards and regulatory
reporting requirements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued) RiEEERMNEPEE (7
Risk Management System and its Main Features: EREERERTERE
The Group recognises that risk management is the prime responsibility of the AEBBRARAREEDNEEENETES

management that it has to identify, assess and monitor the risks relevant to
their business operations and take measures to mitigate risks in day-to-day
operations. Our internal audit team reviews the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, and regularly
reports to the management and the Audit and Risk Management Committee
on significant risks, results of risk analysis and status of risk mitigation
measures. The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Company
assists the Board in monitoring the effectiveness of risk management.

Our management team is equipped with internal control expertise to carry
out self-evaluation and assessment on the significant key risks so that
necessary measures would be taken to deal with the weak areas where
risks exist.

Our internal audit team reviews the Group’s risk management framework,
coordinates the risk identification and assessment procedures, strengthens
the communication with the management on the identified risks and impacts
to facilitate the implementation of risk mitigation measures, follows up the
progress of such measures, as well as summarising significant risks, other
risks and concerns in its quarterly report to the management and the Audit
and Risk Management Committee.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee discusses and reviews the risk
management and internal control systems with the internal audit team and
the management, and ensures that the Group has an effective system in
place to monitor and control the effectiveness of risk management.

Internal Control System and its Main Features:

The Group’s internal control activities are embedded in the operational
processes. The Group has clear written policies and operational procedures,
as well as the internal control system. All policies of the Group are conveyed
to the staff in a timely manner. A dedicated network platform is established
for the staff to access the Group’s policies. Regular training programmes
are also provided to ensure compliance with the code of conduct by all our
staff.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)
Internal Control System and its Main Features: (continued)

The Group attaches great importance to the construction of an anti-
corruption system. It has formulated anti-corruption policies and
continuously built up and advocated a corporate culture of integrity. The
Group has also set up the whistle-blowing mechanism, such as the reporting
hotline, mailbox, and others for internal staff and interested third parties
to report any actual or suspected occurrence of improper conduct in the
Group and the report can be made on an anonymous basis. The internal
audit team independently and objectively performs specific investigation on
such reported matters, formulates an appropriate confidentiality system to
avoid any form of harassment suffered by staff or interested third parties
who reported or cooperated with the investigation and sets graded rewards
based on the investigation results.

The Group’s internal audit team participates in the formulation of major
operational policies and procedures, performs audit on the implementation
of policies and assists the management in formulating countermeasures.

The Group’s internal audit team establishes standardised audit procedures
and develops the annual audit plan. Such procedures and plan are submitted
to the Audit and Risk Management Committee for approval. Internal audit
team puts the plan into execution as approved. The management performs
the self-assessment of internal control on the processes and procedures of
each operational cycle to obtain reasonable assurance that the internal control
is effective and to take measures to address the internal control weaknesses
identified. The internal audit team also audits the self-assessment results of the
management.

Our internal audit team communicates with the management the risks and
control weaknesses identified during the course of audit and recommends
for improvement measures. The management is responsible for ensuring
that the improvement measures are being implemented within a reasonable
timeframe whereas the internal audit team will conduct a follow-up review
to ensure that the improvement measures and solutions are effectively
implemented.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee receives quarterly reports from
the internal audit department which covers the internal audit plan, material
findings during the relevant period and the progress of implementation
of improvement measures by the management in response to the audit
findings. The quarterly reports also address matters concerned by the Audit
and Risk Management Committee members and the management, the
findings of special audit on specific key risk areas and recommendations for
improvement.

TERERRE

Corporate Governance Report

RiREERMNEBEE (F
AEPEERAERTERSEY . (&)
TEESEERRBERERER 2
EREBHEE  WFEZRMNEERE
B2 - AEETFCREERE LI
FEREMS EEIRMEBEFEF=58H
HYIRAEENEMERSRELUTETH
EHEER > WESERER - AHNEZRE
BREBRAEBLEHANITEEAE -
EHEENREEFILUERE I HHESE=
FREBFREEHAETAMEZEAER
WERE  MIRKIEAEERBED RER o

FEEANECEGRSREREEALE
BRMBFIE  BRERATER K
1% B & T 8 5 T R T4 I

FEERNBEZEBRRLREERERF
HEFEELTE  ZRFRITIERSE
ERkEREEZSSHE - HHERERAR
BEZEBEHT EEERIEERRN
ERRRHITANEZENERFEUSE
R 7E 0 &P BE 4% 8 30 PR EUFE Y #5 e A4 IE A
BRENRBEFERRE - RBELZER
TEEREERBHIMENER -

NHEZEBRSREEEEEERBRESD
BRENERIBNEGRERESNRER
BIR EEBAERIEAEHRAE
R EEE  ANEXERSETRER
o BRAEEER S RCENER °

ERREREEEESETWEANER
EEREXNRE - REBERBELE
2 HEENERBRRNRERRRE
BEEITHEEENRHER - TERE
TERIELREBEERZEENERE
HEEMBEINER SRS EBERARE
BNERERRARKEESR -

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited



z L 2024/20255 8 * ANNUAL REPORT 4{7

AN\ gy
BRERRE

Corporate Governance Report

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)
Internal Control System and its Main Features: (continued)

The Board reviews the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems in place during that full financial year on a quarterly basis. For
the year ended 31 March 2025, the Board assessed the effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems of the Company and
its subsidiaries by considering reviews performed by the Audit and Risk
Management Committee with the assistance of the management team
and internal audit team. The annual review also considered the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions. Based on the assessment made by the Audit and
Risk Management Committee, management team and the internal audit
team, the Board is satisfied that there is an ongoing process in place for
identifying, assessing and managing the significant risks and material
internal controls (including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions) for our Group and the Board considers the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group as effective and
adequate.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information:

i The Company is aware of the requirement of timely disclosure of
inside information under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the
Listing Rules. Inside information shall be announced by designated
persons authorised to act as spokespersons in strict accordance with
the applicable laws and enactments prevailing in Hong Kong, and with
reference to the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued
by the Securities and Futures Commission; and

ii The Company has incorporated in its code of conduct for staff strict
prohibition on unauthorised disclosure or use of confidential and inside
information. Furthermore, employees at certain levels and posts are
also required to sign the Agreement on Code of Ethics, Confidentiality
Obligations and Resolving Conflict of Interests.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2025 and of the
financial performance and cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2025,
and for ensuring that such statements are prepared in accordance with the
statutory requirements and the applicable accounting standards.

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A

RiEERRAPERE
AMEERGERTESE (&)
EESHNEAMBEERAEBNWRR
TERABEZERGETTIERS - 8%
2025 3A31HILEFE ELEEFBELR
BAREEZEEN A EEEENRBELE
BRI THAARREMBARZERE
B ASEIE RS 2 ABGETRE - EER
HTZERREEETE RERMEER
BESEANER BEIERREHESR
#M > URETIMESHEIREREGEESR
REXRE - REEZRRAKREEZES - E
BERAPEZEREL 2 AEES
BEBEETEFURR  FHMEREELAE
BfESzERRRREENRNIDEZE (B
BT EE « BEEERSREEURER
EEIEL) ESSHURIFE  HES
ERAREENRMEERABEIZREZT)
BHREH -

RERBHAFTES

[ ARATHBREZBSFRBEGRG - £
mHRA - BHEREREFAMAREE
B BEERBREBRITERLIERE
ARE  WSRFESRPESKER
ZEEMEMA 2 AR EEHEES
1T HETALTEAZES AHIINA
i &

i AAFEEBRERLERERERER
FARBREANBEEENEEMAET
TR o 1A BEBR R EAH
EINERTCERRE - REE
MFIZ ERBEME ) ©

EERNGAMBRRZIRE

EERARSHREEASAUERRZE
£ ZEPUBHRRDEEM QA Fith KB
AR R EMB AR N2025F3 831 B KB
MR R B ZE2025F3A31 B IEEEWEHER
BREERE  UERAMBHRRIDREE
ERERBASTENRR -



ANNUAL REPORT ¢ 2024/2025F

>

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Details of the reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company
on the consolidated financial statements of our Group for the year ended 31
March 2025 are set out on pages 100 to 104 of this Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
The Company only has one class of shares. All shares are entitled to the
same voting rights and to dividends declared on a pari passu basis.

Method for convening an extraordinary general meeting

Any two or more shareholders, or any one shareholder which is a
recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)), holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company may, in accordance with the
requirements and procedures set out in the Articles of Association of the
Company, make a requisition to the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company and put forward proposals at the meeting.
The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written requisition which
must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong at Units 07-08, 7th Floor, CTF Life Tower,
No. 18 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward new
resolutions at general meetings under Cayman Islands company law or
the Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to put
forward a resolution may request the Company to convene an extraordinary
general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out above.

Method for nominating Directors

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person, other than Directors who offer
themselves for re-election, for election as a Director of the Company at any
general meeting (including an annual general meeting), the shareholder
shall lodge a written notice of his/her intention to propose such person for
election as a Director with the company secretary of the Company at Units
07-08, 7th Floor, CTF Life Tower, No. 18 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong during a period of at least seven days commencing no
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the meeting convened
for such election and ending no later than seven days prior to the date of
such meeting. Such written notice must be accompanied by a notice in
writing signed by the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to be
elected.

TERERRE

Corporate Governance Report

EERNGAMBERRCRE#E

KRRV BRI A B E 202538318 1k
FEZHEVBRR2BESETHFBEERN
REFREI00E104HE

B SRIEFIRORETS
AABER-EERRN - FEROESR
HRZREZEREREAMERZKRE

ARKRRERIRENT X

RELRAERMBASIBZRERER W
BRUALFBERRRAFLORT D2 -8R
BRAZBRRBEMN—& (B—BRTEEF
(FERBNEFEERXATIRT D2 —
BERAZRR  ARBEARDERZMARE
ARBEBEEERBHARRBRIAE I
RELREZZR - ARERZBNLET]
AREBEEEERA  YHREHZFERZ
ALTBERKERARANEBNIERS
B REBNENEEERE18HEE
REREHOTHEO7-08E ©

MEREQREHQAERMARIHES
RRITERRASLREFIABR - AR
RERBREZBRRUTZLABFERER
A ARKRRBEIAE -

RERBESNG X

fisl RERBRIEER BB A+ ERBRRAE LI
BEAESERINRRRAS (BERRE
FRE) LEERAANRES  ARBRA
BAANFLAWEEREMBEN (MUDE
BAENEEEHE18RARERE SO
7H807-08%) - KA EHEER A LE
HREF - EXZEABHZHREDL R
TR ZPREABFAERAREEESET
ZEBEMARIAG2BEEFRAHEH
B HETERZASEHHALRBLE -
ZEABAAN E—HHRERBER R
BABLHBRSECEREEREA

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited



z Sl 2024/20255 8 * ANNUAL REPORT

Y /M\Aiﬁi

Corporate Governance Report

PARTICULARS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)
Participation in general meetings

Each shareholder is entitled to receive notice of (in writing or by electronic
means) and attend every general meeting of the Company.

At any general meeting on a show of hands, every shareholder who is
present in person (or, in the case of a shareholder being a corporation by
its duly authorised representative) shall have one vote, and on a poll every
shareholder who is present in person (or, in the case of a shareholder
being a corporation by its duly authorised representative) or by proxy shall
have one vote for each share registered in his/her name in the register of
members of the Company. On a poll a shareholder entitled to more than
one vote is under no obligation to cast all his/her votes in the same way.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
The Board has established a shareholders communication policy with the
objectives of keeping shareholders and the investor community informed as
soon as reasonably practicable of the information on the Group and keeping
them abreast of the Company’s developments.

The Board recognises the importance of continuing communications
with our shareholders and investors, which include providing appropriate
channels for shareholders and investors to communicate their views on
various matters affecting the Company and for the Company soliciting and
understanding the views of shareholders and other stakeholders, such as
the Company’s annual general meetings (“AGM”), analyst presentations
following the release of the interim and annual results as well as
participation in investor conferences, etc..
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (continued)

The Company’s AGM is an important platform for direct communication
between the Board and its shareholders. The Chairman of the Board,
chairmen of all the Board committees and other Board members endeavor
to attend the AGM of the Company and answer queries from shareholders.
Pursuant to the CG Code, independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders and the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. The 2024 AGM was
held in Hong Kong on 27 August 2024. All Board members, including the
chairman of the Board and the chairmen of all the Board committees (or
in their absence, other members of the respective committees) and the
external auditor were available at the 2024 AGM to answer shareholders’
questions. The 2024 AGM circular containing the notice of the AGM
and other relevant information of the proposed resolutions were sent to
shareholders at least 20 business days before the 2024 AGM.

Attendance record of each individual Director at the 2024 AGM is shown on
page 45 of this Annual Report.

We maintain a website (www.want-want.com) to keep our shareholders and
the general public informed of our latest corporate news and development
and publish the corporate communications such as annual reports, interim
reports and circulars in printed form and on the website of the HK Stock
Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and on the Company’s website.

We always welcome shareholders’ and investors’ views and input.
Shareholders may send their enquires in writing to the Board by addressing
them to our company secretary. The contact details of our company
secretary are as follows:

Address: The Company Secretary

Want Want China Holdings Limited
Units 07-08, 7th Floor, CTF Life Tower
No. 18 Sheung Yuet Road

Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 27307780

Fax: (852) 27307781
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
(continued)

Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Board at the general meetings
of the Company. In addition, shareholders may contact Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the Hong Kong share registrar of
the Company, if they have any enquiries about their shareholdings and
entitlements to dividend.

For enquiries from institutional investors and securities analysts, please
contact our investor relations office at:

Address: The Investor Relations Office
Want Want China Holdings Limited
Units 07-08, 7th Floor, CTF Life Tower
No. 18 Sheung Yuet Road
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 27307780
Fax: (852) 27307781
Email: investor@want-want.com

The Board, having reviewed the existing measures under the shareholders
communication policy, is of the view that the shareholders communication
policy has been successfully implemented and remained effective during
the year. The Board will review the shareholders communication policy on a
regular basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Our company secretary, Ms. Lai Hong Yee, is a full-time employee of the
Company. For the year ended 31 March 2025, Ms. Lai confirmed that she
complied with the relevant professional training requirements under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company made amendments
to its memorandum and articles of association to bring it in line with
amendments made to the Listing Rules in relation to electronic
dissemination of corporate communications by listed issuers, and
incorporate certain housekeeping amendments by way of adoption of a
new set of memorandum and articles of association by a special resolution
passed by the shareholders at the 2024 AGM held on 27 August 2024. For
the details of the proposed amendments, please refer to the announcement
and circular of the Company dated 25 June 2024 and 19 July 2024
respectively. The new set of memorandum and articles of association is
available on the websites of the Company and the HK Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

TSAI Eng-Meng, aged 68, is our Chairman, Chief Executive Officer,
executive Director and also the chairman of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Tsai
is also a director of a number of the Group’s subsidiaries. He succeeded his
father to become the Group’s Chairman in April 1987. Mr. Tsai joined our
Group and began his career in the food and beverages industry in 1976 and
has over 48 years of experience in the industry. He was a council member of
the Standing Committee of Taiwan Confectionery, Biscuit and Floury Food
Industry Association, and the Food Development Association of Taiwan. In
June 2013, Mr. Tsai was awarded an honorary doctorate degree in business
studies from the Chinese Culture University in Taiwan in recognition of his
outstanding achievements in business operations and active contributions to
social welfare. In 2014, Mr. Tsai was included in the 2014 list of “The Best-
Performing CEOs in the World” released by Harvard Business Review. In
2018, Mr. Tsai won the honour of Meritorious Entrepreneur of the Chinese
Food Industry on the 40th Anniversary of Reform and Opening Up. Mr. Tsai
is a director of Want Power Holdings Limited and Top Quality Group Limited
(FBEREBE AR A F)) which have discloseable interests in shares of the
Company under Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Mr. Tsai is the father of Mr. Tsai Shao-
Chung and Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia and the uncle of Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien.

TSAI Shao-Chung, aged 44, is our executive Director and also a member
of our Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Strategy
Committee. Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung was our non-executive Director from
July 2009 to June 2019 and was re-designated as our executive Director
with effect from 1 July 2019. Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung is also a director of a
number of the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung joined our Group
in March 2001, following his graduation from the Canadian International
School in Singapore. He held various management positions within our
Group in several areas such as logistics, human resources, information
technology, planning and operations. Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung was a director
of IBF Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation) from June 2020 to May 2023. He has been a
director of the Straits Exchange Foundation since March 2009. Mr. Tsai
Shao-Chung is a director of Want Power Holdings Limited and Hot Kid Pte.
Ltd. which have discloseable interests in shares of the Company under Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong). Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung is the son of Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, the
elder brother of Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia and a cousin of Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

TSAI Wang-Chia, aged 40, is our Chief Operating Officer, executive
Director and a member of our Strategy Committee. He is also the chairman
of our ESG Committee. Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia is also a director of a number of
subsidiaries of our Group. Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia graduated from the Canadian
International School in Singapore in July 2003. He joined the Group in
April 2004 and has over 21 years of experience in the food and beverage
industry. He held various management positions within our Group such as
product marketing and planning in the snack foods business unit and had
also acted as a manager in the Chairman’s office. He was appointed as
the deputy general manager of the dairy business unit in May 2008 and
was promoted to vice president of the dairy and beverages business group
in 2009. He was appointed as the Chief Operating Officer of the Group in
December 2012. Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia was awarded the “Outstanding Youth
Award (Technology Innovation)” by the Chinese Institute of Food Science
and Technology in 2015. He is a director of Want Power Holdings Limited
and Hot Kid Pte. Ltd. which have discloseable interests in shares of the
Company under Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia is the son of Mr. Tsai
Eng-Meng, the younger brother of Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung and a cousin of Mr.
Cheng Wen-Hsien.

CHU Chi-Wen, aged 59, is our Chief Financial Officer, executive Director
and a member of our Strategy Committee. He is also a member of our
ESG Committee. Mr. Chu graduated from Michigan State University with a
master’s degree in economics in 1992. He also graduated with a master’s
degree in professional accountancy from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and Shanghai National Accounting Institute. In addition, he is a
fellow member of CPA Australia. Mr. Chu has over 32 years of experience
in financial management. Before joining our Group in April 1997, he had
worked in the finance sector for several companies in Taiwan region and
has acquired extensive experience in financial management.

HUANG Yung-Sung, aged 72, is our Chief Marketing Officer, executive
Director and also a member of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Huang is also
a director of a number of subsidiaries of our Group. Mr. Huang graduated
from Taiwan Minghsin Junior College of Technology with a degree in
engineering. Mr. Huang has more than 40 years of experience in sales
and marketing. He joined our Group in January 1985 and was responsible
for planning and marketing affairs. Mr. Huang was the Group’s general
manager for the East China region from 1995 to 1998, being responsible
for the Group’s operations within the region. In 1999, Mr. Huang became a
director of the Group’s international sales division, being responsible for the
Group’s international sales operation. From 2002 until his appointment as
the Group’s Chief Marketing Officer on 1 March 2015, Mr. Huang served as
the marketing director of the China region.
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DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

TSAI Ming-Hui, aged 57, is the general manager of the Group’s Southeast
Asia Development Department, executive Director and also a member
of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Tsai joined the Group in March 1995 and
has over 27 years of fast-moving consumer goods (“FMCG”) marketing
experience in the food and beverage industry. Mr. Tsai is mainly responsible
for the business development and marketing of the Group’s brands in
Southeast Asia market. Meanwhile, he is also direct responsible for the
sales and marketing of our products in Hong Kong and Macau. He is a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group and possesses extensive
international marketing management experience. Mr. Tsai graduated
from the Department of Mechanical Engineering of Hsinpu Institute of
Technology. He was the department heads of the Group’s Taiwan region
sales department, Shanghai HQ sales management department and Central
China sales department. He was the general manager of Shanghai modern
channel development business unit and the general manager of Hong Kong
and Macau regions.

LAI Hong Yee, aged 57, is our company secretary, executive Director and
also a member of our Strategy Committee. Ms. Lai is a director of Leading
Guide Hongkong Limited and Want Want Indonesia Holdings Pte. Limited,
both of which are subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Lai holds a Bachelor
Degree of Arts in accounting from the City University of Hong Kong. She
has over 33 years of experience in company secretarial, finance, accounting
and auditing fields. Ms. Lai joined the Group in February 2008. Prior to
joining our Group, Ms. Lai worked at Gemalto Technologies Asia Limited
as financial controller for over 8 years. She is a fellow member of both The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Ms. Lai is also a licensed
certified public accountant in lllinois and Washington, USA.

Non-executive Directors

MAKI Haruo, aged 74, is our non-executive Director. Mr. Maki is the
chairman and chief executive officer of ICCL, a listed company in Japan and
one of the leading rice cracker producers in Japan as well as our technical
cooperation partner. Mr. Maki graduated from Toyama National University
with a bachelor’s degree. Mr. Maki joined ICCL in 1976 and has served
ICCL for over 48 years, and was promoted to become its president in 1998
till his appointment as the chairman and chief executive officer of ICCL in
June 2023. Mr. Maki joined our Group in May 2001. He is a director of Want
Want Japan Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company.

CHENG Wen-Hsien, aged 62, is our non-executive Director. He graduated
from the Graduate School of Commerce of Waseda University with a
master’s degree in commerce. Mr. Cheng is the chairmen of Hunan Want
Want Hospital Investment Management Co., Ltd. and Hunan Want Want
Hospital. Mr. Cheng joined our Group in August 2004. Mr. Cheng is the
nephew of Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng and a cousin of Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung and
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent non-executive Directors

PEI Kerwei, aged 68, is our independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of our Nomination Committee and a member of our Audit and
Risk Management, Remuneration and Strategy Committees. He is also
a member of our ESG Committee. Dr. Pei joined our Group in November
2007.

Dr. Pei graduated from Southern lllinois University with a master’s degree in
accountancy and holds a doctorate degree in accounting from the University
of North Texas. Dr. Pei is Professor Emeritus of accountancy at the School
of Accountancy at the W.P. Carey School of Business at Arizona State
University. He was the Executive Dean of China Programs at W.P. Carey
School of Business at Arizona State University, director of the W.P. Carey
EMBA program in Shanghai, MiM Custom Corporate Program in China
and the co-director of W.P. Carey DBA in Global Financial Management.
Throughout his 36-year career at Arizona State University, Dr. Pei has held
the positions of assistant professor, associate professor and professor.

Dr. Pei has acted as a consultant for a number of multi-national companies,
including Motorola Inc., Intel Corporation, Bank of America Corporation,
Dial Corporation, Raytheon Company, Cisco Systems Inc. and Honeywell
International Inc..

Dr. Pei is an independent non-executive director of Zhong An Group
Limited, Zhejiang Expressway Co., Ltd. and AIM Vaccine Co., Ltd. and
served as an independent non-executive director of MMG Limited from
2015 to 2019, all being companies listed on the main board of the HK Stock
Exchange. Dr. Pei was an external director of China Merchants Group from
2015 to June 2022 and served as an external director of China Baowu Steel
Group Corporation Limited, the holding company of Baoshan Iron & Steel
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), from 2011 to
2019. He also served as an independent director (from 2006 to 2012) and a
director (from 2012 to 2019) of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd..

Dr. Pei is a member of American Accounting Association. He was the
chairman of the Steering Committee on Globalization of the American
Accounting Association and the chairman of the Chinese Accounting
Professors’ Association of North America.
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DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

HSIEH Tien-Jen, aged 63, is our independent non-executive Director,
the chairman of our Remuneration Committee and a member of each of
the Audit and Risk Management Committee, Nomination Committee and
Strategy Committee. Mr. Hsieh graduated from National Taipei University
Department of Law with a Master’'s Degree. He was a lawyer at Ding &
Ding Law Offices since 1988, until he established Hsieh, Chi & Hsieh Law
Offices in 1991. Mr. Hsieh has been a partner of Hsieh, Chi & Hsieh Law
Offices since its establishment. Mr. Hsieh has rich experience in commercial
law related areas, including general contract, merger and acquisition,
dissolution, liquidation and bankruptcy. He was a Maritime Law lecturer at
Chung Yuan Christian University from 1993 to 2013. Mr. Hsieh joined the
Consumer Education Foundation of Taiwan as a volunteer in 1995 and
was the foundation chairman during 2008 to 2010. Mr. Hsieh is currently
an independent director of China Television Company Limited which is
a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. Mr. Hsieh
joined our Group in June 2018.

LEE Kwok Ming, aged 67, is our independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of our Audit and Risk Management Committee and also a member
of each of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Strategy Committee. He is also a member of the ESG Committee. Mr. Lee
holds a Higher Diploma in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
and a Master of Science degree in Business Administration from the
University of Bath, United Kingdom. Mr. Lee is currently an independent
non-executive director of Lianhua Supermarket Holdings Co., Ltd. and Tam
Jai International Co. Limited, each of which is a company listed on the HK
Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee served as an independent non-executive director
of Bossini International Holdings Limited from July 2020 to March 2025.
He was the chief financial officer of Stella International Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the HK Stock Exchange). Mr. Lee has more than
30 years of financial management experience and extensive experience
in corporate finance such as mergers and acquisitions. He assumed the
position of chief financial officer in a number of listed companies in Hong
Kong. Mr. Lee is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and an associate member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants. Mr. Lee joined our Group in June 2018.

EEREREEAER

Directors and Senior Management

BEE(E

BYEHITESE(E)

HRIZ 635 BUFHITES  FMZ
EEFXFRURERREKREEZES® 1R
ZZEERKKEEGIRE - HALESE
EREALKREEEWMEFELIL - 198845
BZENESAREERTAITRES
BEZE1991E R I E B LRSI —
HETABA #BLEREELAZEEE
W2 A ERE > BE—RRN - Bt 7
B BERBESHEARRRACERE &
LA - H1993F 220135 » #HEER
PREAREREEEABNN o HLEMN1995
FMABEEEENHESESHERI - I
R2008F Z2010F IEEZEESEEER -
HAEBANEEREREMBE LT
HHABEEREERDERLATERBILE
E o HEEN2018F6 A IMARER -

ZHE > 675% 0 BMUEHITES - K
EREEZEEER  URFHZEE
REZEERKKEESEREAZHKE - ftt
TRBIE HEREEZEEERE - =%
EEEEREIERERNSRETEX
B IR University of BathJEZ IR &
B8N FBINEE -ZEEBAST
BHIMETARBERTROERLF
REFEBERATDNBLIEHTES -
ZhAREN202057 8 £20255F3 A #[H
ETEHEEREEERATNBELEH
TES - MEENEERERAT (EESE
GRFT RN AT)NEER - TREEE
B0FENTHEELER  EoEmENH
BrRETEBEZLR HEEZEES
EHATEEMBIEHMN  TRERA
ERETHASNERSERKESHE
BEEMASEE - ZTE4ER2018F6 A M
AREE -

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited



z [E3 2024/20255 8 * ANNUAL REPORT 4{7

EENSREEAE

Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

PAN Chih-Chiang, aged 53, is our independent non-executive Director
and also a member of each of the Audit and Risk Management Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Strategy Committee.
Mr. Pan holds a Bachelor Degree in Finance from the National Taiwan
University and a Master degree in Business Administration from the
University of Cambridge, United Kingdom. Mr. Pan is a founding member,
chief executive officer, director and responsible officer of Cypress Capital
Hong Kong Limited. He has extensive global capital market experience
in investment/wealth management industry, covering both institutional
clients including public pension funds, sovereign funds, venture capital
and private equity funds and insurance companies as well as ultra wealthy
families. He started his financial market career in 1997 as cash equity trader
at Jardine Fleming Securities (Taiwan), and later worked for JPMorgan
Asset Management Taiwan between 2003 and 2007 as the head of the
institutional business division providing investment advisory service to public
pension funds and corporate clients. Mr. Pan worked for Goldman Sachs
(Hong Kong) between 2007 and 2013 as portfolio manager/advisor to ultra
wealthy families and corporates. He is licensed to conduct Type 4 (Advising
on Securities) and Type 9 (Asset Management) regulated activities under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). Mr. Pan joined our Group in August 2019.

KONG HO Pui King, Stella, aged 72, is our independent non-executive
Director and also a member of each of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Strategy Committee. She is also a member of the ESG Committee. She
was the Managing Director, Greater China at Raffles Family Office and the
Managing Director, Market Group Head, China Il at Credit Suisse Private
Banking. In her prior role at Standard Chartered Bank, Hong Kong as
Deputy Regional Head of Private Banking for Greater China and North Asia,
she was instrumental in building the China offshore team. Mrs. Kong has
over 30 years of experience in the banking industry spanning four countries
in the wealth management industry and has held both senior management
and client relationship positions at Credit Suisse, Standard Chartered Bank,
ABN AMRO Bank, Sarasin Rabo Investment Management, UBS, Deutsche
Bank, Natwest and Citibank. She was licensed to conduct Type 4 (Advising
on Securities) and Type 9 (Asset Management) regulated activities under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). Mrs. Kong joined our Group in July 2021.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CAO Yong-Mei, aged 52, serves as the managing director of the
manufacturing and R&D group. Ms. Cao holds the title of professorate senior
engineer. Ms. Cao graduated from Jiangnan University with a doctoral
degree in food science. She also holds a master's degree in business
administration from the W.P. Carey School of Business at Arizona State
University. Ms. Cao joined our Group in January 2001 and has held various
positions, such as manager of the research and development, manager of
the Chairman’s office and the managing director of the Chairman’s office.
In March 2012, Ms. Cao was promoted to the managing director of the
manufacturing department. In November 2017, Ms. Cao was promoted
to the managing director of the manufacturing and R&D group, being
responsible for coordinating sustainable development and talent pool of the
Group’s manufacturing, quality assurances, equipment and R&D teams. Ms.
Cao is the director of our technology centre, which is certified as Shanghai
Municipal Enterprise Technology Centre, executive director of the Chinese
Institute of Food Science and Technology (“CIFST”) and vice president of
Snack Foods Processing Technology Society of CIFST, executive director
of Probiotics Branch of CIFST, vice chairman of the Shanghai Society of
Food Science, director of Baked Food and Sugar Products Committee of
the Shanghai Society of Food Science, vice president of Shanghai Food
Association, director of Shanghai Light Industry Technology Association,
credentialing specialist of China Engineering Education Accreditation
Association, rotating presidency of executive board of the Seven-Star
Convention Alliance and vice-chair of the steering committee member of
Global Food Safety Initiative China Local Group. Ms. Cao also serves as a
corporate mentor for doctoral students at East China University of Science
and Technology and an industry mentor for the master’'s degree students at
Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

CHEN Chun-Chiang, aged 56, is the managing director of R&D centre.
Mr. Chen graduated with a bachelor’'s degree from the Department of Food
Science of National Chung Hsing University in Taiwan in 1992 and obtained
his master’s degree from Institute of Food Engineering of Da-Yeh University
in 1994. In 1996, Mr. Chen joined the research & development team of our
Group and has been committed to R&D for over twenty years. He has led
the developments of over a hundred kinds of new products and applied for
multiple patents. Under his leadership, the Group’s R&D team now has over
one hundred talents specialised in fields such as food technology research,
food testing and analysis, consumer survey and market research. Mr. Chen
is the vice director of our technology centre, which is certified as Shanghai
Municipal Enterprise Technology Centre, the vice-president of Potato Food
Professional Committee of China Food Industry Association, and a member
of Child Food Society of the CIFST.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

CHEN Chien-Chen, aged 59, is our Chief Purchasing Officer and the
managing director of the key raw material procurement centre. Mr. Chen
has close to 33 years of experience in trade, futures, logistics, procurement,
advertising and management fields. In 1988, Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’s
degree from Taiwan National Chung Hsing University. In 1997, he graduated
from the department of business administration of National Cheng Kung
University in Taiwan. In the same year, Mr. Chen joined our Group and has
held various positions over the past 28 years, including the vice head of the
procurement department, head of the procurement department, head of
advertising and publicity department, managing director of the procurement
division and the managing director of the media division. Before he joined
the Group, he worked at Taiwan Great Wall Enterprise Limited (a Taiwan
listed company) as an assistant manager of the purchasing department of
commodity from 1990 to 1997.

TAN Eng-Kheng, aged 52, the managing director of supply chain centre.
Mr Tan graduated from the Brest Business School (ESC Bretagne Brest),
France with a master degree in business administration. Mr. Tan has over
27 years of professional experience in operation management and has held
his current position as the managing director of supply chain centre since
June 2018, responsible for the overall supply chain strategic planning of the
Group. He joined our Group in March 2010 and has served as the head of
various departments, including managing director of human resource centre,
general manager of SEA business division, general manager of investment
division and executive assistant of operations management department.
Before joining our Group, he worked at IP Softcom Company Limited as the
head of operations overseeing the operations in China and SE Asia region,
including market development, supply chain management and production
management etc. He also worked as the production manager of Liteon
Electronic (Malaysia) Company Limited.

LIU Ping, aged 44, is the general manager of Happy bulk sales business
unit. Mr. Liu graduated from Lanzhou University of Finance and Economics
with a bachelor’'s degree in management. Mr. Liu joined our Group in
September 2006 and has held various positions, such as head of gift pack
marketing and bulk sales centre, business unit deputy general manager
and regional sales manager. He is currently acting as the general manager
of Happy bulk sales business unit, in charge of the sales and marketing
functions of the business unit under his responsibility across the nation. Mr.
Liu has about 23 years of managing experience in the FMCG industry.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

SHIH Yi-Chang, aged 60, is the deputy managing director of the human
resources centre and also the deputy managing director of factory
construction engineering and equipment procurement centre. Mr. Shih
graduated from the Law School of Soochow University in Taiwan with a
Bachelor of Laws degree in 1989. Mr. Shih joined our Group in September
2008 and has held various positions including director of human resources,
director of administration, deputy managing director of administration,
special assistant to the investment office chief investment officer, deputy
managing director of the procurement planning centre, and deputy managing
director of the human resources centre and also the deputy managing
director of factory construction engineering and equipment procurement
centre. During his tenure, he successfully completed the implementation of
the Group’s SAP HR system; planning and execution of enterprise resource-
related logistics management support operations; served as the convener
of the Group’s investment negotiation team; implemented and launched the
Group’s SRM supplier management and procurement system, as well as
procurement data dashboard; also planned, implemented, and launched
the Group’s eHR human resources system and HR data dashboard.
Before joining our Group, Mr. Shih had served in various roles such as
manager, assistant manager, and director of the management department,
responsible for managing human resources and legal affairs at eSkylink Inc.
(Electronic Data Interchange EDI), Tornado Technologies Co., Ltd. (Search
Engine), and Taiyi Technology (Thin Film Printing).

ZHAO Zhiging, aged 50, is the general manager of the Want Gift business
unit. He joined the Group in 1998 and has served various key positions
including director of operation department/organizational management
department, deputy general manager of the beverage business unit,
and currently holds the position of the general manager of the Want Gift
business unit, responsible for the nationwide channel marketing and
management of the Group’s gift pack business. With 27 years of in-depth
research and management experience in gift pack operations, he has built
the leading brand in leisure food gifting.

MEI, Philip Hong Tao, aged 70, is the managing director of the Americas
centre under the overseas business development department. He joined
our Group in November 2001 and held various positions including director
of advertising and communications department, managing director of
international business division. Mr. Mei graduated from Concordia University
in Canada with a bachelor of commerce degree. Mr. Mei has 38 years
of experience in the food and beverages industry in Chinese Mainland
and Taiwan region and 44 years of experience in sales, marketing and
management. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Mei worked at Unilever Taiwan
Ltd. and Unilever China Ltd. and held various senior positions including
general manager between 1987 and 2001. Mr. Mei was the marketing
manager of wines and spirits division at Jardine, Mathesons & Co. Taiwan
from 1983 to 1987. He had also previously served as executive director of
the Taiwan Soap & Detergents Association and a director of the Department
Stores Association of Taipei Chamber of Commerce.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

CHANG Yao-Dong, aged 58, is the deputy managing director of the Asia-
Pacific centre under the overseas business development department
of the Group, responsible for sales in Asia-Pacific region. Mr. Chang
graduated from the University of British Columbia in Canada and joined
the Group in 1996. He has more than 20 years of experience in overseas
markets, specialised in market expansion, product innovation and channel
penetration. During his tenure, he has set up various overseas offices for
the Group (including Japan, Vietnam, Thailand, Indonesia offices etc.),
developed several best-selling products in overseas markets, including
rice crackers, biscuits and confectionery products etc., and has extended
business penetration into first-tier channels in Japan and South Korea
e.g. 7-Eleven, Lawson, Family Mart, Emart etc. He has also contributed to
forming alliances by establishing joint-ventures with local giants to enhance
market coverage.

LEE Ming-Chun, aged 58, is the deputy managing director of the audit and
internal control centre. Mr. Lee graduated from Chinese Culture University
with a bachelor’'s degree and he also holds a master degree in business
administration from the W.P. Carey School of Business of Arizona State
University. Mr. Lee joined our Group in March 1994 and has held various
positions, including director of the finance department, director of the staff
office, head of administration office, head of the leisure food business unit,
and deputy head of the investment centre. He currently serves as special
assistant to Chief Executive Officer, head of the audit and internal control
centre, and head of the procurement planning centre. Before joining the
Group, Mr. Lee worked as an auditor at Ernst & Young in Taiwan.

LEE Po-Tang, aged 62, deputy managing director of the raw material
procurement centre. Mr. Lee graduated with a bachelor's degree from
the Department of Food Science of National Taiwan Ocean University.
He joined our Group in July 1993 and has served the Group for 32 years.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lee held a technical operations position
at Morinaga Group, a Japanese enterprise, for six years, accumulating
extensive experience and expertise in the food production. After joining the
Group, he successively held the positions of general factory manager at
the Nanjing, Shenyang, Shandong, Beijing, and Hunan plants. In 2024, he
was transferred to his current position, being responsible for overseeing the
Group’s raw material procurement centre. With over 38 years of experience
in the food manufacturing field, Mr. Lee has possessed outstanding strategic
leadership and holistic decision-making abilities. During his tenure, he has
led the Group’s factories in advancing precision management, improving
quality, reducing costs, increasing efficiency, and has achieved numerous
outstanding results.
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Our Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacturing, distribution and sales of food and beverages.
The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set
out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2025 by business segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A review of the business and performance of the Group, including the
analysis and discussion using financial key performance indicators, during
the year ended 31 March 2025 and the outlook of the Group’s business are
set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” from page 17 and pages 19 to 37 of this Annual
Report respectively. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group can be found throughout the Annual Report including the financial
risks as set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group focuses not only on manufacturing but also on reciprocating the
communities by making sustainable development and social responsibility
contributions as important parts of the Group’s development. The Group
endeavors to protect the environment in which it operates its business, so as
to realise sustainable development and operation.

The Group encourages environmental protection, advocates energy
conservation and emission reduction within the Group, emphasises the
importance of protecting natural resources and environment and promotes
environmental awareness among its employees, making the fulfillment of
environmental and social responsibilities the common value pursuit as well
as job responsibilities of every member of the management and every staff
member.

We are committed to promoting sustainable development, with green factory
declaration, green energy development, significant improvement in energy
efficiency, sustainable water management, 100% recyclable packaging
materials, zero waste to landfill, green procurement and other aspects as
our environment sustainable development policy direction. In addition, we
continuously address the consumers’ desire for a healthy and green lifestyle
in our product research and development.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

The Board takes leadership and assumes the overall responsibility of ESG
strategies and ESG governance. The ESG Committee supports the Board
in examining the Group’s sustainability strategies, objectives and risks,
monitoring and managing ESG performance and material ESG-related
issues and risks, reviewing the progress of achievement of ESG targets,
and ensuring integration of ESG concepts with the Group’s policies. Regular
meetings are held by the ESG Committee to provide regular updates to
the Board on the progress, challenges and difficulties encountered. The
Group has formulated five core strategies and targets on environmental
sustainability, which are establishing sustainability goals, engaging
stakeholders, promoting investment in environmental protection, using
resources efficiently, and focusing on technological innovation.

Detailed discussion on the Company’s environmental policies and
performance is set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
which will be presented in a separate report and published on the websites
of the Company and that of the HK Stock Exchange on the same day as this
Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group ensures compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
of the places where the Group has business operations that have material
impact on its operations, including the applicable environmental laws and
regulations.

We will closely monitor any changes in government policies, relevant laws
and regulations that may affect the operations of the Group and assess the
impact of such changes and seek external advice if considered necessary.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that its success depends on the support from the
stakeholders, including but not limited to employees, customers (primarily
distributors, retailers and online and social media platform providers) and
end-consumers, suppliers and shareholders and investors, which is also the
key to its sustainable development. According to the Group’s philosophy of
“People-Oriented, Self-Confidence and Unity”, the Group values highly its
relationships with key stakeholders, attach importance to the communication
with them and pay close attention to their demands and expectations.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS (continued)
Employees

The Group is committed to establishing a healthy, harmonious and caring
working relationship with employees which forms the bedrock of any
successful organisation. The Group regards employees’ life and safety as
its top priority. We provide a safe and happy workplace as well as a grand
stage where Want Want staff can unleash their full potentials. We organise
staff activities and gatherings from time to time to promote team spirit,
strengthen their sense of belonging and enhance their recognition of the
Group’s corporate culture and values. We advocate continuing education
and life-long learning to help to enhance the competitiveness of our
employees and endeavor to provide learning and development platforms
with well-designed year-round training programmes for our employees so
as to achieve mutual growth and development of the Group and employees.
In addition, we develop competitive incentive plans and remuneration and
benefits programmes to recognise, motivate and provide incentives to those
employees who make contribution to the Group.

Customers and consumers

The Group sells its products primarily to distributors who distribute the
products to end points of sales for consumers to choose. The Group also
sells its products directly to modern channel retailers and snacks specialty
retailers who then on-sell the products to end-consumers, as well as, sells
directly to end-consumers through emerging channels and various online
and social media platforms.

The Group recognises the importance of maintaining good long-term
relationship with its customers (primarily distributors, retailers and online and
social media platform providers). The Group continues to look for quality
distributor partners who are willing to collaborate, to review the distributor
policy from time to time to ensure its competitiveness and attractiveness, to
guide distributors to experiment with digital transformation, such as holding
online live broadcast, which enables distributors to reach out to consumers
beyond physical geographical boundaries, expand point-of-sales coverage
and accelerate product flow, and to provide distributors and retailers with
marketing resources and support so that Want Want products could be
delivered and displayed on the shelves at the points of sales in a timely
manner and in attractive, eye-catching ways. Meanwhile, the Group has
also paid great attention to the inventory management of its distributors to
ensure that the aging of their products would remain highly competitive in
the channels and at the points of sales so that consumers could always
enjoy the fine taste of Want Want products.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS (continued)
Customers and consumers (continued)

The Group adheres to strict product quality control to safeguard product
quality and safety and has established a quality assurance system covering
the whole supply chain so as to make its products perfect in all aspects,
build great reputation of Want Want brand and let consumers eat with ease,
feel relieved and happy.

The Group has made use of different social media platforms and direct-
to-consumers channels, through dynamic and diversified digital marketing
activities and creating diversified consumption scenarios, to connect with
consumers and create dialogues to enhance communication and interaction
with consumers and to gain consumer loyalty and insights on the changing
market demand so that the Group could respond proactively. The Group
also attempts to deliver more personalised content and advertisements
tailored to the interests and preferences of each targeted consumer group.

Based on the characteristics of different age groups and different demands
from consumers, the Group differentiated and launched a range of brands to
serve consumers precisely and extensively. The Group has also constantly
rolled out products with new flavours and packaging and developed new
products that meet the demands for healthy and nutritious products, novel
packaging and unique flavours, satisfying the diverse needs of consumers.

Upholding the Group’s motto of “Be Caring, Be Attentive and Be
Considerate”, the Group strives to create a high quality and complete
consumption experience for our consumers and serve them with our
sincere and friendly services to earn the satisfaction of every customer and
consumer.

Suppliers

The Group generally centralises the procurement of a majority of its key raw
materials and packaging materials to take advantage of economies of scale
and maximise its bargaining power with suppliers. This approach enables it
to enjoy competitive prices.

The Group has established a stable long-term relationship with its major
suppliers to ensure stable and sustainable supply, quality and timely delivery

of raw materials and packaging materials.

The Group emphasises the evaluation and selection of suppliers and
persists in sustainable development.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS (continued)
Suppliers (continued)

The Group has established a comprehensive supplier management system
that encompasses the entire process, covering seven core aspects:
admission evaluation, qualification assessment, on-site inspection,
quality inspection, trial-run validation, performance evaluation, and tiered
management.

Adhering to the principles of fairness, justice, openness and transparency,
we are committed to integrating the concept of sustainability into the
supplier management system, collaborating with upstream and downstream
suppliers to jointly assume environmental responsibilities, and creating a
green and healthy industrial ecosystem.

Shareholders and investors

The Group is committed to uphold high corporate governance standards
to promote corporate transparency and accountability and to enhance
shareholders’ value.

The Company recognises the importance of continuing communications
with its shareholders and investors and maintains ongoing dialogues with
them through various channels with the objectives of keeping shareholders
and the investor community informed as soon as reasonably practicable
of the information on the Group and keeping them abreast of the Group’s
developments.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2025 are
set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025 are
set out in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 107 and 108 of this Annual Report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”). It is the
policy of the Company that, in recommending or declaring dividends, the
Board shall make distributions to allow its shareholders to participate in the
Company’s profits whilst retaining adequate cash reserves for meeting its
requirements for working capital and long-term sustainable development.

The Board has the discretion to propose, declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company, subject to the Articles of Association
of the Company and all applicable laws and regulations and taking into
account the factors set out below.

The Board shall take into account the following factors of the Group when
considering the declaration and payment of dividends:

(i)  the financial performance and cash flow situation of the Group;

(i) the Group’s business strategies and operations, including future
capital requirements and investment needs;

(i) economic conditions and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Group;

(iv) amount of share repurchases made during the period; and

(v) any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The Company in general meeting may from time to time declare dividends

to be paid to the members but no dividends shall be declared in excess of

the amount recommended by the Board.

In addition, the Directors may from time to time pay such interim dividends
or special dividends of such amounts and on such dates as they think fit.

The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or warrant or

by other means that the Board considers appropriate, subject to its Articles
of Association.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)
No dividend shall be declared or payable except out of the Company’s
profits or reserves lawfully available for such purposes.

Any dividend unclaimed may be forfeited and shall revert to the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time to time.

DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of US2.04
cents (for the year ended 31 March 2024: a final dividend of US3.30
cents) per share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2025. Subject to
the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming 2025 AGM to be held on
26 August 2025, the proposed final dividend will be paid on or about 18
September 2025. Shareholders registered under the principal register of
members in the Cayman Islands will automatically receive their dividends in
United States dollars while shareholders registered under the Hong Kong
branch register of members will automatically receive their dividends in
Hong Kong dollars. The Hong Kong dollars final dividend will be calculated
with reference to the exchange rate of United States dollars against Hong
Kong dollars on 26 August 2025, being the date of the 2025 AGM on which
such dividend will be proposed to the shareholders of the Company for
approval.

In order to qualify to attend and vote at the forthcoming 2025 AGM, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
not later than 4:30 pm on 20 August 2025, for the purpose of effecting the
share transfers. The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 21 August 2025 to 26 August 2025 (both dates inclusive).
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DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
(continued)

In order to qualify for the entitlement to the above mentioned final dividend,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
not later than 4:30 pm on 29 August 2025, for the purpose of effecting the
share transfers. The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 30 August 2025 to 3 September 2025 (both dates inclusive).

RESERVES

As at 31 March 2025, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted
to RMB13,763,836,000 (31 March 2024: RMB10,785,024,000). Movements
in the reserves of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025 are
set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2025 are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The five largest customers contributed in aggregate less than 30% of the
Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 March 2025.

The five largest suppliers constituted in aggregate 48% of the Group’s
total purchases for the year ended 31 March 2025. The largest supplier
accounted for 23% of the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2025 did the Directors or any
of their close associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interests in these suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2025 and up to the
publication of this Annual Report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung

Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. Huang Yung-Sung (Chief Marketing Officer)

Mr. Chu Chi-Wen (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui

Ms. Lai Hong Yee

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Maki Haruo
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Pei Kerwei

Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen

Mr. Lee Kwok Ming

Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang

Mrs. Kong Ho Pui King, Stella

At the forthcoming 2025 AGM, the Directors retiring by rotation in
accordance with Article 130 of the Articles of Association are Mr. Tsai Eng-
Meng, Mr. Huang Yung-Sung, Ms. Lai Hong Yee, Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien
and Dr. Pei Kerwei. All the aforesaid retiring Directors, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the 2025 AGM.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
The biographical details of the Directors are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this Annual Report.

CHANGES OF DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION
The change of Director’s information as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules is set out below.

Mr. Lee Kwok Ming, an independent non-executive Director of the Company,
resigned as an independent non-executive director of Bossini International
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the HK Stock Exchange) in March
2025.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming 2025 AGM do
not have any service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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BORROWINGS
Details of the borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

The charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2025 amounted to approximately RMB30,439,000 (for the
year ended 31 March 2024: RMB31,755,000).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the five years
ended 31 March 2021, 2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025 and the assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 March 2021, 2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025 are
set out in the Financial Summary on page 13 of this Annual Report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors.

In addition, each of them is neither interested in the securities or business
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries nor connected with any Director,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Save as serving as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, none of them has taken up any other positions in the Company
or any of its subsidiaries.

The Board reviewed the overall contribution and service to the Company of
each of the independent non-executive Directors as well as their respective
level of participation and performance on the Board as an independent non-
executive Director. Each of them has demonstrated his/her ability to provide
an independent view to the Company’s matters and valuable contributions
to the Company during his/her term of office.

The Board is satisfied that each of the independent non-executive
Directors has the required integrity, attributes, profound knowledge and
experience, professional qualification and professionalism to fulfill the roles
of independent non-executive Director and considered Dr. Pei Kerwei, Mr.
Hsieh Tien-Jen, Mr. Lee Kwok Ming, Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang and Mrs. Kong
Ho Pui King, Stella to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS EFRESTRARREATR B
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING EEZED - HRABRMRESZELER
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND wKE

ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2025, the interests and short positions of the Directors A2025F 38310 » AR B EERESITH
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and AERAQARREEMEEEZE (EXRE
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within the S REBGRG (BBEBESTE) ([FFR
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of BRERA]) EBEXVER) 2 IR ~ HEERHO RE
the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be SIRBEFRABGRAIEISHFAFERE
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company EMARRBEEFRAEINERATRE

and the HK Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code are as follows: BRI ERRRBNT
(i) Interests in the Company (long position) (i) RAEQTFNER (FR)

Number of ordinary shares held

FEEEREA
Interests of
founder or Approximate %
Interestsin ~ beneficiary of of the issued
Beneficial Family controlled discretionary share capital of
interests interests corporations trusts Total  the Company
Ly YNGR £
MEfERERLA BRAELA
Name of Directors ~ EE# % ExER RikER SEHARER B3 5 AER oy BAHO
Tsai Eng-Meng 478 100,000,000@  3,177,619,700®  3,095,794,400%  6,373,414,100 53.9979%
Tsai Shao-Chung Bk 102,594,000€  2,966,223,400©  3,068,817,400 26.0002%
Tsai Wang-Chia Y 42,000 101,300,000 2,966,223,400©  3,067,565,400 25.9896%
Huang Yung-Sung ~ EX# 22,100 22,100 0.0002%
Chu Chi-Wen KEX 197,200 197,200 0.0017%
Maki Haruo HEESPS 1,100,000 200,000® 1,300,000 0.0110%
Cheng Wen-Hsien HyE 76,600 463,086,040€) 463,162,640 3.9241%
Tsai Ming-Hui 8 57,200 57,200 0.0005%
Lai Hong Yee RERE 8,000 8,000 0.0001%
(i) Interests in an associated corporation of the Company (long (i) MADFRBEEENERS (FE)
position)
Approximate
% of total issued
Name of the Number of ordinary share capital of the
Name of Director associated corporation Nature of interests shares held associated corporation
BB EEE BT
BEEpE LB B8 BERtE REEEREA BRABEBARS L
Tsai Shao-Chung Want Want Holdings Ltd. Beneficial interests 9,665 0.0007%
BB HHZERERA R EnfER

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

Notes:

(1) Based on the Company’s issued share capital as at 31 March 2025, comprising
11,803,071,135 shares.

(2) These shares are beneficially owned by Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng’s child under the
age of 18.

(8)  These shares are directly held by Top Quality Group Limited (“Top Quality”), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng.

(4)  For family wealth planning purposes, four discretionary family trusts were set
up by Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng (as settlor and founder) over a total of 3,095,794,400
shares, of which 2,966,223,400 shares were held by one discretionary family
trust through Want Power Holdings Limited (“Want Power”), and 26,286,000,
26,285,000 and 77,000,000 shares were held respectively by the other three
discretionary family trusts through other companies.

(5) These shares are directly held by Twitcher Limited, a company wholly-owned
by Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung.

(6) These shares were directly held by Want Power, the entire share capital of
which is held by Hot Kid Pte. Ltd. which is the trustee of a discretionary family
trust set up by Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng (as settlor and founder) for the benefit of
beneficiaries, including Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung and Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia.

(7) These shares are directly held by ThemePark Dome Limited, a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia.

(8) These shares are beneficially owned by Mr. Maki Haruo’s spouse.
(9) These shares are directly held by Mr Big Capital Limited and Mr Big Limited as
to 163,596,040 shares and 299,490,000 shares respectively. Mr Big Capital

Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien. Mr. Cheng is also the
controlling shareholder of Mr Big Limited holding 60% of its shares.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, none of the Directors, nor
the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any of the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the HK Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company, their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right
to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
right.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSABLE UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 March 2025, insofar as the Directors are aware, the interests and
short positions of any person, other than any Directors or the chief executive
of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the HK Stock Exchange, are as
follows:

Interest in the Company (long position)
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSABLE UNDER THE SFO (continued)
Interest in the Company (long position) (continued)

Note:

(1) Based on the Company’s issued share capital as at 31 March 2025, comprising
11,803,071,135 shares.

(2)  For family wealth planning purposes, a discretionary family trust was set up by
Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng (as settlor and founder) over 2,966,223,400 shares held by
Want Power (“Trust”) for the benefit of beneficiaries, including Mr. Tsai Shao-
Chung and Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia. Hot Kid Pte. Ltd. is the trustee of the Trust
and holds the entire share capital of Want Power. Each of Hot Kid Pte. Ltd (as
trustee of the Trust), Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng (as the founder of the Trust) as well as
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung and Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia (being one of the beneficiaries
of the Trust), are deemed to be interested in the 2,966,223,400 shares held
by Want Power. See also Notes 4 and 6 under the heading “Directors’ and
chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporation” above.

(3) DBS Trustee Limited acts as trustee of a purpose trust which was set up by
Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng (as settlor and founder) and holds the entire issued share
capital of Hot Kid Pte. Ltd., which in turn acts as trustee of the Trust and holds
the entire issued share capital of Want Power. DBS Trustee Limited is deemed
to be interested in the 2,966,223,400 shares held by Want Power.

(4) The shares held by Top Quality were beneficially owned by Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng
and are the same shares disclosed as Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng’s interests in
controlled corporations as set out under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporation” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, the Company has not been
notified by any persons (other than Directors and the chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which require disclosure to the Company under the
provisions of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
IN RELATION TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party or were parties and in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year ended 31 March 2025 or at any time during the year
ended 31 March 2025.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 March 2025.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Continuing connected transactions

The Company had the following non-exempt continuing connected
transactions conducted in the financial year ended 31 March 2025.

Water God (k##) Framework Agreement

On 28 April 2023, the Company and San Want (together with its subsidiaries,
the “San Want Group”) entered into a renewed framework agreement
(“Water God Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which San Want Group
agreed to sell, and the Group agreed to purchase certain “Water God
(7k¥#)” branded antiseptic and sanitising products (“Products”) from San
Want Group for onward sale and distribution for a term of two years from 1
April 2023 to 31 March 2025 (both dates inclusive).

The principal terms of the Water God Framework Agreement are set out
below:

Date of agreement
28 April 2023

Parties

(1) The Company
(2) San Want

Members of the Group and subsidiaries of San Want may enter into
separate agreement(s)/purchase orders which set out details of the Product,
price, the quantity, date and place of delivery and other terms pursuant to
the Water God Framework Agreement.

Term
1 April 2023 to 31 March 2025
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Water God (k#8#) Framework Agreement (continued)
The Products

“Water God (7k##)” branded antiseptic and sanitising products, mainly
including antiseptic liquids, wipes, feminine hygiene wash, antiseptic sprays,
mouthwash and other consumables.

Pricing Terms

San Want Group shall offer the most favourable selling price to the Group,
which shall represent a discount to San Want Group’s recommended
retail prices to end consumers for the Products in different packaging
specifications (inclusive of value-added tax), and such discount shall not be
less than the discount offered by San Want Group to its other customers.

There are more than a dozen of items included in the Products and the
discounts applied vary materially for different items of different specifications
and targeted distribution channels. The Board takes the view that the
specific discounts offered to the Group are commercially sensitive, and
the disclosure of the same may not be meaningful to shareholders of the
Company either.

In assessing the discounts offered by San Want Group to the Group, the
Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) were provided
with a schedule setting out the discounts offered by San Want Group to
the Group and its other customers for each item of the Products before
entering into the Water God Framework Agreement. As part of the internal
control procedures, the finance department of the Company will perform
this procedure again every six months during the term of the Water God
Framework Agreement to ensure that the discounts offered to the Group
are not less than the discounts offered by San Want Group to its other
customers.

The pricing terms of the transactions contemplated under the Water God
Framework Agreement were negotiated on an arm’s length basis, and
determined in the ordinary course of business on normal commercial terms
or better, and are no less favourable to the Group than those available with
independent third parties.

Payment Terms

Members of the Group shall pay for the Products under the Water God
Framework Agreement after the completion of inspection for acceptance
and within 30 days after receipt of invoices for the relevant Products.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Water God (k#8#) Framework Agreement (continued)
Proposed annual caps

The proposed annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the
Water God Framework Agreement for the years ending 31 March 2024 and
31 March 2025 are RMB50,000,000 and RMB60,000,000, respectively. The
annual caps were determined after taking into account the purchase price
of the Products and the expected purchase quantities of the Products to be
onward sold and distributed through the Group’s distribution channels during
the term of the Water God Framework Agreement.

In view of the increasing awareness of personal hygiene, and as consumers’
demand for cleaning and sanitising products in the post-pandemic era was
expected to continue to grow, the Group intended to, by entering into the
Water God Framework Agreement, continue to leverage on its existing sales
and distribution capabilities, to serve such consumer needs for cleaning and
sanitising products while providing the Group with a source of revenue.

Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 28
April 2023.

The amount of Products purchased by the Group for the year ended 31
March 2025 was RMB28,514,000 which did not exceed the proposed
annual cap.

Listing Rules Implications

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, executive
Director and ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, is the ultimate
controlling shareholder of San Want. As such, San Want is an associate of
Mr. Tsai and hence a connected person of the Company within the meaning
of the Listing Rules and the transactions contemplated under Water God
Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

As the highest of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules
in respect of the continuing connected transactions contemplated under
the Water God Framework Agreement is more than 0.1% but less than
5%, such transactions are subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements but are exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Water God (k#8#) Framework Agreement (continued)
Confirmation of independent non-executive Directors

Our independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions of the Group and confirmed that each of
the transactions has been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing it on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules.

Connected transactions

The Company also entered into the following non-exempt connected
transactions during the year ended 31 March 2025.

Acquisition of Aircraft

On 31 August 2024, Tianjin Xiang Want Consulting Services Co., Ltd.
(RIBHIE A AR AR A F]), a subsidiary of the Company (the “Purchaser”)
and Planet Media Limited (the “Vendor”) entered into the aircraft acquisition
agreement (the “Aircraft Acquisition Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Purchaser agreed to purchase and the Vendor agreed to sell one (1) Airbus
model A318-112 business aircraft (the “Aircraft”).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Connected transactions (continued)

Acquisition of Aircraft (continued)

The Vendor is an associate of Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng (the chairman, chief
executive officer, an executive Director and the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company) and hence a connected person of the
Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules, and the acquisition of
Aircraft contemplated under the Aircraft Acquisition Agreement constituted a
connected transaction of the Company.

The purchase price for the Aircraft is US$19.4 million (the “Consideration”).
The Consideration was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations between
the parties and on normal commercial terms. The Consideration was
determined by reference to, among other things, the remaining useful
life of the Aircraft and a valuation report prepared by King Kee Appraisal
and Advisory Limited (the “Valuer”), an independent professional valuer,
according to which the valuation of the Aircraft as at 31 July 2024 amounted
to US$19.4 million to US$20.0 million (the “Valuation”). The Consideration
was accounted for as capital expenditure in 2024FY.

The connected transaction is only subject to reporting and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but is exempted from
independent shareholders’ approval requirement. An announcement was
made by the Company on 1 September 2024 in this respect. Further details
of the method of and key inputs and assumptions involved in the Valuation
have been further supplemented in the announcement of the Company
dated 25 November 2024.

Renewed Property Lease Agreements

On 31 March 2025, certain members of the Group, as tenants, entered
into renewed property lease agreements (the “Renewed Property Lease
Agreements”) with the relevant landlords, each of which is a connected
person of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules, in respect
of the renewal of the leases of certain properties located in Shanghai, each
for a term of two years from 1 April 2025 to 31 March 2027 (both dates
inclusive).

According to HKFRS 16 “Leases”, the Group, as the lessees, is required
to recognise the leases as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheet of the Group. As such, entering into the
Renewed Property Lease Agreements and the transactions contemplated
thereunder would be regarded as acquisitions of assets by the Group under
the Listing Rules. The lease transactions contemplated under the Renewed
Property Lease Agreements constitute connected transactions of the
Company. Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 31 March 2025.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2025 are set out in Note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party transactions
constitutes a non-exempt connected transaction as defined under the
Listing Rules, except for the transactions described in the paragraph headed
“Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” in this
Annual Report, in respect of which the requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been complied with.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company repurchased a total
of 8,874,000 shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“HK Stock Exchange”) for an aggregate amount (excluding expenses) of
HK$39,552,130 and such repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled.
Particulars of the shares repurchased on the HK Stock Exchange during the
period are as follows:
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Aggregate

Total number Highest Lowest amount paid

Month of of shares price paid price paid (excluding
repurchases BE A5 repurchased per share per share expenses)
[EANEST [EANEST [E50E 5

§E 1 AR 4 A B BEafE RIEE (TBEER)

HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT

December 2024 2024%F12 A 3,729,000 4.50 4.38 16,626,760
January 2025 2025% 1A 5,145,000 4.50 4.39 22,925,370
8,874,000 39,552,130

The Directors of the Company believe that the above repurchases are
in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders and that such
repurchases would lead to an enhancement of the earnings per share of the
Company.

Save for the share repurchases as disclosed in this annual report, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2025 and up to the date of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

Details of compliance by the Group with the Model Code are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 38 to 68 of this Annual Report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS’ AND
OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association and subject to the
provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (“Companies
Law”), every Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
loss or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director, auditor or
other officer of the Company in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, in which judgement is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is
acquitted. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2025 and up to the date of this Annual
Report in respect of any legal actions which may be taken against the
Directors and officers in the execution and discharge of their duties or in
relation thereto.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands (where the Company is
incorporated) which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders first.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the level of public
float as required under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March
2025 and has continued to maintain a public float as at 24 June 2025.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
were audited by the auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young, who will retire

and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
2025 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Tsai Eng-Meng
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 June 2025

ESEEWRE

Report of the Directors

EHECHEEREREFHITRARZ
BERRE
READNERZMANHEHRE QLA
BED 2GSRI RRES -~ REETR
AATRHMITHRAEERREANDATANEE
RESHE  UBEEEEAES  ZEE
RADNTEHMITHAESEEHERIEY
ERNEMNRERMELEZFATETR
HMAREESW—EAHEE - RE
£2025F3A31B L FEEREERFER
®ER ARFACZHEENESRITR
AEEERE  REFEEBTERER
IS E RS T AR AR EEREE -

ZEMmEE

DA ERARNA D FEMA L B S
BECERAVEHSARNRALAT LEZEL
PIARAERRBENRONELBEREN
HIE e

BHARIRE
REARQBFMENNARERURRES
Bl » AATREZE202553831HLLFE
—H#ESEITTRAAFREZATERE -
EBERE2025F6 524 HHEFRE -

HZE2025%F3 310 L FE 2 MERE
CHAD B NZEENZ KA B rE

%o MZBEBAEEREER  AFEER
BRERN2025R RIBF XS EIELE -

AEBEHm

E0TH
FERITHAR

&E 0 2025F6H24H

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited



2100 2024/2025% % * ANNUAL REPORT ¢

18 M A% B ¥R &

Independent Auditor’s Report

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Want Want China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

KGR BTSSR

Keadh—EE 27 18

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Want Want China
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 105 to 220, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at
31 March 2025, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended
31 March 2025, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2025, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) as issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Revenue recognition and volume rebates

During the year ended 31 March 2025,
the Group recognised revenue from the
sale of goods amounting to RMB23,511
million.

Revenue is recognised when the control
of the underlying products has been
transferred to the customers.

The Group also offers volume rebates,
including discounts, rebates and
promotional incentives, to its customers.
These costs are accounted for as a
deduction from revenue.

A large proportion of the volume rebates
had not been paid or utilised as at 31
March 2025 and the relevant refund
liabilities were included in accruals and
other payables.

We identified revenue recognition and
volume rebates as a key audit matter
because there were a huge volume of
revenue fransactions generated in many
different locations and from various
customers and the amounts of volume
rebates were significant to the Group’s
gross profit and significant estimates were
involved in determining certain volume
rebates granted to the major customers.

The related disclosures are included in
notes 2.24, 4 and 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Our audit procedures to assess revenue recognition and
volume rebates included:

. Evaluating the design and implementation of internal
controls and testing their operating effectiveness over
revenue recognition and volume rebates;

. Reviewing customer contracts, on a sampling basis,
to identify terms and conditions relating to the transfer
of control over the products sold and assessing the
Group's timing of revenue recognition with reference to
the requirements of prevailing accounting standards;

. Comparing revenue transactions recorded during
the current year, on a sampling basis, with those in
invoices, sales contracts and goods delivery notes;

. Comparing, on a sampling basis, revenue transactions
recorded before and after the financial year end
date with goods delivery notes and other relevant
documentation;

. Reviewing the Group’s assessment of expected
volume rebates, sales discount and rebate payables,
checking the Group’s historical data for volume rebates
and comparing the amounts of the actual volume
rebates recorded by the Group with the current year's
sales amounts;

. Selecting samples of volume rebates for the year and
comparing each selected item with the relevant sales
contract and customer agreement, and recalculating
the sales discount and rebate payable by the Group;
and

. Comparing the amounts of the subsequent actual
settlements of volume rebates with the corresponding
amounts accrued as at the year end.
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is LAM Wai Ming, Ada (practising certificate number: P04699).

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
24 June 2025
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20255 20245
3H31H 3A31H
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
MIEE AR¥F ARETTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERRZE 6 5,129,625 5,294,370
Investment properties REME 7 27,064 32,622
Intangible assets BEEE 8 11,550 9,444
Investments in associates BENTRE 10 147,254 -
Deferred income tax assets EIEFSHERE 23 511,111 425,859
Financial assets at fair value through BRAVEERAEMEE
other comprehensive income W RN S REE 12 220,408 249,720
Right-of-use assets FREEE 9 1,001,953 974,172
Long-term bank deposits RERITER 17 7,091,000 7,585,000
Total non-current assets HEIERENEE 14,139,965 14,571,187
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 14 2,576,129 2,415,050
Trade receivables =0T EN 15 792,994 832,245
Prepayments, other receivables and A FE ~ R
other assets kRHEMERE 16 1,356,164 1,215,649
Financial assets at fair value through RAFEBBERTR
profit or loss HNEmEE 13 = 1,591
Cash and bank balances RERRVITHER 17 8,346,506 8,421,346
Total current assets BREEE 13,071,793 12,885,881
Total assets HEE 27,211,758 27,457,068
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity holders of EATERFEA
the Company iz
Share capital A 18 1,784,464 1,785,740
Reserves (GG 19 15,962,790 14,579,687
Subtotal Mt 17,747,254 16,365,427
Non-controlling interests T HIMERE R 3,887 40,311
Total equity R 17,751,141 16,405,738

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

31 March 31 March

2025 2024

20254 20245

3A318 3A31H

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000

BfaE AR¥TR ARBTT

LIABILITIES =1
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Borrowings EEN 22 500,155 2,461,796
Lease liabilities HEaE 9 119,314 48,049
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFSHEas 23 195,691 182,905
Other non-current liabilities HitIERBEE 109,904 115,424
Total non-current liabilities BWIFRBER 925,064 2,808,174
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B S ENR 20 920,152 997,945
Accruals and other payables ETEARHMEAR 21 2,438,025 2,520,909
Contract liabilities =¥ =R 5(b) 1,117,121 1,316,727
Current income tax liabilities EHEHIAaE 289,262 380,729
Borrowings &= 22 3,654,594 2,889,328
Lease liabilities HEaE 9 116,399 137,518
Total current liabilities wWRBEE 8,535,553 8,243,156
Total liabilities HeE 9,460,617 11,051,330
Total equity and liabilities HERKEE 27,211,758 27,457,068
Tsai Wang-Chia Chu Chi-Wen
TR K&
Director Director
EF EFE
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Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2025 2024

EZ2025%F BZE2024F

3A31HLFE 3A3MBLFE

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

it AR®T ARBT T

Revenue U= 5 23,510,737 23,586,327
Cost of sales SHE A 25 (12,321,539) (12,595,406)
Gross profit EF 11,189,198 10,990,921
Other gains — net Hithlzs — F 58 24 406,632 359,516
Other income HABA 276,582 323,748
Distribution costs palic|D %N 25 (3,026,852) (3,021,220)
Administrative expenses THER 25 (3,008,125) (3,043,140)
Operating profit EERNE 5,837,435 5,609,825
Finance income -0 ON 27 78,393 77,014
Finance costs A& AN 27 (176,233) (281,794)
Finance costs — net RLE AN — FEE 27 (97,840) (204,780)
Share of profits of associates FE{h B & N TR 10 67 422
Profit before income tax BRATBH AT RIE 5,739,662 5,405,467
Income tax expense FiSHER 28 (1,411,247) (1,422,288)
Profit for the year FEFHE 4,328,415 3,983,179

Profit attributable to FE(RRIE

Equity holders of the Company KARERBFEA 4,335,565 3,990,474
Non-controlling interests FEIEHIMERE R (7,150) (7,295)
Total et 4,328,415 3,983,179
Earnings per share for profit attributable AN GIERFE AEMN RMB Cents RMB Cents
to equity holders of the Company FENERZF ARES AR
Basic earnings per share FRERZF 29 36.71 33.65
Diluted earnings per share BREEEF 29 36.71 33.65

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024

B E2025% HZE20245F
3B31HILEE 3B31HILEE

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MiEE ARET T ARET T

Profit for the year FERE 4,328,415 3,983,179
Other comprehensive loss Hitt2HEEE
Items that may be reclassified subsequently HENEEELHZ

to profit or loss BmZEHA
Currency translation differences EHEHERE (129,354) (218,233)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently BHETFEELHEZE

to profit or loss BmZEHA
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit  BRIKEREZE=

obligations B2 19 2,870 (818)
Change in value of financial assets at fair value RAFEBEBEMEE

through other comprehensive income WRTRNEREE

ZBEEH 19 (35,859) 18,974

Other comprehensive loss for the year FEHM2EESE (162,343) (200,077)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2HENEHAEE 4,166,072 3,783,102

Total comprehensive income for the year EREEEEKEARE
attributable to

Equity holders of the Company RABERFEA 4,200,655 3,797,380
Non-controlling interests IR HIMERE R (34,583) (14,278)
Total st 4,166,072 3,783,102
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

MEERBER

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RAREREE AR
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves eamings Total interests equity
FiEHIM
Rx  ROEE Efeiie  REEA &5t & BiER
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
M ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR AR%Tn  ARETR
Balance at 1 April 2023 023F4R 1088 1,795,722 462130 (3,377,881) 15,771,802 14,651,773 52,297 14,704,070
Comprehensive income PENE
Profit for the year EEAE - - - 3990474 3990474 (7295) 3983179
Other comprehensive loss Efh2EESE
Change in value of financial BATEERAMEE
assets at fair value through WEEENEREE
other comprehensive income ZEEZE 12,19 - - 18,974 - 18,974 - 18,974
Remeasurements of post- BIEAIERZ
employment benefit obligations ~ EfEE 19 - - (818) - (818) - (818)
Currency translation differences ~ E¥ERZH 19 - - (211,250) - (211,250) (6,983) (218,233)
Total other comprehensive loss B2 EA B - - (193094) S (193094 (6983 (200,077
Total comprehensive income  2EREAE - - (193004) 3990474 3,797,380 (14,278) 3,783,102
Transactions with owners BEEAZRE
Dividends declared BRE 19 - - - A9 (1791,127) - A79127)
Dividends declared to non- MFERERERRE
controlling interest - - - - - (976) (976)
Share buy-back BfEE 18 (9982) - - (82817)  (292599) - (292599)
Appropriation to statutory HRELTERE
reserves 19 - - 266,516 (266,516) - - -
Capital contribution by non- FEHMERTE
controlling interests - - - - - 3,268 3,268
Total transactions with owners ~ EEBAZRZ4E (9,982) - 266,516 (2,340260)  (2,083,726) 2292 (2,081434)
Balance at 31 March 2024 2024F3R31 A& 1,785,740 462,130 (3,304,459) 17,422,016 16,365,427 40311 16,405,738

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited



2110 2024/2025% # + ANNUAL REPORT

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ANARREEARL
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves eamings Total interests equity
FiEmM

ks RHEE  RtERE  REERA #it Bit L 3
Notes ~ RMB'OO0 ~ RMB'00O ~ RMB'OO0 ~ RMB'OOO  RMB'000 ~ RMB'OO0  RMB'000
M ARETR ARMTR ARRTR ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR  ARETR

Balance at 1 April 2024 20244 B1BES 1,785,740 462130  (3,304,459) 17,422,016 16,365,427 40,311 16,405,738
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Profit for the year FEFE - - - 4,335,565 4,335,565 (7,150) 4,328,415

Other comprehensive loss Eft2EER
Change in value of financial BAVEEREMEE
assets at fair value through hEEENeRER

other comprehensive income LEEED 12,19 = = (35,859) = (35,859) - (35,859)
Remeasurements of post- BHEREEZ

employment benefit obligations ~ Efi3t& 19 - - 2,870 = 2,870 - 2,870
Currency translation differences ~ EHMERZH 19 - - (l01,921) - (l01,921) (27433)  (129.354)
Total other comprehensive loss B2 R IEAE - - (134910) - (134910) (27433)  (162,343)
Total comprehensive income 2ENEEE - - (134910) 4,335,565 4,200,655 (34583) 4,166,072
Transactions with owners BEEAZRS
Dividends declared BERRE 19 - - - (2,766,876)  (2,766,876) - (2,766,876)
Dividends declared to non- MFERERSRRE

controlling interest - - - - - (793) (793)
Share buy-back RiER 18 (1,276) - - (35,352) (36,627) - (36,627)
Appropriation to statutory HRELERE

reserves 19 - - 949,452 (949,452) - - -
Capital contribution by non- GRS TE

controlling interests - - - - - 9,807 9,807
Acquisition of non-controlling e R

interests 19 - - (15,325) - (15,325) (10,855) (26,180)
Total transactions with owners ~ EFBEA 2R ZA%E (1,276) - 934127 (3,751,679)  (2.818,828) (1,841)  (2.820,669)
Balance at 31 March 2025 202583831 AE 1,784,464 462,130 (2,505242) 18,005,902 17,747,254 3887 17,751,141
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
BZ2025%F BZE2024F
3A31ALFE 3A31BLFE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
Mi=E AR%T R ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities EEIBNESRE
Cash generated from operations EEELENERS 31 5,820,369 6,752,899
Interest paid [SEREISS (160,563) (267,109)
Interest received [EL &= 78,869 92,897
Income tax paid 2 EHR (1,577,055) (1,427,247)
Net cash flows generated from operating BEIHELANZERSRE
activities 4,161,620 5,151,440
Cash flows from investing activities RETENRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BAYIZE  BMERZE (633,455) (437,233)
Purchase of leasehold land and land use rights B AR & £ 3th & + it & A (3,213) -
Purchases of intangible assets BARKEE (3,905) (3,086)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATEEBHMEE
through other comprehensive income KammRNemERE (6,520) (74,856)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATEAEBRESTR
through profit or loss HemEE — (2,275)
Disposal of financial assets at fair value HERAFEERESTR
through profit or loss NEmEE 1,577 681
Capital injection in associates mEE N EEE (147,187) -
Disposal of associates HEBEZ AT = 110,521
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE  BENRRE
plant and equipment, leasehold land TAE T ih 2 + thfF FARE
and land use rights Frf8sIE 18,683 1,589
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits with U R 2 B A
original maturity of more than three months =EAMNRITERRD,
when acquired () 395,966 (2,344,696)
Interest received from bank deposits with EUWRAKERRZE A BB
original maturity of more than three months =& A WERITERIR R
when acquired 330,069 105,512
Net cash flows used in investing activities  BREZEFFANZEESRE (47,985) (2,643,843)

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
BZ2025%F B Z2024%F
3A31HLEFE 3A3MBLFE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
MisE ARMT R ARBT T
Cash flows from financing activities RMETENRERE
Share buy-back BHEE 18 (36,627) (292,599)
Dividends paid to equity holders OEREEEAIMTRE 30 (2,766,876) (1,791,127)
Lease payments HEMAR (138,625) (170,248)
Proceeds from borrowings BB RIE 4,511,719 13,815,307
Repayments of borrowings BEER (5,714,192) (14,000,694)
Capital contribution by non-controlling interests ~ FEIE#IE R T E 9,807 3,268
Acquisition of non-controlling interests WS IR R R (26,180) -
Net cash flows used in financing activities  BEEEFANZREHRE (4,160,974) (2,436,093)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash ReRBESZEY(RL)
equivalents EINFEEE (47,339) 71,504
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUNEERREEEY
of the year 5,050,000 5,047,949
Exchange losses EHEE (125,535) (69,453)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRNASREASEEY
the year 4,877,126 5,050,000
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERREEEYEHRIM
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances BERBITER 8,346,506 8,421,346
Long-term bank deposits REIRITIFR 7,091,000 7,585,000
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in FEEERBRAIESR
the consolidated balance sheet HEEEY 15,437,506 16,006,346
Less: Bank deposits with original maturity of B RUREE R R EIHR AR
more than three months when acquired =@ A WERITIER (10,560,380) (10,956,346)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in ReRERMIBERAS
the statement of cash flows ZEY 4,877,126 5,050,000
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Want Want China Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are principally engaged in the
manufacture and distribution of food and beverages. The Group’s
activities are primarily conducted in the People’s Republic of China
(“the PRC”) and its products are also sold to North America, East Asia,
Southeast Asia and Europe.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 3 October
2007 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered
office is Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company has had its primary listing on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 26 March 2008.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”) which are carried at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EXgBEK®E

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 22 BIBEREECZE

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRS Accounting AEBRARE E WK BRI

Standards for the first time for the current year’s financial statements. DT RIETE BT BREENSFE

Al

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

BEBUBEIRELERE165% 2185 E#AAEIMHERE

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

(the “2020 Amendments”)

BB ERELIH 28T EESERRE I mE ([2020FEFTA<])

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)

BEBGTERIELIF Z185T Wi Rz FHnEE & ([2022F &7 24<)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements

BB EAETRREBUBHRELEAETRZ RIER S L HE

1&5T
The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRS Accounting BEANKAEBRNEETEBBHRE
Standards are described below: FASHEAZHERTERY M
T :

a) Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a a) BBYPEREEDE165E21E
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale TS — B ARG E
and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not ERERTSELENHEERE
recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right ZIRE  UEREAH -AHBEA
of use it retains. Since the Group has no sale and leaseback FTERAEAREFEAEER
transactions with variable lease payments that do not depend HMEMEREEE - ARAEAEF
on an index or a rate occurring from the date of initial application HEEXAERESEBMERSEEL
of HKFRS 16, the amendments did not have any impact on the F16 BT ES R A&
financial position or performance of the Group. S (IR FIEHRLLEN

BNERBERS  WZEE
Al N AR R @ Y B AR OR S
RBEEEATE -

b) The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for classifying b) 2020F I AREBBETKER
liabilities as current or non-current, including what is meant by DERBBRIERBINERE > B
a right to defer settlement and that a right to defer must exist ERBREEERIENERS
at the end of the reporting period. Classification of a liability is EESERIREEREFNS
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right HZcBENTEIFAZERER
to defer settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability TEHEESEERNFEZE -
can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that only if a ZEEIIREE BEOUUE
conversion option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for AEMERTEEE BEE
as an equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact nEBEENERBEREGEAS
its classification. The 2022 Amendments further clarify that, EZTEARE  860NGEX
among covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement, FTREEHSHF o 20224
only those with which an entity must comply on or before the HARE—SEE EERLH
reporting date affect the classification of that liability as current or FrEENERRER  REE
non-current. Additional disclosures are required for non-current BUAENSREBER 2B
liabilities that are subject to the entity complying with future NS eTETEELEAER
covenants within 12 months after the reporting period. BRIERE  c ERELZAFIE

B EF HEIMEE T EUR
REERESRIBERRI2(EA
RSP ARG ©
The Group has reassessed the terms and conditions of its NEFD EHFH T HENR2023F
liabilities as at 1 April 2023 and 2024 and concluded that the K2024F48 1BV EBEIER
classification of its liabilities as current or non-current remained RigHE > T@&ERE HEE
unchanged upon initial application of the amendments. NZERBRIERE I ERE
Accordingly, the amendments did not have any impact on the INERZEEIBRERE o
financial position or performance of the Group. b ZEGTTWAEARER
E’g{ﬂﬂ%ﬂk)ﬁﬁi%ﬁ%i&ﬁ%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EXEHBE®
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued) 22 B BXREZEZ®
c) Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the characteristics c) BERESTEAFTEREBUEK
of supplier finance arrangements and require additional HERETHRZETEE T #

EEREZHNER > LEXR
HZEZHFHENMNE - Z
SRTANWBRE S £
MM RERE T HHEEER
EZHHEREE HLRE
KArBESRERBANTZE -
HRAAEETEHERRE R
B BT AEAEEN M
RRILEEMHE -

disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure requirements
in the amendments are intended to assist users of financial
statements in understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure
to liquidity risk. As the Group does not have supplier finance
arrangements, the amendments did not have any impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

ERMERREMNE BB

RELERETER

2.3 Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting Standards 2.3

REBEUEBERZEYHERREAUT
BB 1 REMBHR] RAEIERT &
BUBREEASHER - AREE
RZEMTREETERBYBRSE

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRS
Accounting Standards, that have been issued but are not yet effective,
in these financial statements. The Group intends to apply these new
and revised HKFRS Accounting Standards, if applicable, when they

become effective.

HKFRS 18
BBMBHEERE 1855
HKFRS 19

BB HREERFE 195
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

BRFERELEAFIRR BB KRS
Ve vd )

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

BRFERELEAFIER BB KRS
FETIHR 18R]

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BBV REERFI0RREBETTER
SE285% 2 18R]

Amendments to HKAS 21

EBGTHERIE 215 2 185]

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Accounting Standards — Volume 11
BBRIH IR & ERI ST ERIRFE K —

F11f

RS ER AR T AER (3
A e

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements3

Bz 2 RIKE?

Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures®

FERAREEMEZWEAE « HE

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

EHRT AT BERTEZIEET?

Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity

BREBAREREEEDHEA)?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture*

REEHABE N AGEETF AN EELELTE"

Lack of Exchangeability*

BRZ Al R

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 72

EBYBMELELFELY - BBYBERELELETS - BBYBERELE
BIZEO%E - BBMKREEREIOEREBSHERETH 2B

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23 BHEMEERERNEBTH
HREERSTER &)

! M2025F 1A 1AR 2 BB FE
HBER

2 R2026F1B1HRZEFMIGZFE
BN

0 R2027F1ALBRZERBZE
B/ HEREER

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BXEHERK#E)
2.3 Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting Standards
(continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026
3 Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRS Accounting Standards that
are expected to be applicable to the Group is described below.

HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.
While a number of sections have been brought forward from HKAS
1 with limited changes, HKFRS 18 introduces new requirements
for presentation within the income statement, including specified
totals and subtotals. Entities are required to classify all income and
expenses within the income statement into one of the five categories:
operating, investing, financing, income taxes and discontinued
operations and to present two new defined subtotals. It also requires
disclosures about management-defined performance measures in a
single note and introduces enhanced requirements on the grouping
(aggregation and disaggregation) and the location of information
in both the primary financial statements and the notes. Some
requirements previously included in HKAS 1 are moved to HKAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,
which is renamed as HKAS 8 Basis of Preparation of Financial
Statements. As a consequence of the issuance of HKFRS 18, limited,
but widely applicable, amendments are made to HKAS 7 Statement
of Cash Flows, HKAS 33 Earnings per Share and HKAS 34 Interim
Financial Reporting. In addition, there are minor consequential
amendments to other HKFRS Accounting Standards. HKFRS 18 and
the consequential amendments to other HKFRS Accounting Standards
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027
with earlier application permitted. Retrospective application is required.
The Group is currently analysing the new requirements and assessing
the impact of HKFRS 18 on the presentation and disclosure of the
Group’s financial statements.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting Standards
(continued)

HKFRS 19 allows eligible entities to elect to apply reduced disclosure
requirements while still applying the recognition, measurement and
presentation requirements in other HKFRS Accounting Standards.
To be eligible, at the end of the reporting period, an entity must be a
subsidiary as defined in HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements,
cannot have public accountability and must have a parent (ultimate or
intermediate) that prepares consolidated financial statements available
for public use which comply with HKFRS Accounting Standards.
Earlier application is permitted. As the Company is a listed company,
it is not eligible to elect to apply HKFRS 19. Some of the Company’s
subsidiaries are considering the application of HKFRS 19 in their
specified financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Amendments to the
Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments clarify the
date on which a financial asset or financial liability is derecognised
and introduce an accounting policy option to derecognise a financial
liability that is settled through an electronic payment system before
the settlement date if specified criteria are met. The amendments
clarify how to assess the contractual cash flow characteristics of
financial assets with environmental, social and governance and
other similar contingent features. Moreover, the amendments clarify
the requirements for classifying financial assets with non-recourse
features and contractually linked instruments. The amendments also
include additional disclosures for investments in equity instruments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial instruments with contingent features. The amendments shall
be applied retrospectively with an adjustment to opening retained
earnings (or other component of equity) at the initial application
date. Prior periods are not required to be restated and can only be
restated without the use of hindsight. Earlier application of either all
the amendments at the same time or only the amendments related to
the classification of financial assets is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting Standards
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Contracts Referencing
Nature-dependent Electricity clarify the application of the “own-use”
requirements for in-scope contracts and amend the designation
requirements for a hedged item in a cash flow hedging relationship
for in-scope contracts. The amendments also include additional
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to understand
the effects these contracts have on an entity’s financial performance
and future cash flows. The amendments relating to the own-use
exception shall be applied retrospectively. Prior periods are not
required to be restated and can only be restated without the use of
hindsight. The amendments relating to the hedge accounting shall
be applied prospectively to new hedging relationships designated on
or after the date of initial application. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 shall be applied at the
same time. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when
the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was removed by the HKICPA. However,
the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess
whether a currency is exchangeable into another currency and how
it shall estimate a spot exchange rate at a measurement date when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require disclosures of
information that enable users of financial statements to understand
the impact of a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier application
is permitted. When applying the amendments, an entity cannot restate
comparative information. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings or to the cumulative amount of translation
differences accumulated in a separate component of equity, where
appropriate, at the date of initial application. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting Standards
(continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards — Volume 11
set out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7 (and the accompanying
Guidance on implementing HKFRS 7), HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 7. Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable
to the Group are as follows:

. HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: The amendments
have updated certain wording in paragraph B38 of HKFRS
7 and paragraphs 1G1, 1G14 and 1G20B of the Guidance on
implementing HKFRS 7 for the purpose of simplification or
achieving consistency with other paragraphs in the standard
and/or with the concepts and terminology used in other
standards. In addition, the amendments clarify that the Guidance
on implementing HKFRS 7 does not necessarily illustrate all the
requirements in the referenced paragraphs of HKFRS 7 nor does
it create additional requirements. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: The amendments clarify
that when a lessee has determined that a lease liability has
been extinguished in accordance with HKFRS 9, the lessee is
required to apply paragraph 3.3.3 of HKFRS 9 and recognise
any resulting gain or loss in profit or loss. In addition, the
amendments have updated certain wording in paragraph 5.1.3
of HKFRS 9 and Appendix A of HKFRS 9 to remove potential
confusion. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

. HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements: The amendments
clarify that the relationship described in paragraph B74 of
HKFRS 10 is just one example of various relationships that might
exist between the investor and other parties acting as de facto
agents of the investor, which removes the inconsistency with the
requirement in paragraph B73 of HKFRS 10. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting Standards
(continued)

. HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: The amendments replace
the term “cost method” with “at cost” in paragraph 37 of
HKAS 7 following the prior deletion of the definition of “cost
method”. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

2.4 Subsidiaries
2.4.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group except for business combination
under common control as described below. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Profits and
losses resulting from inter-company transactions that are recognised
in assets are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(a) Business combinations

(i) Merger accounting for business combination under common
control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the combining entities or businesses in business
combinations under common control as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the control of the ultimate controlling shareholder.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the carrying amount from the ultimate controlling
shareholder’s perspective. No amount is recognised for goodwill or the
excess of the Group’s interest in the book value of the net assets over
cost at the time of the common control combination, to the extent of
the continuation of the ultimate controlling shareholder’s interest.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.4.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a) Business combinations (continued)

(i) Merger accounting for business combination under common
control (continued)

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration fees, costs
of furnishing information to shareholders, costs or losses incurred
in combining operations of the previously separate businesses and
other costs incurred in relation to the common control combination
that is to be accounted for by using the merger accounting method are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

(i)  Acquisition method for other business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations other than common control combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the fair value of non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between the fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.4.1 Consolidation (continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.4.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes directly attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

2.5 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the
carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A

EXEHBR#E)
24 MBLFGE)
241 50HRE ()
(c) HEHBAA

REB X EZHRER > REB2EM
REEZRALZEHEEHD ZAVE
EXE  FRREEZERERRE
R BREARABE - SELEY
TREENRERSMS A2 VE
RUAIREE © L5 - TRIREME
HWHEEREZERARE 2 ENEE
BRUAKECEEHERBEES
BEZAAANE - LATRERREATTE
Htt2EWaBRA 2 BERI2EE
185 o

2.4.2 BB HRE

M D BIRE R ABRBEDR
BABERENEERBAL - I8
DNEAWFEEBHADFTREWRERR
EUN:

poy =
25 HERT

BERNRARAREHEAEATED
mEZEHIENERE - BEMN®H20%
E50%REEHNRE - BEQATR
BUEREAR - RIBERE - RE
LA - BREESIE R
2o DERAREBIERREFRIEE
HEREBEZE LA - REBREE QT
ZHERRERE > BE AR RARE
FEEBIEBHERRNZIHRIREER
BEZ R FREZEMEBARIE
[5G

MBS R RS A WEIREDR
BEARZED  RAERLOEZAE
Htt2HWETRANBEENH2E
=R NEA) -



ANNUAL REPORT ¢ 2024/2025F 123;

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount within “share of profits of
associates” in the consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associates are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2.6 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the executive directors that make strategic
decisions.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The Company’s functional currency is United States Dollar (“US$”).
The Group’s principal subsidiaries were incorporated in the PRC and
these subsidiaries considered RMB as their functional currency. Since
the majority of the assets and operations of the Group are located in
the PRC, the consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB
(unless otherwise stated) to reflect the primary economic environment
of the Group’s operations.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within “other gains — net”.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as FVOCI are included in other comprehensive income.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the balance sheet date;
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies (continued)

(i) income and expenses for each consolidated income statement
are translated at the average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the rates on the
dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in

other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of any net investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is
sold or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid,
the associated exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(d) Disposal of a foreign operation and partial disposals

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
equity holders of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences is
reattributed to non-controlling interests and is not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s
ownership interests in associates that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost represents consideration paid for the purchase of the land.
Freehold land is not subject to depreciation.

Construction in progress (the “CIP”) represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and is stated
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes
the costs of construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No depreciation is made on CIP until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are available for use, the costs are transferred to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciated
in accordance with the policy as stated below.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost less impairment loss (if any), other than freehold land and
construction in progress, to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:
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Buildings 20 - 60 years BF 202605
Furniture, machinery and equipment 2 — 15 years B e RERE 22155
Vehicles, aircraft and transportation facilities 5—20 years HE - RigRERT R 5% 204

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with carrying amounts and are recognised within “other
gains — net” in the consolidated income statement.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if
any). Cost represents consideration paid for the rights to use the land
on which various plants and buildings are situated for periods from
20 to 70 years. Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights is
calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of the leases.

2.10 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the Group, are
classified as investment properties.

Properties and the building component of investment properties
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss (if any). The land component of leasehold investment
properties is accounted for as leasehold land and classified in
leasehold land and land use rights.

Depreciation of investment properties is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate cost less impairment loss (if any) to their
residual value over their estimated useful lives of 10 to 40 years.

2.11 Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred over the Company’s interest
in net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”),
or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BXASHBE @

2.11 Intangible assets (continued) 211 BELEE (B

(b) Trademarks (b) HE

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at historical cost. DEBANERRESRRATER - £
Trademarks acquired in a business combination are recognised at EREHPEANEEZRBEANA
fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks have finite useful lives TEDER - BEIERENAEAE
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation B MIRFR AR R T EE DI AR o e
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of MABRESEENR A BEHM
trademarks over their estimated useful lives of 10 years. TR ERI0GFTE -

(c) Software (c) BlHF

Software represents purchased computer software and is amortised
over its estimated useful life of 5 years.

2.12 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill,
are not subject to amortisation and are tested at least annually for
impairment. Other non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment
annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets that do not generate
independent cash inflows are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount of the
investee’s net assets, including goodwill, in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in an associate is impaired.
If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as
the difference between the recoverable amount and carrying amount
of the associate and recognises the amount within “share of profits of
associates” in the consolidated income statement.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.13 Investments and other financial assets
2.13.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

. those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through
other comprehensive income or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in the consolidated income statement or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

2.13.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

2.13.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in the consolidated income statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment
of principal and interest.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.13 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
2.13.3 Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement and presented in other gains/losses together
with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement.

. FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Changes in fair value are taken through
other comprehensive income (“OCI”), except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/losses.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains/losses
and impairment expenses are presented as a separate line item
in the consolidated income statement.

. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised
in the consolidated income statement and presented net within
other gains/losses in the period in which it arises.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2, EA®HEE®

2.13 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
2.13.3 Measurement (continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in the consolidated income statement
as other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in
other gains/losses in the consolidated income statement as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

2.13.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost, FVPL and FVOCI. The Group measures a loss
allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL
if the credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal to the
12-month ECL.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, see Note 3.1(b)
for further details.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling costs.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or
less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See Note 2.13 for
further information about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables
and Notes 2.13.4 and Note 3.1(b) for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated balance sheet comprise
cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly liquid deposits with
a maturity of generally within three months that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value and held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, and
short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

2.17 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity share
capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from
equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are
cancelled or reissued.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.18 Financial liabilities
2.18.1 Classification

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, accruals and
other payables, lease liabilities, borrowings and other non-current
liabilities.

2.18.2 Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments and
on a trade date basis. A financial liability is derecognised when and
only when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

2.18.3 Measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be insignificant, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
income tax. Income tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the
income tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either based on
the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which
method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally, the Group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only when there
is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control the
reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred
tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group participates in various defined contribution plans
administered by the relevant authorities or third parties, where
appropriate, and defined benefit plans for its employees in places
where it conducts business.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. A defined benefit
plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to publicly
or privately administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group participated in defined
contribution plans for its employees in the Chinese Mainland, Hong
Kong and Singapore, as well as certain employees in the Taiwan
region, pursuant to relevant labour laws and regulations, whereby the
Group is required to make contributions calculated based on a certain
percentage of the employees’ relevant wages or income. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been
made. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments
is available. There were no forfeited contributions for the defined
contribution plans as the Group’s contributions were immediately
vested to the employees.

Typically, defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit
that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one
or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (continued)
(a) Pension obligations (continued)

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance sheet in respect
of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value
of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation. In
countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, the market
rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised in
the consolidated income statement in employee benefit expense,
except where included in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase
in the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in
the current year. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
consolidated income statement.

Remeasurement and actuarial gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in capital reserves in the
statement of changes in equity and in the consolidated balance sheet.

(b) Bonus plan
The Group recognises provision for bonuses where contractually

obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (continued)
(c) Employee leave entitlements

A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and
long-service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.24 Revenue recognition
Sale of goods

The Group manufactures and sells rice crackers, dairy products and
beverages, snack foods and other products. Sales are recognised
when control of the products has been transferred, being when
the products are delivered to the customer, the customer has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the products, and there is
no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of
the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped
to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customer, and either the customer has accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all
criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)
Sale of goods (continued)

The products are often sold with retrospective volume discounts
based on aggregate sales over a period of time. Revenue from these
sales is recognised based on the price specified in the contract, net of
the estimated volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for the discounts, and revenue is only recognised
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will
not occur. A refund liability (included in accruals and other payables)
is recognised for expected volume discounts payable to customers in
relation to sales. No element of financing is deemed present as the
sales are made with a credit term of 60 to 90 days, which is consistent
with market practice.

A receivable is usually recognised when revenue is recognised as this is
the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only
the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

The Group’s obligations to provide a refund for faulty products are
under the standard warranty terms. Accumulated experience is used
to estimate such returns at the time of sale. Because of the large size
and low value of each individual product, the amounts of products
returned were immaterial. It is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.
Therefore, no refund liability for goods return was recognised. The
validity of this assumption and the estimated amount of returns are
reassessed at each reporting date.

For certain payments to customers for promotion activities, the
customers did not provide a distinct good or service to the Group and
therefore recorded as a deduction of revenue.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period
between the transfer of the promised goods to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the
Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value
of money.

2.25 Government grants

Incentive grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. And the grants
were recognised in the consolidated income statement when there
are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to such
grants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.25 Government grants (continued)

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the consolidated income statement over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
presented by deducting the grant in calculating the carrying amount of
the asset, and recognised in profit or loss over the life of a depreciable
asset as a reduced depreciation expense.

2.26 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned
from financial assets that are held for cash management purposes,
see Note 27 below. Any other interest income is included in other
gains.

2.27 lLeases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the
Group.

The Group leases various offices and warehouses. Rental contracts
are typically made for fixed periods but may have extension options.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants, and leased assets may not be used as security
for borrowing purposes.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability cost and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.27 Leases (continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments).

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses recent
third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing condition since third
party financing was received.

All land in the PRC is stated-owned and no individual land ownership
right exists. The Group acquired the right to use certain land.
The premiums paid for such right are treated as prepayments for
operating lease and recorded at cost as right-of-use assets, which are
depreciated over the lease periods using the straight-line method.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost which comprises the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability, and

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received.

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of property and other equipment (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to
leases of office equipment and laptop computers that are considered
to be of low value. Payments associated with short-term leases of
property, equipment, vehicles, and all leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.27 Leases (continued)

Extension and termination options are included in a few property
and equipment leases across the Group. These terms are used to
maximise the operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts.
The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable
only by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as an
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the consolidated balance
sheet based on their nature.

2.28 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted
for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account
the post-tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividend is approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, when appropriate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk
() Foreign exchange risk

The Company’s functional currency is US$ and the maijority of its
subsidiaries’ functional currency is RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future purchases from overseas, and certain recognised assets or
liabilities, such as the cash and bank balances which are denominated
in US$ and other currencies (Note 17), and borrowings denominated
in RMB of the subsidiaries of which functional currency is US$. The
Group has not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk because the
exposure, after netting off the assets and liabilities subject to foreign
exchange risk, is not significant.

As at 31 March 2025, if US$ had weakened/strengthened by 10%
against RMB with all other variables held constant, the post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 March 2025 would have been RMB227,696,000
lower/higher (for the year ended 31 March 2024: RMB334,166,000),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of
RMB denominated borrowings.

(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because the
equity investments held by the Group which are classified in the
consolidated balance sheet as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The Group has not hedged its price risk
arising from these investments and will continue to monitor price risk
exposure.

For the Group’s equity investments that are publicly traded, the fair
value is determined with reference to quoted market prices. For the
Group’s equity investments that are not publicly traded, the Group uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings with
variable rates, which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Other bank borrowings bear interest at a fixed rate, which expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Details of fixed and variable
interest rate borrowings are disclosed in Note 31(b). The interest rates
and terms of repayments of bank borrowings are disclosed in Note 22.

The Group currently does not use any financial instruments to hedge
against its interest rate risk exposure. Management will continue to
monitor interest rate risk exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate risk exposure should the need arise.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, if interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 10% higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the profit before tax would have no impact as the Group
has no variable interest rate borrowings (for the year ended 31 March
2024: RMB1,385,000).

Except for short-term and long-term bank deposits, the Group has
no other significant interest-bearing assets. Management does not
anticipate any significant impact on interest-bearing assets resulted
from the changes in interest rates because the interest rates of bank
deposits are relatively low and not expected to change significantly.

(b)  Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The carrying
amounts of short-term and long-term bank deposits, cash and bank
balances, trade and other receivables included in the consolidated
financial statements represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 120
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, all bank deposits and cash
and bank balances were deposited in high quality financial institutions
without significant credit risk. Therefore, the Group believes the related
credit risk is insignificant.

Most of the Group’s sales are settled in cash or by checks by its
customers on delivery of goods. Credit sales are made only to
selected customers with good credit history. The Group has policies
in place to ensure that trade receivables are followed up on a timely
basis.

In relation to balances with subsidiaries, the Company assessed the
credibility of the subsidiaries by reviewing their operating results and
cash flow position periodically.

() Impairment of financial assets

The Group has trade receivables for sales of inventories that are
subject to the expected credit loss model.

While bank deposits, cash and bank balances are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss
was immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables from initial recognition. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The
expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales and the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has identified the
gross domestic product and the unemployment rate of the countries
in which it sells its goods and services to be the most relevant factors,
and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected
changes in these factors. Trade receivables are written off where there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HMEBERBTE®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BEREEGE)

(b)  Credit risk (continued) (b) 1EHEEGE)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued) () ZHEEHEE)
Trade receivables (continued) BEZ BN (E)

BERIL - K2025F3 83118 Kk2024
FIRMHESERREBEREBEE

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March
2024 was determined as follows for trade receivables:

R
More than  More than  More than  More than
1 day 60 days 90days 120 days
Current  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue Total
RSkt [ Ik [ Ik [ Ik
REIH 1BBE  60RMLE  90ALLE 120RME @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000  RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TRE ARETR AR®TR ARETR AR®TR
As at 31 March 2025 R2025%3H31H
Gross carrying amount HEREE 501,828 145,270 61,013 80,833 79,331 868,275
Expected loss rate FEHEIEE 0.50% 2.00% 10.00% 20.00% 60.00%
Loss allowance B8 1E 2,509 2,905 6,101 16,167 47,599 75,281
More than ~ More than ~ More than ~ More than
1 day 60 days 90 days 120 days
Current past due past due past due past due Total
[k [k [k [k
REIH 1AL 60RMLE  90AMLE 120RME st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARE®TR ARBTR ARETRT AR%®TR ARETR
As at 31 March 2024 7R2024%F3H31H
Gross carrying amount HARE{E 442,373 265,404 75,098 46,579 67,841 897,295
Expected loss rate FEHEEE 0.50% 2.00% 10.00% 20.00% 60.00%
Loss allowance EEEE 2,212 5,308 7,510 9,316 40,704 65,050

Provision for impairment of financial assets recognised in profit or loss

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as
administrative expenses within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the same line

item.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, provision for impairment of
RMB10,231,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2024: RMB18,591,000)
was recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MEBERREE®)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

() Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost

The credit quality of the financial assets included in bank deposits,
cash and bank balances, and other receivables and other assets
is considered to be “normal” as they are not past due and there is
no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk approximates to these financial assets’
corresponding carrying amount. The Group considers that the
expected credit loss is minimal.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient
cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping committed credit lines available. Details of the
undrawn borrowing facilities available to the Group are disclosed in
Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet dates to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

3.1 UBEBREEGE)

(b) 1E/HEE )

() EEEERE )
RBEA LSRR £ =

EFIARITER  BERBRTHERU
REMBRRKREMEER KA
BERBERXRPBZEERMEEBDR
RUREREREREEEM - AIE
FEEZARIER] - ARERFAR
BB ARBHOEZESMEEN
MEEREERS - AEERREHE
RBERMTEM -

(c) mEtERE

FEENABDECRAREEREERSR
HWNEE  EBRATHENEREE
RIRHRE - RNEEEEERS A AE
AREREE  URFESHNEEN -
BRAEETARENEERER
BRENGE M BMARM 22 o

TREBEEEBERBESHNEHA
M T HEAEESRFRELELEE
NeRBEREEIPARETD
o RRPIRENSEASHOMERIT
BREERE -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BHEBERREE#E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BEREEGE)
(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) (c) TEEESE (E)
Between Between Between
Lessthan 3 months land 2 2and5 Over
3months and 1 year years years 5 years Total
MEAE
IBALUT 1R 122FR 2E5%R S5ENE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'0000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARMTR ARETR AR®TR AR%TR ARETR
As at 31 March 2025 R2025%3A31H
Borrowings (Note 22) B (ffE22) 2,466,502 1,188,443 500,155 = - 4,155,100
Interest payables FERFIR 29,434 17,768 12,403 = = 59,605
Trade payables (Note 20) B 5 IR (fEF20) 920,152 = = = - 920,152
Lease liabilities (Note 9) HEAE () 30,851 94,598 100,188 13,344 7,717 246,698
Accruals and other payables ~ FEstE AR H A
and other non-current REMFREEE
liabiliies 1,766,724 4,423 5,897 18,165 6,180 1,801,389
5213,663 1,305,232 618,643 31,509 13,897 7,182,944
As at 31 March 2024 2024538318
Borrowings (Note 22) & (E22) 130,046 2,763,956 2,463,456 - - 5357458
Interest payables EAFIR 51,859 91,135 31,208 - - 174202
Trade payables (Note 20) B2 EA (EE20) 997,945 - - - - 997,945
Lease liabilities (Note 9) HESE () 29,901 120,810 28,751 16,350 9774 205,586
Accruals and other payables ~ FERTE IR H BT
and other non-current REMFREEE
liabilities 1,721,392 4,423 5,807 18,036 12,207 1,761,955
2,931,143 2,980,324 2,529,312 34,386 21981 8,497,146
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ANNUAL REPORT ¢ 2024/2025F 149;

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives for managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital,
which comprises all equity components, on the basis of the net
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings net of cash
and bank balances and long-term bank deposits divided by total equity
excluding non-controlling interests.

The net gearing ratios at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 were as
follows:

e ISR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MERBRER (&)
32 EBEXERERE

FEENEAEEERRREREH
REARERE  LBRREHEHBNS

Ht R m B ERERMA S - BRES
RENERNEBUREEREA

RTHSIARELRER  A5ET
REEREXNTRENBRESEE @
RREREER  BITHRALEEE
LUK &S o

HERNHMAT K AREFAF
BERELRERHER (BERE
BRI D)  MERZENKREER
RITERRRBBRTERORERER
LA RS (R JF R BIiEs) 7T5 o

A202553A831HKR202453 831
B BREZEEZRNT :

31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20254 20244
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT R ARET T
Total borrowings (Note 22) REX (FIEE22) 4,154,749 5,351,124
Less: Cash and bank balances and W BERBITFRRREBRT
long-term bank deposits TR (MIEE17)
(Note 17) (15,437,506)  (16,006,346)
Net cash REFEE (11,282,757) (10,655,222)
Total equity excluding non-controlling ~ ##E% - TS IFEHIMER
interests 17,747,254 16,365,427
Net gearing ratio FREmAMELEE (63.57%) (65.11%)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation

The tables below analyse the Group’s financial instruments carried
at fair value as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 by level of
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such
inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as
follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (Level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

The following tables present the Group’s assets that are measured at
fair value as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024:

3. MEBRBREE®
3.3 AFEME

TRBRBEFGEAFENGERMP
FrERZINWANEBLR 2 AEE
202553 831 HK%2024F3831H
BAFEARNESHIE - LA
ERAFVEBRBEANT=E

- HREEFREEERTEN
RECRERR) EL1B) -

«  KBRTFIEFMBENREND =&
EEFRENTERNEtE
AT RHEE BIHNER) K E
#=(ERBEER) E28) -

- EEHARGEAEFRETEHEED
SBENRA (NFETBRER
A) (838) -

TRERNEBBNR2025F38318 K
2024F3 A3 AR AFEFENE

=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E F28 EIE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AR®F T AR¥TT AR®F T
As at 31 March 2025 A2025%3H31H
Financial assets BAFEEBEMEM
at FVOCI WaRRERNeRERE 207,834 = 12,574 220,408
As at 31 March 2024 A2024F3H31H
Financial assets BEATEZEBEMEME
at FVOCI WaRRERNSRERE 243,692 - 6,028 249,720
Financial assets BATEEBERTER
at FVPL HEemERE 1,591 - - 1,591
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet dates. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, and the price represents actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1.

Financial instruments in Level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.

The fair value of the unlisted unit in an investment fund is estimated by
referencing the net asset value of the underlying investment.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from those
involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. EBEXEHERAE &)
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Judgement (continued) HE (48)

Deferred tax assets EAFIREE

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses and deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further
details are contained in Note 23 to the financial statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

Variable consideration for volume rebates

The Group estimates the variable consideration to be included in the
transaction price for the sales of products with volume rebates.

The Group’s volume rebates are analysed on a per customer basis for
contracts that are subject to a single volume threshold. Determining
whether a customer will likely be entitled to a rebate depends on the
customer’s historical rebate entittement and accumulated purchases
to date.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Variable consideration for volume rebates (continued)

The Group updates its assessment of expected volume rebates yearly,
and the sales discount and rebate payables are adjusted accordingly.
Estimates of expected volume rebates are sensitive to changes in
circumstances and the Group’s past experience regarding rebate
entitements may not be representative of a customer’s actual rebate
entitlements in the future.

As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of rebate payables
included in refund liabilities was RMB309,555,000 (31 March 2024:
RMB350,068,000).

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the
executive directors. The executive directors review the Group’s
internal reports in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on their
reports.

The executive directors consider the business from a product
perspective and assess the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of segment profit or loss, which is based on profit
before income tax without allocation of unallocated costs, finance
costs — net and share of profits of associates. Management assesses
the performance of rice crackers, dairy products and beverages, snack
foods and other products.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. WAaRSBEEE)

The Group’s operations are mainly organised under four business AEENWEETZUT I NEXESE D

segments, including the manufacture and sale of: BHE BIEEEREE

—  Rice crackers, including sugar coated crackers, savoury crackers - KRRER SBEBNEXKS -
and fried crackers, and gift packs; BB R BME DR - R KRB

;

—  Dairy products and beverages, including flavoured milk, room- - EH;mk&eR SEEWSD -
temperature yogurt, yogurt drinks, ready-to-drink coffee, juice BRERL - FLERECR - BIERUN
drinks, sports drinks, herbal tea and milk powder; B~ ROTERR - EBECH R

FRIBAD
—  Snack foods, including candies, popsicles, biscuits and jellies, - #WBEER X S8R k@
beans, nuts and others; and ZRREHSNRR - T8 B
MEAM ; &
—  Other products, including mainly wine and other food products. - HittEm TERBERHEM
B °

Over 90% of the Group’s revenue and business activities are AEEBIBIO%NH NG R EKHEE

conducted in the PRC and over 90% of the Group’s non-current assets FEIETRAEBEEBIO%MNIER

are located in the PRC. BEHINATE -

No revenue from the Group’s sales to a single customer amounted to B E2025%F R2024F3831HIEEE

10% or more of the Group’s total revenue for each of the years ended BF  MERBEAEEE-—FFHNEHE

31 March 2025 and 2024. ENWSEEAEERKEAI10%3 A

Fo

(a) Segment information (a) ZEBEH

The revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 March 2025 and AEEBE2025F R20245F3A31H

2024 is set out as follows: LFEFEENRRETINT

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
HZE20255 HZE20245F
3H31H 3A31H
LHFE IFFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Rice crackers KE 5,903,849 5,076,867
Dairy products and beverages 75 & 8kt 12,108,564 11,955,633
Snack foods rKEEmR 5,359,073 5,501,808
Other products HttER 139,251 152,019
Total revenue Fallogs 23,510,737 23,586,327

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. BERSWBEEE)
(a) Segment information (continued) (a) ZDBBERGE)
The segment information for the year ended 31 March 2025 is as HZE2025F3A31BILEESBER
follows: mT
Year ended 31 March 2025
BEABFIAIALFE
Dairy products Other
Rice crackers  and beverages  Snack foods products Group
*E ARREH AR EtER &8
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Segment results PEEE
Revenue W 5,903,849 12,108,564 5,359,073 139,251 23,510,737
Timing of revenue recognition WEREINE

At a pointin time RE-KEY 5,903,849 12,108,564 5,359,073 139,251 23,510,737
Segment profit AHFE 1,258,763 4,103,164 1,147,800 72,953 6,582,680
Unallocated costs RABHR (745,245)
Finance costs - net BERAR-FE (97,840)
Share of profits of associates B NFMNE 67
Profit before income tax B AT S AR 5,739,662
Income tax expense FrEReER (1,411,247)
Profit for the year EERNE 4,328 415

Other segment items included in fAlERZE AR
the income statement
Depreciation of property, plant and NE  BERRENE

equipment 212,425 307,231 209,636 380 729,672
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 36,189 81,350 37,894 8,515 163,948
Depreciation of investment properties ~ REYEIE - - - 4,880 4,880
Unallocated depreciation and nE BERRME FREEE

amortisation of property, plant and REFEERIEINEREH

equipment, right-of-use assets and

intangible assets 23,101
Capital expenditure EXEX
Capital expenditure by segment BABED CEREE 111,251 111,709 174,243 40992 438,195
Unallocated capital expenditure RAMEREL 196,437
Total capital expenditure EARLGE% 634,632
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. KAaRHBEE B
(a) Segment information (continued) (a) DBBERGE)
Segment assets exclude cash and bank balances, long-term bank PHEETEBERESRRTER R
deposits, investments in associates and other unallocated head office HRSRITIER - B QAR E  URH
and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis. AR ENERRAREE  BZE
Segment liabilities exclude borrowings and other unallocated head EEREEERERE - o BEETE
office and corporate liabilities, as these liabilities are managed on a EERREMARDENARRATE
group basis. & AZZEEREEERER -
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2025 are as follows: MR2025F3A3M BN BEEREE
mT
31 March 2025
2025%3A31A
Dairy products Other
Rice crackers  and beverages  Snack foods products Group
KE ARREH KERR BbER &8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AEET T ARETT ARBT T AEETT
Segment assets and liabilities IHEERERE
Segment assets PEEE 2,311,488 6,130,845 2,797,226 110,809 11,350,368
Unallocated assets ROMEE 276,630
Cash and bank balances REREAHER 8,346,506
Long-term bank deposits RERTER 7,091,000
Investments in associates BENARE 147,254
Total assets BEE 27,211,758
Segment liabilities PHEE 1,288,352 2,690,210 1,197,292 32,629 5,208,483
Unallocated liabilities FORER 97,385
Borrowings B3 4,154,749
Total liabilities Bag 9,460,617
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. BERSWBEEE)
(a) Segment information (continued) (a) ZDBBERGE)
The segment information for the year ended 31 March 2024 is as HZE2024F3A31BILEESBER
follows: M
Year ended 31 March 2024
BEAUFIAANALEE
Dairy products Other
Rice crackers  and beverages Snack foods products Group
KR AmREH EER HEhER £

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Segment results PEEE
Revenue s 5,976,867 11,955,633 5,501,808 152,019 23,586,327
Timing of revenue recognition WEREINE

At a point in time RE-REY 5,976,867 11,955,633 5,501,808 152,019 23,586,327
Segment pofioss) SETE/ (EE) 158200 387883 1404997 (G1825) 6460249
Unallocated costs KABHRAK (850,424)
Finance costs - net HERK- 8 (204,780)
Share of profits of associates B NFMNE 42
Profit before income tax B AT S AR 5,405,467
Income tax expense FEHER (1422,288)
Profit for the year FERE 3,983,179

Other segment items included in FAbERZzHt A HER
the income statement
Depreciation of property, plant and NE  BERRENE

equipment 220,235 321,999 217407 639 760,280
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 41741 94,078 43445 9,946 189,210
Depreciation of investment properties ~ REYEIE - - - 1,181 1,181
Unallocated depreciation and nE BERRME FREEE

amortisation of property, plant and REFEERIEINEREH

equipment, right-of-use assets and

intangible assets 22,833
Capital expenditure EXEX
Capital expenditure by segment BABED CEREE 139,164 93,293 86,794 26,753 346,004
Unallocated capital expenditure RAMEREL 59,693
Total capital expenditure EALGE% 405,697

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. WAaRSBEEE)
(a) Segment information (continued) (a) DBBERGE)
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2024 are as follows: MR2024F3A3M BN BEERERE
T
31 March 2024
2024534318
Dairy products Other
Rice crackers  and beverages Snack foods products Group
K*E ARREH HERE HthER 58

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Segment assets and liabilities AHEERER

Segment assets THEE 2,299,429 6,119,449 2,813,621 115,538 11,348,037
Unallocated assets ROMEE 102,685
Cash and bank balances BERBITER 8,421,346
Long-term bank deposits RERTER 7,585,000
Total assets BEE 27 457,068
Segment liabilities HEE 1,381,983 2,803,674 1,293,118 36,856 5,515,631
Unallocated liabilities KOBEE 184,575
Borrowings B 5,351,124
Total liabilities Baeg 11,051,330

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Liabilities related to contracts with customers

e ISR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B2k SEEHE)

(b) BEEFEXHEE

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contracts AEECRIUTEREFEANE
with customers: f&:
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20255 2024%
3A31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
Contract liabilities — rice crackers EHEE-KR 278,428 333,750
Contract liabilities — dairy products SHEaE-AREEE
and beverages 576,170 672,218
Contract liabilities — snack foods BREE-KEER 255,716 309,687
Contract liabilities — others BREE-Hit 6,807 1,072
1,117,121 1,316,727
The following table shows the amounts of the revenue recognised TRITRERREEAA FAER IS E
in the current reporting period related to carried-forward contract SEE SN EEENSEE -
liabilities.
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
EZE2025% EZE2024F
3A31H 3H31H
LEHE LFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
Revenue recognised that was included — E#IFFASHIE BAEERHT
in the contract liability balance at the EfER W -
beginning of the year:
Rice crackers KR 333,750 402,635
Dairy products and beverages A mE e 672,218 775,203
Snack foods KERM 309,687 404,499
Others Hith 1,072 9,589
1,316,727 1,591,926
The Group selected to apply the practical expedient and not to TEEREREEETS  WEESE

disclose the remaining performance obligations as all related contracts

have a duration of one year or less.

BRTHENEME - BAT
FHR—FHUT °

BHESHN

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited



2160 2024/2025% # + ANNUAL REPORT
e SRR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

6. M¥ WERRM

Furniture, Vehicles,
machinery  aircraftand
Freehold and transportation  Construction
land Buildings equipment facilities in progress Total
KA GR-BE  RERE
E3 fa g R RERIR kEIR a3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARMTn  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR
Asat 1 April 2023 #2023E4A1R
Cost B 49919 539575 10404091 243839 673 16304157
Accumulated depreciation ZithE - (2623,179) (7,823,921) (192,534) - (10,639,640)
Net book amount REFE 49919 2,706,396 2,580,164 51,305 276,733 5,664,517
Year ended 31 March 2024 BENUEIAIALER
Opening net book amount FOEERE 49919 2,706,396 2,580,164 51,305 216733 5,664,517
Addltons 25 - 1797 134,986 6,192 243456 402611
Transfer upon completion THRER - 106,011 295,768 9n (411,551) -
Disposals (Note 31) RE (Hi31) - (“0) (7,883) (1880) - (9.803)
Depreciation (Note 25) & (ko) - (213,880) (556,926) 9362) - (780,168)
Exchange differences ERZE 26 4237 4075 4885 3790 17213
Closing net book amount EABERE 50,145 2620701 2,450,184 60,912 112,428 5,294,370
As at 1 April 2024 R0245451R
Cost A 50,145 SASTET6 10,715,385 257338 1248 16592072
Accumulated depreciation ZitfE - 89T (8265200) (196.426) - (11.298602)
Net book amount REFE 50,145 2620701 2,450,184 60,912 112428 5,294 370
Year ended 31 March 2025 BENBEIAIALEE
Opening net book amount ENEERE 50,145 2,620,701 2,450,184 60,912 112428 5,294,370
Addltons 5 - 1226 132411 143025 348,065 630,727
Transfer upon completion THEER - 55,512 203815 90 (260,307) =
Disposals (Note 31) RE (Hi31) - (857) (23,661) (939) (7465) (32916)
Depreciafion (Note 25) & (ik20) - (218,322) (515,146) (16,134) = (749,602)
Exchange differences EiiZE (1823) (4,258) (5,099) (698) (1,076) (12.954)
Closing net hook amount EREERE 48,322 2,460,002 2,242,504 187,152 191,645 5,129,625
As at 31 March 2025 R202583A31R
Cost TS 48,322 5509273 10,846,848 3114 191645 16939202
Accumulated depreciation Zithe - (3040271)  (8604344) (155,962) - (11.809577)
Net book amount REFE 18322 2,460,002 2,242,504 187,152 191,645 5,129,625
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The majority of the buildings of the Group are erected on leasehold
land and land use rights (Note 9). The buildings comprise factories,
offices, sales offices and warehouses.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, depreciation expenses
of RMB464,756,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2024:
RMB469,364,000), RMB30,944,000 (for the year ended 31 March
2024: RMB29,369,000) and RMB253,902,000 (for the year ended
31 March 2024: RMB281,435,000) were charged to “cost of sales”,
“distribution costs” and “administrative expenses”, respectively, in the
consolidated income statement.

There were no pledges on property, plant and equipment of the Group
as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

e ISR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

W% - BERREE)

FEBARIEFEREEL K+
o Az £ (FI5E9) - ZEBFE
ERE PLE - HERSERE

P

=

BZE202553A318LLEE » ITER
* AR#464,756,0007T (B E2024F
3A3MAILEFE | AK¥469,364,000
JT) * AR#30,944,000% (B &
2024F3A31HILEFEE : AR
29,369,0007T) & A K#£253,902,000
TT(EZE2024F3831BLEFE : AR
#5281,435,0007T) D RIS W E R
AMEHERA] ~ TDHERAIR 1T
ERIAZE -

A202553A31HKR202453 431
B NEEMBIKBETAYE  BE
NERfE ©
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7. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BEYME
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
BZE20254 HZE20245F
3H31H 3A31H
LEFE IHFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Investment properties REWE

Opening balance F 4R 32,622 33,718
Depreciation (Note 25) 8 (ffaE25) (4,880) (1,181)
Exchange differences &5 ERE (678) 85
Closing balance FRAER 27,064 32,622
Cost 2% 52,024 52,835
Accumulated depreciation e (24,960) (20,213)
Net book amount REFE 27,064 32,622

Investment properties represent offices, sales outlets and warehouses
held by the Group in the Taiwan region erected on freehold land
including the cost of land and buildings, and in the Chinese Mainland
erected on leasehold land with lease periods of 50 years including the
cost of buildings.

Net lease rental income amounting to approximately RMB2,934,000
(for the year ended 31 March 2024: RMB2,679,000) for the year ended
31 March 2025 was related to the lease of investment properties.

The fair value of the investment properties as at 31 March 2025 was
RMB80,381,000 (31 March 2024: RMB90,702,000). The valuation was
determined using the sale comparison approach and was within Level
2 of the fair value hierarchy. Sales prices of comparable properties in
close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
property size. The most significant input to this valuation approach is
price per square foot.

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A

RENFEEAEBERBHEMSAE
FERAFEL B FEZOPLE - 85
EFERER  UEELHREFH
B URERBESRAMSEEES
RSOFMEEL B FRENETF &
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HZE202553A318LEEMHEER
WA FREHARY2,934,0007T (B
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2,679,0007T) © DEBEEBREWENE
BEF5E -

M2025%38318 » REMWENRF
EH ARM80,381,0007T (202453 A
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8. EREEE
Goodwill Trademarks Software Total
[EkS f5] = B st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTR AR®TR AR%¥TR
As at 31 March 2023 M2023F3H31H
Cost 2% 2,561 32,769 9,736 45,066
Accumulated amortisation ESE - (27,858) (9,302) (37,160)
Net book amount IR FE 2,561 4,911 434 7,906
Year ended 31 March 2024 BZ2024F3H31HILEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 2,561 4911 434 7,906
Additions 7N - 2,136 950 3,086
Disposals BE - (350) (89) (439)
Amortisation charge (Note 25) S5 E F (FfizE25) - (1,035) (92) (1,127)
Exchange differences EHESE - 18 - 18
Closing net book amount FARIREEFE 2,561 5,680 1,203 9,444
As at 31 March 2024 R2024%3A31H
Cost AR 2,561 23,304 1,877 27,742
Accumulated amortisation ESE - (17,624) (674) (18,298)
Net book amount BREFE 2,561 5,680 1,203 9,444
Year ended 31 March 2025 BZE2025F3A31ALFE
Opening net book amount FYRAFE 2,561 5,680 1,203 9,444
Additions A = 476 3,429 3,905
Amortisation charge (Note 25) S5 E F (FfizE25) = (1,079) (521) (1,600)
Exchange differences ELER - (197) @) (199)
Closing net book amount FRIREFE 2,561 4,880 4,109 11,550
As at 31 March 2025 M2025%3A31H
Cost AR 2,561 22,929 5,297 30,787
Accumulated amortisation Eie 5| = (18,049) (1,188) (19,237)
Net book amount EREFE 2,561 4,880 4,109 11,550

For the year ended 31 March 2025, amortisation of RMB1,600,000
(for the year ended 31 March 2024: RMB1,127,000) was charged to
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated income statement.

HZE2025F3A31HILFEE » #IHA
ES#51,600,0007T (Bl ZE2024F3A31H
LEFE : AR®1,127,0007T) B £ 47
ElRERMTHRER|AXZHE -
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9. LEASES 9. IHEH
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet (a) REREEEGEREIANTHE
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following amounts relating REEEBBRIRTIIHEESH
to leases: ISR -
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20255 2024%
3A31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTT

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE T + i {F R 772,030 792,838
Buildings and warehouses BFREE 228,866 180,205
Equipment and others BBk EAM 1,057 1,129
Total wct 1,001,953 974,172
Lease liabilities HEaE
Non-current lease liabilities FRBEEES 119,314 48,049
Current lease liabilities REEEERE 116,399 137,518
Total #zm 235,713 185,567
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the financial year ended REZ2025F3A31 B IETBEFEERE
31 March 2025 were RMB194,022,000 (for the year ended 31 March AREERE A ARY194,022,000
2024: RMB87,345,000). TT(EBZE202453831BLEE : AR
#5£87,345,0007T) °
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 3.1(c). HEEENIHMIMEERKTE

3.1(c) °

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A
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LEASES (continued) 9. HE®
(b)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement (b) REEWHEXRERNEEE
The consolidated income statement shows the following amounts FEWERIITTIEESERENS
relating to leases: -
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March

2025 2024
B E20255 HE2024%5
3A31HILEE 3B31HILEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Depreciation of right-of-use assets  FHAREEFRE

Leasehold land and land use rights HEL R b FERE 23,299 23,019
Buildings and warehouses BFREE 141,321 166,586
Equipment and others Bk EM 899 1,423
Total #ct 165,519 191,028
Interest expense FEFIX 7,159 9,885
Expense relating to short-term and EENMRREEREEENEEX
low-value leases (included in cost GFTASHERA® » DH#HEAR
of sales, distribution costs and THRX)
administrative expenses) 86,597 89,923
The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March HZE2025F3A831HILEE » HER
2025 was RMB234,419,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2024: S EZEEAE AR#B234,419,0007T
RMB267,424,000). Among the cash outflow for leases, the payment (B E2024F3A31HIEEE : AR
for lease liabilities was RMB147,822,000 (for the year ended 31 March #067,424,0007T) - HEBRE R
2024: RMB177,501,000), and the payment for short-term and low- o EHEEEEHBENNRA AR
value leases was RMB86,597,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2024: 147,822,0007T (B £2024%3H31H
RMB89,923,000). IHFE : AR¥177,501,0007T) » E2

EHREEEEERBRNETRBEAR
#£86,597,0007C (B E2024F3831H
LEFE : AR%89,923,0007T) °
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10. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 10. BiELFRE
The Group’s associates are all unlisted. The aggregate amounts of the AEENEENATERED - XEH
Group’s share of these associates’ results are as follows: PNZERE N T EBRBENT
Year ended Yead ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024

B E20255 B E2024%5
3B31HILEE 3B31HILEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Opening balance F 4R = 107,766

Addition 1B 147,187 -

Disposal HE = (108,188)

Share of profits FEALFE 67 422

Total #Et 147,254 -
In December 2024, the Group injected capital for the formation of an MR2024F 128 » AEBEEHN L —
associate, CICC Wangju Consumption Industry Equity Investment EHE AT SHEBEHAR(EM)EE
Fund (Xiamen) Partnership (Limited Partnership), which is accounted EXEREREESABLE (BRE
for using the equity method. %) ZEERAERENE-
Details of CICC Wangju Consumption Industry Equity Investment M2025%3A31H * FE&HREBHE (B
Fund (Xiamen) Partnership (Limited Partnership) as at 31 March 2025 FHBEXREREESERLE
are as follows: (BRER) BT :

Proportion of
voting power

Place of held by Principal
incorporation the Group activity
it rEEHEN
Name £ J2Avs:t FRELA TEED
CICC Wangju Consumption Industry PERBHLE(EM) EEE Chinese 43%* Investment
Equity Investment Fund (Xiamen) ERERERSEBLE Mainland rE&E
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (BRRER) FEIER
* The Board of CICC Wangju Consumption Industry Equity Investment * hEHBHT(EM) EEEX
Fund (Xiamen) Partnership (Limited Partnership) consists of seven BEREESEREE(BRE
directors, in which the Group has three seats. BIWEEEHERESAK -

HAo A EBIEE = EF -

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A
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10. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 10. BEATRE @)

TRHEPAEBEE L RNSHUH

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the

Group’s associates: BR
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
EZE2025%F BZE2024F
3A31HLEE 3A31HLFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Share of the associates’ profit for i3 N
the year FRFIHE 67 422
Share of the associates’ total i3 NG
comprehensive income EHIWNRERE 67 422
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEBREE QT
Group’s investments in the associates  RERIREEE 147,254 -
11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 11. &RTRER
Financial
Financial assets at
assets at amortised
FVOCI cost Total
BRAYE
2HEKERE REHERARE
HWEMEE BRNWEREE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T ARET
As at 31 March 2025 HR2025%3H31H
Assets as per balance sheet EBEESBRNWEE
Financial assets at FVOCI AV EEAHEHMEE
(Note 12) KRN EemERE
(Mf=E12) 220,408 - 220,408
Trade receivables (Note 15) Z 2 EWGK (FiEE15) = 792,994 792,994
Other receivables and other HtEWR R EMEE
assets — 583,773 583,773
Long-term bank deposits RERITIER
(Note 17) (B¥sE17) = 7,091,000 7,091,000
Cash and bank balances RERBITHER
(Note 17) (F¥sE17) = 8,346,506 8,346,506
Total st 220,408 16,814,273 17,034,681

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

ments

11. &RMT AN @)

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
REHR A
LR
SRIEE
RMB’000
ARET R
As at 31 March 2025 M2025%3A31H
Liabilities as per balance sheet EERERNER
Trade payables (Note 20) g 5 I (fEE20) 920,152
Accruals and other payables EFtEB R R E MBS 1,755,155
Borrowings (Note 22) B (ffEE22) 4,154,749
Lease liabilities (Note 9) HEBE (M) 235,713
Other non-current liabilities HiERBERE 17,635
Total st 7,083,404
Financial Financial
assets at Financial assets at
FVOC| assetsat FVPL amortised cost Total
BAYE
EEHM BAYE
2ANGETE ZBERTE  RESRAR
MemEE MemEE BNepEE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR
As at 31 March 2024 M2024%3H31H
Assets as per balance sheet EERBERNEE
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFEZEBEMEEIK
(Note 12) RN EREE
(fg7E12) 249,720 - - 249,720
Financial assets at FVPL BRATEEREBERETR
(Note 13) WEREE (fEE13) - 1,591 - 1,591
Trade receivables (Note 15) B 5 UK (FEE15) - - 832,245 832,245
Other receivables and other assets HttEWR R EMEE - - 546,166 546,166
Long-term bank deposits REIRITER
(Note 17) (FEE17) - - 7,585,000 7,585,000
Cash and bank balances RERBITER
(Note 17) (FF=E17) - - 8,421,346 8,421,346
Total HET 249,720 1,591 17,384,757 17,636,068
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11. &RMTI AN @)

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
FCERAY
TRIBE
RMB’000
AREEF T
As at 31 March 2024 R20245F3A31H
Liabilities as per balance sheet EERERNER
Trade payables (Note 20) g Z I (fEE20) 997,945
Accruals and other payables EFtEBR R E MR 1,721,077
Borrowings (Note 22) B (fizE22) 5,351,124
Lease liabilities (Note 9) HEBE (M) 185,567
Other non-current liabilities HitERBEE 15,541
Total st 8,271,254

12. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI

12. BOFEBBRMZEIRICED

SMEE

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
BZ2025%F BZE2024F
3A31H 3H31H
LFE IHFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Opening balance F 4R 249,720 146,133
Additions NE 6,520 74,856

(Losses)/gains recognised in other REMEEK R AN
comprehensive income (Note 19) (B518) Wiz (FEE19) (35,859) 18,974
Exchange differences ERELE 27 9,757
Closing balance FAREEER 220,408 249,720

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income as the Group considers

these investments to be strategic in nature.

LSRR ENTHELIEERRA
FEBBEMEEWGECER  JHAR
AEERRZSREBRBME -
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12. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI (continued)

The financial assets at FVOCI include the following:

12. ROFEBERMZEIR RS
SMEE (&)

BATEEBEMEANGARERENE

MEEERFEUTEE:
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
2025% 20244
3H31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREET T
Listed equity securities FHERES 207,834 243,687
Unlisted unit in an investment fund REESHMIEL 12,569 6,028
Unlisted equity securities LTRSS 5 5
Total At 220,408 249,720

The financial assets at FVOCI are denominated in the following

BRATEEBEMEENGERENE

currencies: RMEEUT I EESE !
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20254 20244
3H31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFTT
Japanese Yen Ht 204,589 240,846
United States Dollar E 12,569 6,028
Hong Kong Dollar BT 3,245 2,841
New Taiwan Dollar A 5 5
Total st 220,408 249,720

13. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL

13. BAFEBERICRNEMETE

31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20254 20245
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Other unlisted investments, at fair value Efth3f EHRE (32D FEFIER)

— 1,591

The above unlisted investments were monetary fund products issued

by an investment institution in the Taiwan region.

They were mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely

payments of principal and interest.

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A
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14. INVENTORIES 14. 8
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20254 20244
3H31H 38318
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREET T
Raw materials and packaging materials BE#EI K &8 1,524,501 1,309,328
Work in progress THm 197,114 193,977
Finished goods SR 632,052 677,075
Goods in transit EBEHEY 222,462 234,670
Total Faby 2,576,129 2,415,050

HZE2025F3A31BLLEE » BRI
FATHERTINEFERTNBAR
#£9,051,463,0007T (B £2024F3 A
3MBLFE : AK¥¥9,374,838,000
JT) °

The cost of inventories recognised and included in “cost of sales”
amounted to approximately RMB9,051,463,000 for the year ended 31
March 2025 (for the year ended 31 March 2024: RMB9,374,838,000).

HZE2025F3A8318LLEE » KEH
MREFERMBEFEMEREELN
AR#%520,278,0007T (B £2024%3 A
3MALFE : AK%35,410,0007T)

The Group recognised losses of approximately RMB20,278,000 (for
the year ended 31 March 2024: RMB35,410,000) in respect of the
losses on obsolete inventories and write-down of inventories for the
year ended 31 March 2025 (Note 25).

(FftzE25) °

15. TRADE RECEIVABLES 15. EHEKR

31 March 31 March

2025 2024

20254 20244

3A31H 3H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARET T

Trade receivables g 5 EWE

from third parties EWE=% 851,820 880,911
from related parties (Note 33 (b)) FE U Ba 5 (B EE33 (b)) 16,455 16,384
Subtotal Pt 868,275 897,295
Less: provision for impairment W ORERE (75,281) (65,050)
Trade receivables, net BEZREWR -5 792,994 832,245

Most of the Group’s sales are on a cash-on-delivery basis whereas
those made through modern distribution channels are normally on
credit terms ranging from 60 to 90 days (for the year ended 31 March

2024: 60 to 90 days).

REEARBOHHEEURTBENT
NET  BRARIERENFER
F—RERT60E0HNEER (B
F202453A31MALEE 1 60F90
B) e
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15. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 15. BHERKR &)

As at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables based on the invoice date is as follows:

20256 3H31HK20245F3 31
H > BSERURENZZHHNERER

W :
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20255 20244
3H31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Within 60 days 60H A 490,631 422,880
61 to 90 days 61£90H 149,295 155,801
91 to 180 days 91£180H 146,781 243,655
181 to 365 days 181£365H 70,558 49,813
Over 365 days 365H Lk 11,010 25,146
Total P 868,275 897,295

As at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the Group’s trade
receivables, before provision for impairment, were denominated in the

M2025%53H31H K202453A 31
B RHBRRERER < E 5 EBEK

following currencies: UTHE®E
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20254 20245
3H31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
RMB AR 669,896 721,245
USs$ E3 57,090 45,134
New Taiwan Dollar HEH 107,402 106,301
Other currencies HibhE#s 33,887 24,615
Total #et 868,275 897,295

REERBRA  AEBHEZRKR
HRREEEE D FERS -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables approximated
to their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

REBRKE RPN ERRBRSE
EREALIWE S BYGRIREE °
REBYEFEEAETARERK
e

The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of trade receivables as mentioned above.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A
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15. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 15. BHERKR®R &)
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure AEEREAS B KR EERFEIR
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance WELF A EEBREREL  ZF
for all trade receivables. Details about the calculation of the allowance ERTE E S W E AFERER
are included in Note 3.1(b). BERE - FERBTENFEIER
Mf5E3.1(b) °
Information about the impairment of trade receivables and the Group’s EREZEWFBERAEEHRE
exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk can AR - SME RS & FIZRE b E R
be found in Note 3.1. BRAMIEES. o
16. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER 16. FAFIRIE KRR EAMEE
ASSETS
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20255 2024%
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥®TR ARBTT

Prepayments — advance payments FESRIE — MR TE S RRIE
to suppliers 627,214 536,766
Amounts due from related parties FEUR BE s 5 R E
(Note 33 (b)) (FF5E33 (b)) 1,624 1,875
Recoverable value added tax K ER 66,589 48,175
Prepayment for income tax BT ERARE 9,432 8,448
Deposits B 28,681 26,139
Others HAth 622,624 594,246
Total HBET 1,356,164 1,215,649
The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables approximated REESERA  BERHEMEKR
to their fair values as at the balance sheet dates. FEREEEE A FEES

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited
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17. LONG-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK

17. RUBTHERRBESRBITHER

BALANCES
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20254 20244
3H31H 38318
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREET T
Long-term bank deposits RERITIER 7,091,000 7,585,000
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFERS 4,877,126 5,050,000
Short-term bank deposits FEHIRITIF AR 3,469,380 3,371,346
Cash and bank balances BERBITER 8,346,506 8,421,346
Total et 15,437,506 16,006,346

The long-term bank deposits and cash and bank balances are

RBBRTERRRERBITERAT

denominated in the following currencies: SIE®EHE
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20254 20245
3H31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Long-term bank deposits REIBRITIER

RMB AR 7,091,000 7,585,000

Cash and bank balances BHERBITER
RMB AR 7,656,415 6,776,442
Us$ EyL 428,415 1,407,397
Other currencies HibE#s 261,676 237,507
8,346,506 8,421,346
Total Fab 15,437,506 16,006,346

The RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the international
market. The conversion of RMB into foreign currency and remittance
of RMB out of the PRC are subject to the rules and regulations of
exchange controls promulgated by the PRC authorities.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was the
carrying values of the long-term bank deposits and cash and bank

balances as mentioned above.

The carrying amounts of long-term bank deposits approximated to
their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A

ARBEERTSEFTEHLRE
o BARBABRBIIEREARE
B E - AR E M 2 INE

EHIRARRBIFRR

RiRE BN ERRRERSEERRD
FHRHRBEBITERAR RS RRT

FRHVEREE

FEERMRTERNRAEREE
BEXRAEAQNFEMRES -
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18. SHARE CAPITAL 18. &%
Number of
ordinary shares,
issued and Share
fully paid capital
EEITR
BREERE i@
RMB’000
AR®F T
Shares of US$0.02 each BIRME{E0.02%E T 2 IR 1D
As at 31 March 2023 #A2023%F3H31H 11,882,083,135 1,795,722
Share buy-back [ gvigi e (70,138,000) (9,982)
As at 31 March 2024 A2024%3H31H 11,811,945,135 1,785,740
Share buy-back [gigiAE (8,874,000) (1,276)
As at 31 March 2025 A 2025%3H31H 11,803,071,135 1,784,464

The movements in the issued share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2025 were set out below:

The Company acquired 8,874,000 of its own shares for the year
ended 31 March 2025 (for the year ended 31 March 2024: 70,138,000
of its own shares) through purchases on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, and these shares were cancelled thereafter.

The total cost to acquire the above 8,874,000 shares was
RMB36,627,000, and RMB1,276,000 and RMB35,351,000 have been
deducted from share capital and retained earnings, respectively (for
the year ended 31 March 2024: The total cost to acquire the above
70,138,000 shares was RMB292,599,000, and RMB9,982,000 and
RMB282,617,000 have been deducted from share capital and retained
earnings, respectively).

AATREZE2025F3A3MBILEFE
ERITRASBHHIMT ¢

HE2025F3A31HLEE AT
BREEBHERZTAERARBE
HIK 58,874,000 i {3 (B £ 2024 F
3A3MALFE : H4 570,138,000
BEM)  mEEROERZETE

e B 38,874,000 B 10 Fr 214 2
R AE ARY36,627,0005T @ I
DRAIRBARREBANBRARYE
1,276,000t & A K#35,351,0007T
(B 22024F3A31BLLFE : g
E3#70,138,0008 R 13 AT 2 14 2 42
RAE ARB292,599,000 T » i
PRAIRBARREBFNBRARE
9,982,000t & A K#282,617,000
JT) °
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19. RESERVES 19. f#fi
Currency
Share Capital FVOCI  realignment  Statutory Retained
premium reserves Teserves reserves Teserves Subtotal eamings Total
#O7E
gt
EME  EMER
RkE  £5fE  aRORE  FRERE LERR Pt REER #;
Notes ~ RMBOO0O ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOO0 ~ RMBOO0 ~ RMBOO0 ~ RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBI000
Wt ARETR ARRTR ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
As at 31 March 2023 202353431 R 462130 (7,305,747) 3923 (139180) 4083123  (2915751) 15771802 12,856,051
Asat 1 April 2023 20235 4R1R 462130 (7,305,747) 3923 (199180) 4063123 (2915751) 15771802 12,856,051
Profitfor the year EERE - - - - - - 3000474 3990474
Share buy-back i 18 - - - - - - (282817)  (262617)
Change invalue of frenciel RO FERAZ M2 ANE
assets at FVOCI ARNEHEEBERD 1 - - 18,974 - - 18974 - 18,974
Appropriation to statutory HRBEERE
reserves - - - - 266,516 26516 (266,516) -
Remeasurements of post- EffERIEfR2
employment beneft obligations ~ E3fiT & - (818) - - - (818) - (818)
Dividends paid %fiRE - - - - - - (e (e
Curency translation differences  SRE R ZH - - - 1250) - N0 - N0
As at 31 March 2024 202453A3L8 462130 (7,306,565) 2801 (30430) 4329639  (2842329) 17422016 14,579,667

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A
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19. RESERVES (continued) 19. f#f@ &)
Currency
Share Capital FVOCI  realignment  Statutory Retained
premium  Teserves  Teserves  TeServes  reserves Subtotal ~ earnings Total
#OPE
ekt
EME  EMEN

BhEE  EAER  REOER  BERRE  IERR Nt REER it
Nofes ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RWBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBOO  RMBOOO  RMBIOND
Wi ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR  ARMTR ARMTR  ARBTR  ARWTR

As at 31 March 2024 R024F3831R 462130 (7,306,565) 28971 (350430) 4329630 (2842329) 17422016 14579687
s at 1 April 2004 Ro04E4R1R W20 (65 280 (S04 AIEN  (BRIY L4006 ST
Profitfor the year EERE - - - - - - 4335565 4335565
Share buy-back RirEE 18 - - - - - - ®B%B) (35350
Change invalue of frenciel RO FERAR M2 ANE

assets at FVOC| TENERERREED 1 - - (3585) - - (35,859) - (35,859)
Appropriation to statutory HRBLERE

1eServes - - - - 049,452 949452 (949,452) -
Remeasurements of post- EffERIER2

employment beneft obligations ~ E3fiT & = 2870 = = = 2870 = 2870
Dividends paid %fiRE - - - - - - (2766876)  (2766876)
Curency translation differences  SWE X 25 - - - (lon92) - (lo1921) - (101921
Acquisiton of non-controling ~ EE3F IR

interests - (15325) - - - (15,325) - (15,325)
As at 31 Merch 205 Ro5E3A318 W00 (3800 (12%) @G 527900 (08112 1805902 15962790
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19. RESERVES (continued) 19. GEfE (&)

(@) Share premium

Pursuant to the Cayman Companies Law and the Articles of Association
of the Company, share premium of the Company is available for
distribution to shareholders subject to a solvency test on the Company
and the provision of the Articles of Association of the Company.

(b) Capital reserves

This represents capital reserves arising from the share swap
transactions during the Group reorganisation in 2007 and the
remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations. For further
details on the post-employment benefits, see (d) below.

(c) Statutory reserves

The PRC laws and regulations require companies registered in
the PRC to provide for certain statutory reserves, which are to be
appropriated from the net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses
from prior years) as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements, before profit distributions to equity holders. All statutory
reserves are created for specific purposes. PRC companies are
required to appropriate 10% of the statutory net profits to statutory
surplus reserves, before distribution of their post-tax profits of the
current year. A company may discontinue the contribution when the
aggregate sum of the statutory surplus reserves is more than 50%
of its registered capital. The statutory surplus reserves shall only be
used to make up losses of the companies, to expand the companies’
production operations, or to increase the capital of the companies. In
addition, a company may make further contribution to the discretionary
surplus reserve using its post-tax profits in accordance with resolutions
of the Board of Directors.

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A

(@) BHEE

REMERESRAERAAVERH
Al ARARHRMDEE ATH DK TR
R EAZARRANEGEDRNEAK
RATM DR ERRARRSRR

(b) ERfFEE

L RR2007 F A KB EARETIRG
ERXGNRENTERBRENEME
EENENHE - BERBERENN
E—LSHE  F2RATXM) -

(c) HEEfEE

HEDEERERERETEEMO QA
WF BRE M B B|K T2 W|AVFFE
(EEUAETFENRFABRR) P - R
2 IRAE T RESSE AR - B8R
REBE T RERBE - IEEER
BEHRBEBEMRYL - PEILQF
ROIKEFENRTEFEA - A[
EERBREEBFNBN10% - B
REEERGRBENBNBEBEEM
BARM50%E - DE) A LB -
EEREREE R T AERE QNG
B BARAMNEELEREMDF
MER - I RRESTHRE
= RAIAEAEBRBERFBBIER
BEFEBEHE-—DHK -
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19. RESERVES (continued)

(d) Post-employment benefits — defined benefit plans

The Group operates defined benefit pension plans in the Taiwan
region. The Group engaged an independent valuer to carry out a
valuation on post-employment benefits. The present value of the
obligations and costs of the defined benefit plans were calculated using
the projected unit credit method.

The income statement charge included within operating profit includes
current service cost, interest cost, past service costs and gains and
losses on settlement and curtailment.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit pension plans,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability) and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the consolidated balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to capital reserves through other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Obligation of RMB5,662,000 for defined pension benefits for the
year ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: RMB5,743,000) was
recognised in other non-current liabilities.

The fair value of the pension fund assets and net defined benefit
liabilities were as follows:

e ISR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19.

it (&)

(d) EBIEF -RESiHE
FEEN A EET - ERET S
SEREHE - REEERIB T (LAY
EEEMIERETEE - RES BT
BIE SRR AR AN SR &
SEEHE o

SPAKENENNRERTHBEREE
HAR A ~ FISAA « BIERBE K
FUREERBROEE

EREZHBATEIMEENEHT
B BEREEE BEELROFE
(FEEFAREZHRFEENFR
EHEE) URTEEENDR (TR
A AREZRFEBENFANENE
) - RRFEERERT ISR -
TREELHEZBHMEEKER
BARBEAAEBIBREET A o EFE
ERERHBTEEN 2 BEEE -

HZE202553A31BLEEE A F
EBIRTEHNEFEARES,662,0007T
(2024538318 : AR#5,743,000
T REMIERBEBETER -

BRAESEENDFERRAEZHF
BEWT

31 March 31 March
2025 2024
2025% 20244
3HA318 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT
Present value of defined benefit AESREXKRE
obligations (39,895) (38,953)
Fair value of pension fund assets BHRESEEATE 34,233 33,210
Net defined benefit liabilities AEZHFEE (5,662) (5,743)

The level of funding was 85.807% as at 31 March 2025 (31 March
2024: 85.255%). The directors do not consider the net defined benefit
liabilities as set out above to be material.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the defined benefit plans was
carried out by Professional Actuary Management Consulting Co.,
Ltd., an independent qualified actuary in the Taiwan region, with
31 December 2024 as the valuation reference date. The principal
assumptions of the actuarial valuation were:

MA2025F3H318 » HFAKESH
85.807% (2024538310 : 85.255%) ©
EEVAREBLARAESRFEEE
BEXo

HRAES R BRI EMNEEMLETD
HAEEMENELSEKRBEMER
TEESEERROERITMESL &
B2EREA2024F128318 « &
BEAERFTEANEEREROT :
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19. RESERVES (continued) 19. GEfE (&)

(d) Post-employment benefits — defined benefit plans (continued)
(1) Discount rate and rate of increase of long-term salary

The present value of the obligations and costs of the defined benefit
plans were calculated using the projected unit credit method.

For the purpose of the actuarial valuation, the discount rate of 1.500%
for the year ended 31 March 2025 (for the year ended 31 March
2024: 1.250%) was adopted. It was assumed that the expected rate

of increase of long-term salary for the year ended 31 March 2025 was
2.500% to 2.750% (for the year ended 31 March 2024: 2.500%).

(2) Withdrawal rates
(a) Mortality rate

The 6" life table as adopted by the insurance industry in the Taiwan
region was used in the actuarial valuation.

(b) Disability rate

The disability rate used in the actuarial valuation was 10% of the
mortality rate.

(c) Turnover rates
The turnover rates used in the actuarial valuation were determined

based on the historical turnover rates from the relevant subsidiaries’
records and taking into account the expected future trends:

(@) RIVER - REZHHE ()
(1) FREREMT DGR

REZ @M ENEBERAREUE
REMEEEE -

BEAERBAEZE202553A8318 1
FEENITREAE1.500% (B E2024F
3A31HILEE : 1.250%) ° [ -
BELERREE2025F3A318
IEFENRBTFHAHFEAE2.500%
£2.750% (B £20245F 383181 E
E 1 2.500%) °

(2) MHR=
(a) ZTE

REMERRT 8B RREEST
RANEREEBERE -

(b) BEZE

REAEMRANEERDIET RN
10% °

(c) HBEBE
RELEMEANRENRIZ B
FARBENBBEELEERRBE
mgH :

Turnover rates

Age Fir BEE =
20 or less 20 AT 8.0% — 10.0%
25 255% 6.0% - 7.0%
30 308% 4.0% - 7.0%
35 355% 3.0% - 5.0%
40 408% 0.0% - 3.0%
45 458% 0.0%
50 508% 0.0%
55 555% 0.0%
60 605% 0.0%

Turnover rates not shown above were determined by interpolation.

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A
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19. RESERVES (continued) 19. f#f@ &)
(d) Post-employment benefits — defined benefit plans (continued) (d)y RBANER - REZRFTEGE)
(2) Withdrawal rates (continued) (2) BREGE
(d) Early retirement rates (d) HiFRIrE
The early retirement rates used in the actuarial valuation were the BEMEMEANBRRKER()
higher of (1) 1.5 times of the turnover rates and (2) the following: BBZE215ERQ)TIIZRSE !
Early
retirement rates
Age’ FHR HiERARE
Z Z 15.0%
Z+1to 64 Z+1 26455 3.0%
65 6575% 100.0%
Note: B
* Z was the earliest retirement age of the relevant employees. * ZAEBEINRR TRRFER o
It was also assumed that employees who did not retire upon reaching BB E6Sm R BRNE THE
65 years old would retire when they reach 68 years old. 68pR R IR ©
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20.

TRADE PAYABLES 20. BREMRR
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20254 20244
3A31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREET T
Trade payables to third parties EEE=F2E5EIR 920,152 997,945

As at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the ageing analysis of the
trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

20256 3H31HK20245F3 431
H BSEMNRERBEZAEH) WIER

ERAMUMT :
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20255 20245
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
Within 60 days 60B A 857,443 870,087
61 to 180 days 61£180H 37,958 100,130
181 to 365 days 181£365H 17,731 8,968
Over 365 days 365HL & 7,020 18,760
920,152 997,945
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximated to their fair REESERA  BEZESRWERE
values as at the balance sheet dates. BEHEHEAFEES -
21. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. BirERREMERSR
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
2025% 20245
3H31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREET T
Accruals EsrEA 1,276,365 1,210,372
Salary and welfare payables EREHeRkEANRE 365,691 434,070
Other taxes and levies payables HibEAHREREE 312,017 361,211
Deposits B 265,850 289,981
Others Hith 218,102 225,275
Total st 2,438,025 2,520,909

The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables approximated to

their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A
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22. BORROWINGS 22, &®:
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20255 20244
3H31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥®TR ARBTT

Non-current FERE
Long-term borrowing REMER — HIKH
— unsecured 500,155 2,461,796
Current RE
Short-term borrowings SEERME RN — MK 4R
— unsecured 3,654,594 2,889,328
Total borrowings BAER 4,154,749 5,351,124
The effective weighted average interest rates per annum of the REEEBERANEBERERMNETFEY
borrowings at the balance sheet dates are as follows: FRZRMT -
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20255 20245
3H31H 3HA31H
RMB AEHE 2.67% 3.16%
Us$ ESv N/ATER 5.77%
Other currencies Hith&EHE 1.26% 0.66%
As at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the Group’s borrowings M2025F3H31H K2024F3 431
were repayable as follows: H > AEENEREEREFEAT !
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20255 20245
3H31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBT T
Within 1 year 1FE R 3,654,594 2,889,328
Between 1 and 2 years 1226 500,155 2,461,796
4,154,749 5,351,124
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are not materially different to MR TSR ZEHEBE  ERNERE
their fair values, as the market interest rates are relatively stable. The BHANFESEEAEZER - A¥E
fair values are based on discounted cash flows using a rate based on TERAERBLURRRAIRG N ERH
the borrowings of similar terms and conditions and are within Level 2 FEREBECHBERSREAERER
of the fair value hierarchy. N EBRE2E -
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22. BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings were denominated in

22, ERE

FEEERNWREBEATIEBERE

the following currencies: i :
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20255 20244
3A31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET R AREET T
RMB AR 3,996,294 5,091,869
uss Ep = 123,456
Other currencies HihgHs 158,455 135,799
4,154,749 5,351,124

The Group had the following undrawn bank borrowing facilities as at

REEEEXRA  XEEETIRE

the balance sheet dates: EVRVERITE AR -
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20254 20245
3A31H 38318
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
US$ facilities ES- ] 7,638,107 8,795,320
RMB facilities AR¥RBE 12,239,262 6,655,628
Facilities in other currencies HittE¥miE 24,903 22,697
19,902,272 15,473,645

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A
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23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 23. BREFRBR
FRELEFMEHEERAGBE(RRE

BEGIUER BB EAEKE) W&

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: T :
Deferred income tax assets: ELEFMEREE !
Other
temporary
Tax losses differences* Total
Hith
HIEEE TR E R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®F T ARETR
As at 1 April 2023 A2023F481H 97,855 282,029 379,884
Credit to the consolidated EHRERER
income statement Bie 23,737 22,217 45,954
Exchange differences EHELE - 21 21
As at 31 March 2024 72024%F3H31H 121,592 304,267 425,859
Credit/(charge) to the consolidated fE4R&EWE R
income statement &2 (Z8H) 90,301 (5,048) 85,253
Exchange differences ERELE = (1) (2)
As at 31 March 2025 720253 H31H 211,893 299,218 511,111
Deferred income tax liabilities: IRIEFFEHREE :
Withholding
tax Others Total
FEHB Hith st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥T R ARET T
As at 1 April 2023 2023F481H 195,685 350 196,035
Charge to the consolidated EHRERERIH
income statement 208,061 - 208,061
Credit to other EHMEEWEER
comprehensive income - (418) (418)
Transfer to tax payable EREENHIE (220,773) - (220,773)
As at 31 March 2024 A2024%F3831H 182,973 (68) 182,905
Charge to the consolidated ERelERIHE
income statement 215,709 — 215,709
Charge to other EHMRHEN SR
comprehensive income - 890 890
Transfer to tax payable EREENTIE (203,813) = (203,813)
As at 31 March 2025 A2025%F3H31H 194,869 822 195,691

accrued expenses and provisions.

Other temporary differences mainly represent the unrealised profits,

* HitERMERTERARERA

- RREARER -

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited



2186 2024/2025% % * ANNUAL REPORT ¢

e ISR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 23. EBERBRE

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 March 2025,
the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of RMB115.9
million (31 March 2024: RMB127.0 million) in respect of losses
amounting to approximately RMB463.7 million (31 March 2024:
RMB508.0 million) that can be carried forward against future taxable
profits. These tax losses as at 31 March 2025 amounting to RMB178.4
million, RMB92.8 million, RMB69.8 million, RMB53.1 million and
RMB69.6 million will expire in year 2025, year 2026, year 2027, year
2028 and year 2029, respectively.

Deferred income tax liabilities have been recognised for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the earnings of certain
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC for the year ended 31 March
2025 that are expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future.
As to the other subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC, the Group has
no plan to distribute the respective retained earnings as at 31 March
2025. Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB80,104,000 (31 March
2024: RMB85,809,000) have not been recognised for the withholding
tax and the related unremitted earnings of subsidiaries amounting to
RMB1,602,073,000 (31 March 2024: RMB1,716,171,000) as at 31
March 2025.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payments of
dividends of the Company to its shareholders.

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A

REMVREEBRRESFHAEMER
RS - BERmEENFIEE
EMERELMEHERE - H2025F
3A318 » AEBER IEAELUIKHER
REMBABENEBHARYEL.637
27t (2024538318 : AR#5.080
B UABRIELESHREEARYE
1.159187t (20245F3HA31H : AR
1.270f87T) 202538318 2
HEEBARB1.784EBx - AR
9,280E 7T ~ AK¥6,9808 T - AR
#53108B TRk AR¥6,9608 T © #
2 B 20255 ~ 20264 ~ 20274 »
20285 K 2029F fEim °

HE2025F3A31H L FEMP R
MR ETFHEARBRTRK
RoOMZBAMEZAZ2FENFE
BRELEMESHHEE P EHEM
RINEMKBLATAMES » ~N&EEH
WEETE D IKRNR2025F38318H
ZHEBREET - R2025%F3 431
B WABRBENBEEIAELAEHE
BEARYS80,104,0007T (202453 A
318 : ARE%85,809,0007T) @ MR
BAHBLARNADRBEINAEARYE
1,602,073,0007% (202438318 :
AE#1,716,171,0007T) °
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24. OTHER GAINS - NET 24. HtkE — B8

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2025 2024

BZ2025%F BZE2024F

3A31H 3A31H

ItEE IEFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T R ARBT T

Net foreign exchange gains & 2 F W 54,834 30,531
Donation expenses 1BEERA (30,439) (31,755)

Losses on disposal of property, plant HEWE  BMEKRSEE

and equipment and land use rights &+ thfF AREMEE (14,233) (8,214)
Income from long-term bank deposits REIRITIERRATEWA 352,464 338,040
Income from compensations EEE A 10,064 16,620
Others Hith 33,942 14,294
Total et 406,632 359,516

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited
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25. EXPENSES BY NATURE 25. BMYEESHAX
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
EZE2025% %2024
3A31H 3A31H
ItEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Raw materials used and changes 2 AR
in inventories REFESH 9,163,227 9,482,870
Promotion and advertising expenses EERESRX 653,853 593,710
Employee benefit expenses including ETEFBX (BEEEMHS)
directors’ emoluments (Note 26) (Pt EE26) 4,557,897 4,522,363
Transportation expenses EHR Y 909,374 884,175
Water, electricity and energy expenses KEREEREAX 694,445 718,465
Depreciation of property, plant and ME  BERRETE
equipment (Note 6) (H3te) 749,602 780,168
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEE
(Note 9) (F5E9) 165,519 191,028
Amortisation of intangible assets mIEERH
(Note 8) (FffEE8) 1,600 1,127
Depreciation of investment properties ~ REVEITE
(Note 7) (FfEE7) 4,880 1,181
Rental expenses for low-value and KEEREHESHESHAX
short-term leases (Note 9) (Ff5E9) 86,597 89,923
Losses on obsolete inventories and REFERFEMRBER
write-down of inventories (Note 14) (FgzE14) 20,278 35,410
Provision for impairment of trade B 5RO ERE
receivables (Note 3.1(b)) (Ff3E3.1(b)) 10,231 18,591
Auditor’s remuneration BRI &
Audit fee BB 4,150 4,150
Non-audit fee FETE 1,320 465
Machinery parts and maintenance HBREHR
expenses REREX 352,685 334,194
Others HAth 980,858 1,001,946
Total of cost of sales, distribution costs ~ $§& KA ~ 2 EERAR
and administrative expenses 1THE A 18,356,516 18,659,766

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A
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26. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 26. RIFEFIFAX

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2025 2024

HE2025% HZE20245

3A31H 3A31H

LEFE EFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AREET T

Wages and salaries IERFS 3,519,644 3,508,066

Pension and other social welfare B REMEESER 808,409 769,719

Other benefits HiER 229,844 244,578

Total including directors’ emoluments B IR ESHN 4,557,897 4,522,363
(@) Five highest paid individuals (a) BEESFHAL

FrEEBERSFHNOIEALBEEN
BES (BE2024F3A31HILEFE ¢
=8)  EHMEMEIS 2RO DN
PR RIBEAFERNTHEEE—F
(BZE2024F3A31HLEEE : ME)

The five individuals whose emoluments are the highest in the Group
included four directors (for the year ended 31 March 2024: three)
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 35.
The emoluments payable to the remaining one (for the year ended
31 March 2024: two) highest paid individual during the year are as

follows: BEHFATHMESOT -
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
B E2025% HE20245F
3H31H 3A31H
IEEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AREET T
Salaries e 861 2,324
Discretionary bonuses B ETEAL 1,920 2,170
Other benefits* HibER = 532
Employer’s contributions to pension EEEIERRESETEINHEK
schemes 145 171
2,926 5,197
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAH EEAH
In the bands of: BENF :
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,00158 7t 23,000,000 7T — 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7t £3,500,00078 7T 1 1

Other benefits include housing and car allowances.

* Hitb @R REEERITERE -
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27. FINANCE COSTS - NET

27. MEHE - B8

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
B E20255 HZE20245
3H31H 3A31H
ILEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AREET T
Finance costs RE R AR
— Interest expenses on borrowings —fERF SR (169,074) (271,909)
— Interest expenses on lease liabilites —HESEBMNEHX (7,159) (9,885)
(176,233) (281,794)
Finance income BE A
— Interest income on cash and bank -BHERBITERRE
balances A 78,393 77,014
Finance costs — net RUE RS — F AR (97,840) (204,780)
28. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 28. FiBRER
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
B ZE20255 B E2024%
3H31H 3A31H
ItEE IEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Current income tax BEISEL
Current income tax on profit for the year & ERIEHE BHFTEH 1,280,791 1,260,181
Deferred income tax EIEFTSH
Withholding tax on dividends from FEIREANB L ERE
Chinese Mainland subsidiaries 2N 215,709 208,061
Origination and reversal of tax losses ~ FIEEEREFEERDN
and temporary differences EERERE (85,253) (45,954)
Total Bt 1,411,247 1,422,288

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A
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28. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 28. FiRIRER#E)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the statutory tax rate in the
Chinese Mainland of 25% (for the year ended 31 March 2024: 25%) as

A& B BR AT 1S B AT R AT 440 B9 5
HEFEREEBERNEERE25% (B2
2024F3H31HIEEE : 25%) 5T &K

follows: HmBIRENEZENT ¢
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
BZE2025% BZE2024F
3A31H 3A31H
ItEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
Profit before income tax BR P45 554 A K 5,739,662 5,405,467
Income tax calculated at the statutory tax I EIEREER RTE
rate in the Chinese Mainland B St 1,434,916 1,351,367
Effect of different tax rates and MEBARTEHRERER
preferential tax rates of subsidiaries BERNTE (176,168) (101,334)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes A H1Fi5I 5% 42,194 46,820
Additional deduction of research and EE/MIB A X
development expenses (122,806) (95,895)
Tax loss for which the deferred income Y EEFLIEIE TSR EER
tax assets were not recognised BiEgE 17,402 13,269
Withholding tax on dividends from FEIEAMBATIRE
Chinese Mainland subsidiaries ZTENB 215,709 208,061
Income tax charge ek h 1,411,247 1,422,288

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and, accordingly, is exempted from the payment of Cayman
Islands income tax.

Enterprises incorporated in the Chinese Mainland were subject to
Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”) mainly at a rate of 25% during the year
ended 31 March 2025 (during the year ended 31 March 2024: 25%).

Enterprises incorporated in other places were subject to income tax
at the prevailing rates of 0% to 30% during the year ended 31 March
2025 (during the year ended 31 March 2024: 0% to 30%).

ARBAREFEFESNRAEEMER
EEMEIAERRZERAAF - B
It AR ERBYNRERENE
i o

HZE2025F3A31HLFEE - WhE
BRI NS EELR25% (B2
2024F3A3MHILFE : 25%) BiRHY
MRS (TEFREBHI) -

MNEZE202553A831BLLFEE - Hith
WM WEEEREWRITH
I8 E0%E30% (Bl E2024F3 8
31HIEFE : 0% Z30%) BHMFIIE -
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28.

29.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

According to the new Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC, starting
from 1 January 2008, a reduced withholding tax rate of 10% will
generally be levied on the immediate holding companies outside the
Chinese Mainland when their Chinese Mainland subsidiaries declare
dividends out of the profits earned after 1 January 2008. A lower 5%
withholding tax rate may be applied when the immediate holding
companies of the Chinese Mainland subsidiaries are established in
Singapore or Hong Kong, holding at least 25% interests in the Chinese
Mainland subsidiaries and recognised as the beneficial owners of
the Chinese Mainland subsidiaries according to applicable tax treaty
arrangements and the PRC tax laws.

Pillar Two income taxes

The Group is within the scope of the Pillar Two model rules. The
Group has applied the mandatory exception to recognising and
disclosing information about deferred tax assets and liabilities arising
from Pillar Two income taxes, and will account for the Pillar Two
income taxes as current tax when incurred. Pillar Two legislation has
been enacted or substantively enacted in certain jurisdictions in which
the Group operates.

The Group is still in the process of assessing the potential exposure
arising from Pillar Two legislation based on the information available
for the financial year ended 31 March 2025. Based on the assessment
carried out so far, the Group does not expect material exposure
to Pillar Two “top-up” taxes. The Group continues to monitor local
legislation and other developments in the relevant jurisdictions and to
evaluate the potential future impact on the financial statements.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable

to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

28.

29.

FRSMEBRAE)

BETBEBERAHEEFRERE - £
2008F 1188 » P EBIIEEE
IR A R K EE A B A 7 EK2008
FIAIHEABRNFABENRE B
BiZERARBEERIZ10%HRETE
NH - BEBEANHRUBEZHER S
EERFERE  MPBEBEAREL
ANEBEZERATAEFINESHEBR
3o WEHEHEEAKB AT TR
25%#% 0 URFEFEHBLATZ
BREAED » AIBEAIS5%TENH
BRATELEA -

XHEZFEH

AEEBRAXEZRRRNWEE
Ao ARECEABHMERREIR
BEXHE_FISHEENELEREE
EREENER W EZMES
ABRERERERHBEETENE
Hoe XHEZVRCEAREEEL T
ATRZERERMAEERM -

REBNERBEEZE202553A831H
IE B EE A RER RS E =
FEEENEBEERR - RIBESHILE
THRME  AEBEREMTEEHEX
SHEZ[FEIRERR  AREEER
ERAERLERERNEMEAMIRE
fhSEREBE - W EHBHRRNE
EARREE o

=134
(a) EXK
ERERBFIEANAERISEAE

(R AR EEE BT EBR 2
EF SR -

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
B Z2025F BZ2024%F
3H31H 3A31H
HFE HFE

Profit attributable to equity holders AN BREEIEE AELFE
of the Company (RMB'000) (AR#T ) 4,335,565 3,990,474

Weighted average number of ordinary ERITERRMETIIH

shares outstanding (thousands) (F1) 11,809,766 11,859,671
Basic earnings per share BREXREF RMB36.71 Cents  RMB33.65 Cents
ARM36.71%0  AR¥33.65%

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A
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29. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 29. HikEF (B
(b) Diluted (b) 1
Diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings per HRARATWEHERD  WEKRE
share since the Company does not have dilutive shares. ERFEGREREFES -
30. DIVIDENDS 30. BER2
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
B E20255 H 220245
3H31H 3H31H
IEFE EFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®ETT

Proposed final dividend of US2.04 cents R AREREEBREBR
per ordinary share (for the year ended 2.043A4L (35292451
31 March 2024: US3.30 cents) (Note (a) 3 31HIEFE - 3.30%Al)

(BizE(a)) 1,738,330 2,787,496

Note: Bz

(@) On 24 June 2025, the Board recommended the payment of a final (a) H2025%6H24H  EEEEREK
dividend of US2.04 cents (for the year ended 31 March 2024: US3.30 HEZ2025F3A31BLFEN
cents) per ordinary share, totalling RMB1,738,330,000 for the year ended RERESKREBR2.04E1 (B
31 March 2025 (for the year ended 31 March 2024: RMB2,787,496,000). F2024F3H31HILFE : 3.30%
The proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March fily) - #5F AK¥1,738,330,000T
2025 is calculated based on the total number of shares outstanding as (Bl£2024F3A31BLFE - A
at the date of this report. The payment of the proposed final dividend is K #2,787,496,0007T) ° & Z2025
to be approved by the shareholders at the Company’s Annual General FIAMBLFEMNERARERE
Meeting. The financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable. DEBRAREBHESRITRMOEZ

i H o RNZARBARE ZEES
RADRRRBFRE LERRH
o MR YERRZELR

Bo
The dividend paid during the year ended 31 March 2025 was the final REZ2025F3 8318 IEFEIRITH
dividend of RMB2,766,876,000 for the year ended 31 March 2024, BREAEZE2024F3831HLEFEN
which was paid in September 2024. FEIRE AR®E2,766,876,0007T

HER20245F9 AIRfT ©
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31.

CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash generated from operations

FeRKRERME

(a) BEEELMRT

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
B Z2025F BZ2024%F
3A31H 3A31H
LEE HFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Profit before income tax BR AT {550 A0 R 5,739,662 5,405,467
Adjustments for: TUT SIEELFE :
— Depreciation of property, plant and — ¥~ RMERZEINE (M)
equipment (Note 6) 749,602 780,168
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —FAREEENTE (M)
(Note 9) 165,519 191,028
— Depreciation of investment properties —REMETE M)
(Note 7) 4,880 1,181
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8)  —EF & & #sH (Hi3Es) 1,600 1,127
— Losses on disposal of property, plantand —EEW¥% - BERRER T
equipment, land use rights and right-of- FREUAREREEE 2 FE
use assets (Note 24) (Fff=E24) 14,233 8,214
— Losses on disposal of intangible assets - EERFERE 2FHE (ME8)
(Note 8) - 439
— Gains on disposal of associates - HEBE AR RS = (2,333)
— Losses on obsolete inventories and —-REFE R FEMAERE (525
write-down of inventories (Note 25) 20,278 35,410
— Provision for impairment of trade — B 2 W RERE (HiEE25)
receivables (Note 25) 10,231 18,591
— Interest income on cash and bank - B2 RIBITERFEBRA
balances (Note 27) (M¥&E27) (78,393) (77,014)
— Interest income from long-term bank - RERITERFIRRA
deposits (Note 24) (HM¥zE24) (352,464) (338,040)
— Interest expenses (Note 27) —F SR (FfFE27) 176,233 281,794
— Share of profits of associates (Note 10) — B H & A RIFE (F9EEL0) (67) (422)
6,451,314 6,305,610
Changes in working capital: EEELEE
— (Increase)/decrease in inventories - FE (Em m (181,357) 691,643
— Decrease in trade receivables -ES R 29,020 3,100
— Increase in prepayments, other —FafRIE - HiERRR
receivables and other assets Hitn & =g m (114,728) (89,146)
— (Decrease)/increase in trade payables -EZEAR D), 1Bm (77,793) 27,550
— Decrease in contract liabilities - EHEERD (199,606) (275,199)
— (Decrease)/increase in accruals and —FEtBRARAMEN TR I RE
other payables and other non-current BECRL), /1
liabilities (86,481) 89,341
Cash generated from operations EEELNES 5,820,369 6,752,899

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31. FERERERMEHE)
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(@) Cash generated from operations (continued) (a) EEEEMNEASGE
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale of REEcRERERY  EEHE T
leasehold land and land use rights and property, plant and equipment RtihFEREUARYE BERERE
comprise: TSI ELE -
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
BZ2025%F BZE2024F
3A31H 3A31H
ItEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Net book amount of property, plantand  ¥1% -« BiE K :&#E

equipment (Note 6) BRE A (K EE6) 32,916 9,803
Losses on disposals of land use rights ~ ERE Tt FFAREURYIE
and property, plant and equipment MERRBEEZEER (14,233) (8,214)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant EE#¥ - BENREBUR
and equipment and land use rights T it AREFT S RIE 18,683 1,589

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31. FERERERME @)
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b)  Net cash reconciliation (b) BHEFREHEKR

REHEFIFF25I & HENREFER

This section sets out an analysis of net cash and the movements in

net cash for each of the periods presented. REFEHEEE DN -

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

Net cash REFE 2025 2024
B E20255 220245

3A31H 3A318

IHEE IEFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT R ARBT T

Cash and bank balances RERBITER 8,346,506 8,421,346
Long-term bank deposits REMRITIFR 7,091,000 7,585,000
Borrowings — repayable within one year B —EBR—FREE (3,654,594) (2,889,328)
Borrowings — repayable after one year £ —ER—FEEE (500,155) (2,461,796)
Lease liabilities HEBE (235,713) (185,567)
Net cash R&FE 11,047,044 10,469,655
Cash and bank balances BERIBITER 8,346,506 8,421,346
Long-term bank deposits REMRITIER 7,091,000 7,585,000
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BERAE -EENER (4,390,462) (4,823,235)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BERARE —F BRI - (713,456)
Net cash BT 11,047,044 10,469,655

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31. FERERERMEE)
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b)  Net cash reconciliation (continued) (b)y BREFRHEEEKRGE
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
RftEE RETHELENEE
Cash and Long-term  Borrowings ~ Borrowings
bank bank due within due after Lease
balances deposits 1 year 1 year liabilities Total
RER REBT R-FRIE RA-FRIH
BIER BH MRS MR HEERE o3t

RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRBTR  ARRTR ARETn ARETR  AR®TR  ARRTX

Net cash as at 31 March 2023 A2023%3A31EH

R4EE 7907599 5752000  (3282014)  (2060307)  (265,838) 8,051,440
Cash flows BehE 583,200 1,833,000 501,609 (316,222) 177,501 2,779,088
Recognition of right-of-use assets B2 HEEE - - - - (87,345) (87,345)
Exchange differences EiEH (69,453) - (96,870) (85,267) - (2515%0)
Other non-cash movements ~ EfiFE¢%E% - - (12,053) - (9,885) (21,938)
Net cash as at 31 March 2024 120243 A31AH

bikeyet 8,421,346 7,585,000 (2,889,328) (2,461,796) (185,567) 10,469,655
Cash flows Béneg 50,695 (494,000) 989,742 212,731 147,822 906,990
Recognition of right-of-use assets i AL E - - - - (190,809) (190,809)
Exchange differences EXES (125,535) - 12,700 (1,090) - (113,925)
Other non-cash movements ~ EfiFR£2H - - (1767,708) 1,750,000 (7,159) (24,867)
Net cash as at 31 March 2025 #2025%3A3LAM

B4 3 8346506 7091000  (3654594) (500155  (235713) 11,047,044

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited



2198 2024/2025% % « ANNUAL REPORT

e ISR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32.

COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March
2024 but not yet incurred is as follows:

32. Rif
(a) BAREE
2025 3H31HK20245F3 31

H  BENERBEENERFEEN
T :

31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20255 20244
3H31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Contracted but not accounted for: EBERNERAER :
— Property, plant and equipment - - BMERSE

48,800 5,372

(b) Operating lease commitments
Operating lease commitments — as lessor

The Group leases out certain office premises, plant and equipment
under operating lease agreements. The leases have various terms
and renewal rights. The aggregate future minimum rental receivables
under these operating leases are as follows:

(b) REHERE
AEETHEANE - BHBA

FEERBEEHEHREAETH]
REYE - BWEEHRE - ZEHEAR
ETEFHRBEVER - RIEZEZE
EHE RRKEERKESBEN
T :

31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20254 20244
3H31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTT

No later than 1 year 1FELR 2,603 6,509
Later than 1 year and no later 1E2F
than 2 years 2,420 4,317
Later than 2 years and no later 2Z3F
than 3 years 2,454 2,420
Later than 3 years and no later 3E4F
than 4 years 722 2,454
Later than 4 years and no later 4Z55F
than 5 years 693 722
Later than 5 years 5F Lk 920 1,613
9,812 18,035

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. BBARS

The ultimate controlling parties of the Group are Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng,
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Group, and his family.

REBZERERBT/BETHLEE
(FAEEZEFERTHAR) REXR

W o
(@) Transactions with related parties (a) EEEEBFMIRS
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
BZE2025%F BZE2024F
3A3LALFE 3A3MBLFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARET T
Sale of goods HEEY
— a minority shareholder of —REE—BHE AT
a subsidiary of the Group Z—BLVERR 30,880 32,310
Purchases of goods and services BERMKEE
—a company in which a director of the —AEE—ZREZHEES
Group has beneficial interest Emz—BATE 3,644 3,498
— a minority shareholder of a subsidiary —ZA%EE—REKEQ A
of the Group A% T 153 596
— a subsidiary of a company which -—BHArEEEEERER
is beneficially owned by the Z AT Z—REWELRE
Chairman of the Group 1,310 1,310
— companies controlled by the —REEFEREGEHIE
Chairman of the Group /N 28,514 30,311
Total purchases of goods and services 8B m M IRIEES 33,621 35,715
Advertising expense EEmEX
— a company controlled by the —REBEEEREEEHRE
Chairman of the Group 2 —REAT 3,740 3,612
Acquisition of property, plant and WEEME - BREREE
equipment
—a company controlled by the —REEEFEHREEGE
Chairman of the Group Z—EATE 135,439 -
Rental expenses of buildings EFHESMX
— companies controlled by the - REEEEREEGE
Chairman of the Group /NG| 77,483 76,785
Rental income of buildings EFHEESWA
— companies jointly controlled by the - AEEEEREHLR
Chairman of the Group ZEHEZ AT 3,983 3,935
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the above transactions ARREERR  LHAXFIRBTEE
are carried out in the ordinary course of business and in accordance 7% 48 72 Hh 30 AR 15 A8 BA 15 5 2 IR FE
with the terms of the underlying agreements. 17
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 33. BAMARS#E)
(b) Balances with related parties (b) EREBEESMAEER
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
20254 20244
3A31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTT

Trade receivables (Note 15) B 5 UK (FIEE15)
— a minority shareholder of —REE—-EHEARE
a subsidiary of the Group Z2—BLERR 16,455 16,384
Other receivables (Note 16) HAb WK (FiEE16)
— subsidiaries of a company which - AEEEXEEREEZ
is beneficially owned by the ARNHEAF
Chairman of the Group 1,624 1,875
Other non-current liabilities HittIeReaE
—a company jointly controlled by the - FREEETEREHLE
Chairman of the Group PEHIRE 2 — B A A 5,287 6,206
Other payables HAFEAS R
— a company jointly controlled by the - RrEBEEEREHRRE
Chairman of the Group g2 —B AR 919 919
Lease liabilities HEAE
— subsidiaries of a company which - AEBTXEEREEZ
is beneficially owned by the ARNHE AT
Chairman of the Group 143,736 74,089
Except for lease liabilities, the receivables and other payables are BRHEEAEN  ERFRESRARE
unsecured, bear no interest and are repayable on demand. There is B - RERFBREREE - WER
no provision held against receivables from related parties (31 March BRI 75 FEURGR1E i 3 48 (2024 FF 3 A 31
2024: nil). H:#) o
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 33. AMARSE)
(c) Key management compensation (c) FEEEAEME
Key management includes directors (executive and non-executive) TEEBANECEEE(PITEEH
and senior management. The compensation paid or payable to key IHITEZ)RSREBAE B E
management for their services is shown below: ZEBABNBREESIHEMEEN
BemT :

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2025 2024

B E2025% HE2024%5
3B31HILEE 3B31HLEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T

Fees we 5,530 5,798
Salaries e 9,142 10,523
Discretionary bonuses BIETEAL 11,888 11,833
Other benefits HAth3gFl 3,383 5,449
Employer’s contributions to EEHRIKEFE

pension schemes HIEEER 695 850
Total e 30,638 34,453
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34. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, STATEMENT 34. ZLATIREARBE  WER  He

OF CASH FLOWS AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE MERREHEST
COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company KAREERER
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
2025% 2024%F
3H31H 3A31H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MIEE AR¥ET T AREET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mz - BERRZE 751 284
Investments in subsidiaries RITEB A RNRE 6,460,500 6,453,745
6,461,251 6,454,029
Current assets REEE
Due from subsidiaries FEW B D Bl FRIE 10,074,710 7,475,851
Prepayments, other receivables FEAFIE - R R
and other assets HibEE 1,262 1,031
Cash and bank balances RERBITEXR 5,129 106,972
10,081,101 7,583,854
Total assets B E 16,542,352 14,037,883
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to equity EATEZEHEA
holders of the Company iR
Share capital &N 1,784,464 1,785,740
Reserves e a 14,040,772 11,075,613
Total equity AR 15,825,236 12,861,353
LIABILITIES af&
Current liabilities RBEE
Due to subsidiaries FEATB BB B RRIE 340,228 405,045
Accruals and other payables FEETE AR EMEIR 6,881 101,491
Borrowings EEN 370,007 669,994
717,116 1,176,530
Total liabilities HEE 717,116 1,176,530
Total equity and liabilities HERKEE 16,542,352 14,037,883
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of AAREEBBRCHESTEMN2025
Directors on 24 June 2025 and was signed on its behalf by: FeoR248HE  WHUTALTRE
EEEHE
Tsai Wang-Chia Chu Chi-Wen
4 REX
Director Director
EZE EZE
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34. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, STATEMENT 34. TLAFIREARBE  WER  BHe

OF CASH FLOWS AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE mMERRFEFEEE#E)
COMPANY (continued)
Income statement of the Company NI EES
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
BZ2025F BZE2024F
3A31H 3A31H
LHFE IHEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBT T
Dividend income BB U A 5,797,394 7,100,039
Other income HAnlg A 12,107 11,275
Other gains/(losses), net Hibzs, (&) —F58 6,844 (17,921)
Administrative expenses THEAR (34,706) (168,422)
Operating profit BERNE 5,781,639 6,924,971
Finance income mEUWA 24,084 1,376
Finance costs R E AR (24,684) (28,589)
Finance costs — net RYE R — FER (600) (27,213)
Profit before income tax KR BT {884 A0 R B 5,781,039 6,897,758
Income tax expense Frishi & H = -
Profit for the year FEFE 5,781,039 6,897,758
Profit attributable to: FEARFIE
— Equity holders of the Company —ARNAERFEA 5,781,039 6,897,758
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34. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, STATEMENT  34. ZABREAES Wi%  BHe
OF CASH FLOWS AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE REERFHFESD E)
COMPANY (continued)

Statement of cash flows of the Company AARRERER
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
BZE2025%F BZE2024F
3A3LALFE 3A3MBLFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MoaE AR®T ARBT T
Cash flows from operating activities &EEFENRESHE
Cash used in operations EEMANRS b (110,336) (77,823)
Interest paid 2FE (24,684) (28,589)
Interest received 2 UFIE 24,084 1,376
Net cash used in operating activites  &EEZBFTANERSE (110,936) (105,036)
Cash flows from investing activities REZBNRERE

Purchases of property, plant and BEYE  BEKRSERE
equipment = (32)

Payments for loans to subsidiaries T EARER (496,155) (148,554)
Dividends received from subsidiaries  [61F{ /& A U ENHI AR 2 3,694,690 2,917,390
Net cash generated from investing RETHEENFRS
activities 3,198,535 2,768,804
Cash flows from financing activities BEEENRERE
Share buy-back R EEE (36,627) (292,599)
Dividends paid to equity holders of the [EZAQ AHEERIFE A
Company TARE (2,766,876) (1,791,127)
Repayment of borrowings BB (1,148,000) (1,685,316)
Proceeds from borrowings B PTERIE 848,000 2,355,316
Payments for borrowings from o) B A B E R FIE
subsidiaries (64,817) (1,372,046)
Net cash used in financing activities ~ BEEZBFTARNFERS (3,168,320) (2,785,772)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRBSEEMRED FHE
equivalents (80,721) (122,004)
Cash and cash equivalents at FONRERASZEY
beginning of year 106,972 67,103
Exchange (losses)/gains X (&8) s (21,122) 161,873
Cash and cash equivalentsatend FARNBEER
of the year REEEY 5,129 106,972
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34. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, STATEMENT 34. TLAFIREARBE  WER  BHe

OF CASH FLOWS AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE RERRGEREE (&)
COMPANY (continued)
Note (a) Reserve movements of the Company MizE(a) AL BEEEE S
Currency
Share  realignment Retained
premium reserves earnings Total
BEWEHR
43518 RERE REBR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETR AR¥FR AR¥TR
As at 1 April 2023 H2023F4A1H 462,130 (217,919) 5,498,880 5,743,091
Profit for the year FEFH - - 6,897,758 6,897,758
Share buy-back RipEEE - - (282,617) (282,617)
Currency translation differences EMELERE - 508,508 - 508,508
Dividends paid RS - - (791127)  (1,791,127)
As at 31 March 2024 2024538311 462,130 290,589 10,322,894 11,075,613
As at 1 April 2024 M2024%F4 818 462,130 290,589 10,322,894 11,075,613
Profit for the year FEFHE - = 5,781,039 5,781,039
Share buy-back BRAPEEm = = (35,351) (35,351)
Currency translation differences EMESER = (13,653) = (13,653)
Dividends paid TARE = = (2,766,876)  (2,766,876)
As at 31 March 2025 M2025%3831H 462,130 276,936 13,301,706 14,040,772
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34. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, STATEMENT

34. FNFHREARE WK - He

OF CASH FLOWS AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE REERFHFESD E)
COMPANY (continued)
Note (b) Cash used in operations MizE(b) EEFARE
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
BZ2025%F BZE2024F
3A31HLEFE 3A3MBLFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T AREEF T
Profit before income tax R PR S B AT A 5,781,039 6,897,758
Adjustments for: MUTREELHRAZE
— Depreciation of property, plant and -M%E  BERREINE
equipment 260 396
— Interest income —F B A (24,084) (1,376)
— Interest costs —FEXZH 24,684 28,589
— Dividend income —REWA (5,797,394) (7,100,039)
(15,495) (174,672)
Changes in working capital: EHEESHE
— Increase in prepayments, other —FEFUE - HtERRER
receivables and other assets HithEEIEmM (231) (178)
— (Decrease)/increase in accruals and ~ — fEFT & i R EA BT
other payables (R, ¥ (94,610) 97,027
Cash used in operations EEFANERES (110,336) (77,823)
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35. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 35. EEREHRIEDE
(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments (a) EBRESTBRAEME
The remuneration of each director and the chief executive is set out ARARREERESITHRAEMEH
below. PN o
For the year ended 31 March 2025, emoluments paid or payable in BZ2025F3A31AILLEE  HAE
respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of the Company Bz ATz ARESBE (THRB
or its subsidiary undertaking: AARHEMBARAR WT ¢

Estimated Employer’s
allowances  contributions
Discretionary  and benefits to pension

Name of Directors Fees Salaries bonuses in kind schemes Total
ek  EXHENS

BEps ik e BERA ENER AR @t

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR  ARMTR  ARBTR  AREBTR  ARETR  ARMT:R

Executive Directors: HTES:

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng BHTREE 761 1,507 = 240 25 2,533
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung BRREE 580 584 846 120 89 2,219
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia BEREE 256 986 1,224 420 12 2,898
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung BANEE 251 449 450 216 17 1,443
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen RETEE 433 572 1,769 660 34 3,468
Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui SRELE 217 394 165 203 23 1,002
Ms. Lai Hong Yee REELL 27 306 208 378 17 1,126
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:

Mr. Maki Haruo IBEXEE 217 = = = = 27
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien BuEEE 217 = = = = 217

Independent non-executive BUFHTES:

Directors:
Dr. Pei Kerwei AnfEEt 433 = = = = 433
Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen BRCEE 433 = = = - 433
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming TEAEE 433 = = = = 433
Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang gty 217 = = = = 217
Mrs. Kong Ho Pui King IARRLE 217 = = = = 217

4,882 4,798 4,662 2,297 217 16,856
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35. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (continued) 35. EERFIRMS(E)
(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments (continued) (a) EBRESTBRAEME(#E)
For the year ended 31 March 2024, emoluments paid or payable in BZ2024F3A31AILEE  HAE
respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of the Company EZATZENARENSEIE (TRE
or its subsidiary undertaking: AT EMEAREARE AT ¢

Estimated Employer’s
allowances  contributions
Discretionary  and benefits to pension

Name of Directors Fees Salaries bonuses in kind schemes Total
HEEER  EXHERS
BEENE he e BiEfta ENER FTEIMRR -

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AR®TR  ARETR  ARBTR  AR®TR  ARETR

Executive Directors: HTES:
Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng EiREL 751 1,498 - 240 26 2,515
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung EAMEE 570 703 840 120 87 2,320
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia ERRELE 260 911 1,224 420 8 2823
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung BXIEE 398 207 789 276 17 1777
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen RExks 429 572 1,824 406 34 3,265
Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui ZHELL 215 391 166 199 2 993
Ms. Lai Hong Yee REERL 215 285 197 373 16 1,086
Non-executive Directors: FHTEE .
Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun* B 169 - - 1,000 - 1,169
Mr. Maki Haruo 1BEXEE 215 - - - - 215
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien ByEis 215 - - - - 215
Independent non-executive BukHTES:
Directors:
Dr. Pei Kerwei AnfEEt 429 - - - - 429
Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen HRECEE 429 - - - - 429
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming TEAEE 429 - - - - 429
Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang BrRLE 215 - - - - 215
Mrs. Kong Ho Pui King TARRL 215 - - - - 215
5,154 4,657 5,040 3,034 210 18,095
* The other benefit for Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun is the consultancy fee. * THEBYIEENEMBER AR
o
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35. EEmRTIREREE)

35. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement and termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits
or termination benefits during the year ended 31 March 2025.

(c) Consideration provided to or receivable by third parties for
making available directors’ services

The Group did not pay consideration, and no consideration was
payable by the Group, to any third parties for making available
directors’ services during the year ended 31 March 2025.

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour
of directors, bodies corporate controlled by or entities connected
with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors, bodies
corporate controlled by or entities connected with directors subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 March
2025.

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of 31 March 2025 or at any time during
the year ended 31 March 2025.

(b) EBRARZLEF

EENEE2025F3831BIELEET
UL S A S W BT TR R B R S AR
LERER o

(c) MREHEZREMEAE=FIRE
HRE=FBIRIBHESRE
MUER Ay £ E

REBNEE2025F3A831ALEE
WEG L ERRIREES RS B EAE
=FATEE -

d) MES ZZEEBEHNE
AEERZESHEBEEEIR
HNER EERREMBR S
HER

NEZE202553A831ALFEEFXRT
FRZEMEE  TERNES - $%
EEEERHNEABRRRZESENE
GEBERENER EEFREMR
%o

(e) EFHHAKEXBERE
EXG - RERSRMNERE

m

20253831 BEHE 202553
A31H L FEAMER » NARILE
BRSPS RAEE 2 EKEMA QT
ZEZHEREETEHEPEEERE
BZEERS  RHERER o
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36. EMBELR
The following sets out the details of the principal subsidiaries of the 7A2025F3A31H » AREBMWEEH
Group as at 31 March 2025. BARFEHIMT -
Country/place Issued and paid-up Effective interests
of operations/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
&/ 2 BRIRAR rEBRE
NGEL ARIER/ HE R/ EREA WERERY  TEER
Directly owned
ERER
Want Want Holdings Ltd. Singapore US$212,331,000 99.99 Investment holding
REERERATE s 212,331,000 REZR
Long Wave Foods Limited HKSAR HK$100 100 Trading of food and beverages
RERRERAR BERE 10087 RARHKES
Want-Want Foods Limited HKSAR HK$2 100 Trading of food and beverages
RERRERAR BERE 28T RARHKES
Leisure Foods Limited HKSAR HK$1 100 Trading of food and beverages
R RRERAR BERE BT RARHKES
Like Snacks Trading Limited HKSAR HK$1 100 Trading of food and beverages
BYIRRESERAT BERE LB RARHKES
Want Want (HK) Holdings Limited HKSAR US$10,000,000 100 Investment holding
ERRRERERAR BERE 10,000,000% 7 REER
Big Want (HK) Holdings Limited HKSAR US$1 100 Investment holding
ERARERERAR BBRE EY REER
Want Want Indonesia Holdings Pte Limited HKSAR US$1,500,000 100 Investment holding
BERE 1,500,000% 7T REZR
Indirectly owned
HEEs
Anhui Kuang-Want Food Trading Co., Ltd. *  Chinese Mainland RMB22,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages and related
ZREARMEEERAT HERR AE#22,000,0007 activities
RARAHESUREEXEED
Anji Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$1,400,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
ZERERBERAR FEER 1,400,000% 7 beverages
HERIHRMANA
Anging Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$7,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
ZEAEREERAR FEER 7,000,000% 7 beverages
BERDHRMANA
Anging Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$100,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
ZERAREERAF FEER 100,000,000 7T beverages
HERDHRMANA
Anyang Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$8,930,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
ZRURREERAT FEER 8,930,000% 7 beverages
HERDHRMANA
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. XEMBLAT A

Country/place Issued and paid-up Effective interests
of operations/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /i BEATRAR rEERE
RRER RIER/ HE R /g WERERY  TEER
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (8
Beijing Be-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese Mainland US$9,350,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
TRURERERAF HEIRR 9,350,000 beverages
HERAHRMARA
Beijing Big-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese Mainland US$13,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
FTRARERERAF HEIRR 13,000,000%7% beverages
HERAHRMARA
Beijing Dairy-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$25,100,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
ITRARRRERAT HERR 25,100,000% 7 beverages
HERAHRMARA
Beijing Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$1,400,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
THRIERRERAH HEIER 1,400,000 7 beverages
RERAHRMARA
Beijing Lion-Want Packing Ltd.* Chinese Mainland US$2,100,000 100 Manufacture of packing materials
TRRERLEBRAR HEIER 2,100,000% 7 HEELR
Beijing Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland 1S$6,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
TRRERRERAT HEIRR 6,000,000 beverages
HERAHRMARA
Changchun Want Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB150,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
RERERRERAT HERR AR#150,000,0007 beverages
RERAHRMAUA
Changsha Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$19,320,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
RORERRERAT FEER 19,320,000% 7% beverages
RERAHRMARA
Chengdu Ming-Want Dairy Ltd.* Chinese Mainland US$35,700,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
KRR AERRAF HEIRR 35,700,000% 7 beverages
HERAHRMARA
Chengdu Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$9,800,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
KARRRRERAR HEIRR 9,800,000%7 beverages
HERAHRMARA
Chongging Xi-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB1,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages and related
ERERBERRAR HEIER AE#1,000,0007 activities
RRRHNESUREEESEED
First Family Enterprise Co., Ltd. Taiwan region NTD66,500,000 100 Trading of snack food
RREZRDERAA RENE 66,500,000 & ¥ HERRES
Guangdong Si-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages and related
EREEHEBRAT HEER AR#10,000,0007 activities

RRRHHES ARERERED
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

36. XEMBLT#E)

Country/place Issued and paid-up Effective interests
of operations/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /i REE rEERE
ARER RIER/HE R /g WERERY  TEER
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (8
Guangxi Ling-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB3,500,000 100 Trading of food and beverages and related
ERERHEARA R HEIER AR#3,500,0007 activities
RRRHAESUREEESEED
Guangxi Ming-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese Mainland US$25,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
ERARRRERAF HEIRR 25,000,000% 7 beverages
HERAERAARA
Guangxi Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$11,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
ERARERFERAT PEER 11,000,000£ 7% beverages
HERAHRMAUA
Guangzhou Be-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$4,850,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
ENVERBERAT FEER 4,850,000% 7 beverages
RERAHRMARA
Guangzhou Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$10,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
ENAERRBRAT PEER 10,000,000% 7 beverages
RERIHRMARA
Guangzhou Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland S$6,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
ENIERRBRAR HEER 6,000,000% 7 beverages
RERIHRMARA
Guangzhou Ming-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$15,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
ENEEAEBRAT HEER 15,000,000% 7 beverages
RERIHRMARA
Guangzhou Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland S$9,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
ENEERRBRAR HEER 9,000,000% 7 beverages
RERIHRMARA
Guangzhou Xiang-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$14,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
ENEEREBRAR FEER 14,000,000% 7 beverages
HERIHRMANA
Guangzhou Yong-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$7,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
BENXEREBRAR FEER 7,000,000% 7T beverages
HERIHRMANA
Hangzhou Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$11,250,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
MNAEREBRAR FEER 11,250,000% 7 beverages
HERIHRMANA
Hangzhou Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$4,500,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
MNIEREBRAR FEER 4,500,000% 7 beverages
HERIHRMANA
Hangzhou Sun-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$12,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food, wine
mNeERRERAR FEER 12,000,000% 7% and beverages
HERAHRM  EENRA
Hangzhou Tiane Chemical Co., Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$1,050,000 100 Manufacture of dehydrating, deoxidating,
N IBRAR FEER 1,050,000% 7 preservative and related products
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

e ISR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. XEMBLT#E)

Country/place Issued and paid-up Effective interests
of operations/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /it REE rEERE
AREH RIBS/ 4B BA/RMER  NEMERN B
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (8
Hangzhou Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$9,800,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
MNERRRERAR HEIRR 9,800,000%7 of food and beverages
HERAERRAGA
Harbin Shuangcheng Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$3,620,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
BREEEHREERREARAT PEER 3,620,000% 7% of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Harbin Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$5,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
RREEERRERAT HEIRR 5,000,000 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Hefei Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$6,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
AEEERFERAT HEIRR 6,000,000 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Heilongjiang Yuan-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB3,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
ZEIGHEEERARY HEIRR AR#3,000,0007t and related activities
RmRYBEZUREBERED
Henan Ping-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB3,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
R TREEERA R HEIRR AR#3,000,0007t and related activities
RmRYBEZUREBERED
Henan Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$1,750,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
TEEERRERAR HEIRR 1,750,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Houma Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$5,700,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
GRERERRERAR HEIRR 5,700,000 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Huai'an Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$135,100,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
EZRRRRERAR HEIRR 135,100,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Hubei Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$4,500,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
ML IRRRERAT HERR 4,500,000 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Hubei Ming-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese Mainland US$10,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
BB RRERAF HEIRR 10,000,000%7% of food and beverages
HERAERRAGA
Hubei Yuan-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB4,500,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
HtEREEERAF HEIRR AR#4,500,0007 and related activities
RmREBEZURBBERED
Hunan Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$84,400,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of food and
HEARRRERAT HEIRR 84,400,000% 7 beverages
HERAERRAGA

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. XEMBLAT A

Country/place Issued and paid-up Effective interests
of operations/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /i REE rEERE
ARER RIER/HE R /g WERERY  TEER
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (8
Hunan Jet-Want Packaging Ltd. Chinese Mainland S$5,500,000 100 Manufacture of packing bags
HEERERENEEERAT HEIER 5,500,000 and carton boxes
REAERRER
Hunan Tai-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB2,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
HERREEERAF HENER AR#2,000,0007 and related activities
RRRHNESUREEESED
Hunan Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$15,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
HEEERRERAT HERR 15,000,000%7% of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
| Lan Foods Industrial Co., Ltd. Taiwan region NTD10,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
HERRIERGERAT REHE 10,000,00051 &% of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Jiangsu Rongwang Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
IHEREEERAF HENER AE®10,000,0007 and related activities
RRRHNESUREEESED
Jiangxi Be-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$12,600,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
IEAVERRERAT HEIRR 12,600,000 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Jiangxi Want Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese Mainland US$18,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
IARRRRERAF HEIRR 18,000,000%7% of food and beverages
HERAERAANA
Jiangxi Wen-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB2,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
IANAREERAF HENER AR#2,000,0007t and related activities
RRRHNESUREEESEED
Jiaxing Feng Want Precision Equipment Chinese Mainland RMB5,600,000 100 Manufacture and sale of
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* HERR AKH#5,600,0007 machineries and related services
REEREERBERERRAR HEREERHREBRE
Jiaxing Mei-Want Machinery Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$12,500,000 100 Manufacture and sale of
RAEEANAEERAT HEIER 12,500,000 machineries and related services
HEREERHREBRY
Leading Guide Hongkong Limited HKSAR US$50,000 100 Trading company
EBKRE 50,000% 7 ES507
Lianyungang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$8,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
BEZEMARRERAA HEIRR 8,000,000 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Liaoning Tai-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
BEARUBEARLT* HEIER AK#5,000,0007 and related activities

¥ Bl BB =R AHRA A
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. XEMBLAT A

Country/place Issued and paid-up Effective interests
of operations/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /i BEATRAR rEERE
AREH RIBS/ 4B BA/RMER  NEMERN B
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (8
Longchang Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$20,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
BEUHRRERAT HEIRR 20,000,000% 7t of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Longchang Ming-Want Dairy Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
EERHAEERAF HEIRR AE¥50,000,0007 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Longchang Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$1,750,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
BERERRERAT HEIRR 1,750,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Longchang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$700,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
EERARRERAT HEIRR 700,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Longchang Xiang Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$4,100,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
EEHARRERAT HEIRR 4,100,000%7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Luohe Big-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
BUARRRERA R HEIRR AR#100,000,0007 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Luohe Ru-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
BRUARRRERA R HEIRR AE¥50,000,0007 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Luohe Want-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$7,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
BRURRRRERAR HEIRR 7,000,000%7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Nanjing Be-Want Foods Co.,Ltd. Chinese Mainland 1S$3,500,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
BRUERRERAR HEIRR 3,500,000 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Nanjing Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$97,050,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
BRARRRERAR HERR 97,050,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Nanjing Cubic-Want Plastic Ltd. Chinese Mainland 1S$2,500,000 100 Production of packaging materials
ERmEEERERAT HENER 2,500,000% 7% and cans
EEARMHRE
Nanjing Fore-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland 1S$6,300,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
BRERRRERAR HERR 6,300,000 of food and beverages

HERDHRRNRH

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. XEMBLAT A

Country/place Issued and paid-up Effective interests
of operations/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /i REE rEERE
ARER RIER/HE R /g WERERY  TEER
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (8
Nanjing Jet-Want Packaging Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$17,000,000 100 Manufacture of packing bags
BRERZHERAT HEIER 17,000,000% 7% and carton boxes
REAERRER
Nanjing Lion-Want Packaging Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$3,700,000 100 Manufacture of packing materials
ARREEEBRAR HEIER 3,700,000% 7 REaLR
Nanjing Minghong Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$15,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
ERBARRRERAR HERR 15,000,000%7% of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Nanjing Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$2,500,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
ERRERAERAT HERR 2,500,000 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Nanjing Sen-Want Dairy Co.,Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB500,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
BRRREALEERAF HEIRR AR#500,000,0007 of food and beverages
HERAERAANA
Nanjing Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland S$5,820,000 84 Manufacture and distribution
EREERAERAT FERR 5,820,000 of food and beverages
RERDERAARA
Nanjing Yuan-Want Investments Ltd. Chinese Mainland RMB1,500,000,000 100 Investment management
ARERREBRAR mESER  ARH1,500,000,0007T REERE
Ningxia Ming-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$12,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
EZRRAEERAF HEIER 12,000,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Nuowant Biomedical Technology Co., Ltd. Taiwan region NTD75,000,000 100 Development and manufacture of
AREERERAERAR FEHE 75,000,000%7 & # cosmetics and health food
BB REEHRIRERR
Poyang County Linwang Forestry Chinese Mainland US$18,350,000 100 Agricultural planting and management
Development Co., Ltd. FERR 18,350,000% 7T and livestock and poultry breeding
BESEMEMERRERAR EEEERERNRERER
PT Iwant Food International Indonesia IDR10,010,000,000 100 Trading company
0 10,010,000,00060 /2 & I
PT WANT WANT INDONESIA Indonesia IDR10,010,000,000 60 Trading of food and beverages
0 10,010,000,00060 8 & and related activities
RRRHNESUREEESEED
Qihe Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$45,130,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
ETRERAERAT HERR 45,130,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Quanzhou Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$15,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
FNURRRERAR HERR 15,000,000%7% of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Quanzhou Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$10,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
FNEERRERAR HERR 10,000,000%7% of food and beverages
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. XEMBLT#E)

Country/place Issued and paid-up Effective interests
of operations/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /i BEATRAR rEERE
RRER RIER/ HE R /g WERERY  TEER
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (8
Shaanxi Want Want Trading Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$350,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
RAEREHEERAR HEIER 350,000% 7T and related activities
RmREBEZUREBERED
Shandong Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$4,500,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
LRAERRERAT HEIRR 4,500,000 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Shandong Jet-Want Packaging Ltd. Chinese Mainland 1S$5,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
LREREENBERAT HEIRR 5,000,000 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Shandong Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$92,350,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
LRARRRERAT HEIRR 92,350,000% 7t of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Shandong Yuan-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB3,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
LREHEERRAF HENER AR#3,000,0007t and related activities
RmRYBEZUREBERED
Shanggao Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$1,800,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
IRRERRERAT HEIRR 1,800,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Shanggao Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland 1S$5,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
TERERRERAF HEIER 5,000,000£ 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Shanghai Chao Want Technology Co., Ltd Chinese Mainland US$16,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
DESRNEERAT HENER 16,000,000% 7% and related activities
EmRYBEZUREBERED
Shanghai Fuwang Culture Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 100 Provision of consultancy services
Communication Co., Ltd. HEIER AK#5,000,0007 and information
PERE L BRERAR REZHRERER
Shanghai Hao-Want Network Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 100 Engaged in network technology services,
Technology Co., Ltd.* HEIRR ARK#10,000,0007 consulting, etc.
LEERAENEERAR" S RERIMETS - FHS
Shanghai Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$15,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
LBURRRERAT HERR 15,000,000%7% of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Shanghai Ruwang Electronic Chinese Mainland RMB140,000,000 100 Provision of consultancy services
Commerce Co., Ltd. HEIER AR#140,000,0007 and information
LEMEEFERERAR REEARBRER
Shanghai Wangdao Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB71,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
LEREEEERAF HEIER AE®71,000,0007 and related activities

RERRNEA L RARERED
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. XEMBLAT A

Country/place Issued and paid-up Effective interests
of operations/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
gE /i BRIRAR rEERA
DAERH RIER/ #E B%/aREx WERERY  IEEE
Indirectly owned (continued)
FEHA ()
Shanghai Want Want Foods Group Co., Ltd. ~ Chinese Mainland US$30,350,000 100 Provision of consultancy services
LsRARREEERAT PESEA 30,350,000% 7 and information
REERARBERER
Shanghai Want Want Trading Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$13,500,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
LERABEERAR PESEA 13,500,000% 7 and related activities
RARANESUREEREED
Shanghai Want-Want Network Technology Chinese Mainland RMB100,800,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
Co., Ltd.* HEIER AE#100,800,0007 and related activities online
LERREENEERA R RRREBE L UREBERED
Shanghai Yuanwang Enterprise Chinese Mainland RMB11,000,000 100 Business service
Management Co., Ltd.* HEER AR11,000,0007 EESE
et XERERA R
Shenyang Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland S$9,950,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
BEARRRERAR HEER 9,950,000% 7 of food, wine and beverages
RERVERR  BERRH
Shenyang Rice-Want Cereals & Qils Ltd. Chinese Mainland 1S$9,600,000 100 Processing and sales of rice and
ERRLERRRERAT PESEA 9,600,000%7 oil products
AKRRERMIREE
Shenyang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$10,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
EGEEERRERAF HEER 10,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERDERRARE
Shenyang Yan-Want Rice Flour Chinese Mainland RMB27,310,000 100 Rice flour manufacturing
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* FESR ARE#27 310,000 BERR
EREERRREERAT
Shijiazhuang Ming-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$28,750,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
BREARIEERAR HEER 28,750,000% 7% of food and beverages
RERDHRRARE
Tongchuan Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$6,750,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
HIHERMERAR HEER 6,750,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERDERRARE
Tongchuan Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$15,600,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
1) |IEE R R ERAF HEER 15,600,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERDERRARE
Want Want Corporation (Thailand) Ltd. Thailand THP65,000,000 100 Trading company
%8 65,000,000%8% S0
Want Want Europe GmbH Germany EUR700,000 100 Import and distribution of food and
] 700,000 7 beverages
RENGEENRDH
Want Want Food Pte Ltd. Singapore SGD100,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
RERBAABRAT SR 100,000%7 03K 7T RRABHES
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. XEMBLT#E)

Country/place Issued and paid-up Effective interests
of operations/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /it REE rEERE
RRER RIER/ HE BE/EHER WERERY  TEER
Indirectly owned (continued)
RiEHE (@)
Want Want Four Seas Company Limited HKSAR HK$2,000,000 70 Distribution of food and beverages and
REMNERAR EERE 2,000,000 7 related activities
AHRMRSRAREBERED
Want Want Japan Co., Ltd. Japan JPY100,000,000 60 Import, export and distribution of food and
AL B A &4t AR 100,000,0008 7T beverages and related services
RMRSBEL ORDEARMERE
Want Want North America LLC North America US$1,000,000 100 Food export, distribution and
% 1,000,000% T related services
R0 FHEREBERED
Want Want Philippines Holdings Pte Limited Singapore US$250,000 100 Investment company
Ei 250,000% 7T REMNT
Want Want Thailand Holdings Pte Limited Singapore US$2,180,000 100 Investment holding
REREMAERERAE AR 2,180,000% 7 REER
Want Want Vietham Company Limited Vietnam US$59,000,000 95 Manufacture and distribution
HAERERAF filfE 59,000,000 7 of food and beverages
HERDHR AR
Want Want Vietnam Holdings Pte Limited Singapore US$71,030,000 9 Investment holding
HHHEAAZRERAR Fipbe 71,030,000%7 REZR
Want Want Vietnam Trading Co., Ltd. Vietnam US$12,000,000 95 Trading company
i 12,000,000% 7 EH0H
Weifang Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$3,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
BHHERMERAT HEIER 3,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
BERDHRMANR
Wellstand Singapore Pte Limited Singapore US$1,050,000 100 Investment holding
R 1,050,000% 7 REER
Wingate Overseas Holdings Ltd. BVI US$50,000 100 Investment holding
EBELES 50,000% 7t REER
Xiamen Yi-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000 100 Investment management
EMRRRRERAR HEIRR AR#100,000,0007T REER
Xiamen Yuanwang Foods Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000 100 Investment management
EFERmERA T HEIRR AR#100,000,0007 REER
Xiantao Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$5,100,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
kAR RRERAF HEIER 5,100,000% 7 of food and beverages
BERDHRMANR
Xining Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$6,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
EFERRERAR HEIER 6,000,000£7 of food and beverages
HERIHRMANH
Xinjiang Ru-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$6,100,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
FEIRRRERAR HEER 6,100,000% 7% of food and beverages

HER D HRRNGH
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

36. XEMBLT#E)

Country/place Issued and paid-up Effective interests
of operations/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
gE /i BRIRAR rEERA
DAERH RIER/ #E B%/aREx WERERY  IEEE
Indirectly owned (continued)
FEHA ()
Xinjiang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$7,500,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
FERERRERAR HEER 7,500,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERDERRARE
Xuzhou Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$11,500,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
BNARRRERAR HEER 11,500,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERDERRARE
Zhejiang Ming-Want Dairy Ltd.* Chinese Mainland US$79,100,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
IR EERA R HEER 79,100,000% 7T of food and beverages
RERDERRARE
Zhejiang Ru-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$54,500,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
HIAERRERAR HEER 54,500,000 7% of food and beverages
RERDERRARE
Zhejiang Want-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution
HIRERRERAR HEER AE#100,000,0007 of food and beverages
RERDERRARE
Zhejiang Yuan-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
MIEEBEARLT PESEA AR%10,000,0007C and related activities
RARAHESUREEREED
Zhong Want Holdings Limited HKSAR HK$1,000 100 Investment holding
REERERAR EBNE 1,000% 7T REER
Notes: Bt -
# represents Sino-foreign equity/cooperative joint venture. # REFIIEEBIELRE -
* represents enterprise wholly owned by a Chinese Mainland legal entity. * REFEBERNEABERE -

The remaining enterprises incorporated in Chinese Mainland are all

foreign-invested enterprises.

All the enterprises incorporated in Chinese Mainland are limited

liability companies.

HKSAR denotes the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

37. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by

the Board of Directors on 24 June 2025.
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